
 

Meeting Accessibility Services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Notice:  City Hall Annex is accessible to persons with disabilities. A 
request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours before the meeting to the City Recorder (503) 864-2221 or rvargas@daytonoregon.gov .    1 
 

 
AGENDA 

CITY OF DAYTON  
REGULAR SESSION 

 
DATE:  MONDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2024 
TIME:  6:30 PM 
PLACE: DAYTON CITY HALL ANNEX – 408 FERRY STREET, DAYTON, OREGON 
VIRTUAL: ZOOM MEETING – ORS 192.670/HB 2560 
 

You may join the Council Meeting online via YouTube: https://youtube.com/live/pFR_78yGEQU?feature=share  
   

Dayton – Rich in History . . . Envisioning Our Future 
 

ITEM     DESCRIPTION                                                                                                     PAGE #     
 

A. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
 

C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 
 
D. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. October 21, 2024, Work/Special Session Minutes.    1-5 

 
E. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Pursuant to ORS 193.660 (2)(a) to consider the employment of an officer, employee, staff member 

or agent. 
 
F. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Approval of Resolution 2024/25-07 Approving a     7-13 
City Manager Contract 

2. Approval of Resolution 2024/25-06 Concurring with   15-82 
 the Urban Renewal Plan to Include Public Building Projects 

3. Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 664 Adopting  83-177 
 the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan 

4. Discussion on City Council Connection Opportunity    179 
with the School District 

 
G. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS/ CONCERNS 
 
H. INFORMATION REPORTS 

1. Tourism and Economic Development Director 

mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov
https://youtube.com/live/pFR_78yGEQU?feature=share


 

Meeting Accessibility Services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Notice:  City Hall Annex is accessible to persons with disabilities. A 
request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours before the meeting to the City Recorder (503) 864-2221 or rvargas@daytonoregon.gov .    2 
 

 
I. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT      181-189 
 
 
J. ADJOURN 
 
Posted: November 1, 2024 
By: Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 
 

NEXT MEETING 
Monday, December 2, 2024, Regular Session Meeting 

Monday, January 6, 2025, Regular Session Meeting 
 
 
 
Virtually via Zoom and in Person, City Hall Annex, 408 Ferry Street, Dayton, Oregon 
 

The public is encouraged to relay concerns and/or comments to the City Council in one of the 
following methods: 

a Email – any time up to 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to rvargas@daytonoregon.gov. 
The Mayor will read the comments emailed to the City Recorder. 

b Appear in person – if you would like to speak during public comment, please sign up on 
the sign-in sheet located on the table when you enter the Council Chambers.  

c Appear by Telephone only – please sign up prior to the meeting by emailing the City 
Recorder at rvargas@daytonoregon.gov. (The chat function is not available when calling by 
phone into Zoom.) 

d Appear virtually via Zoom – send an email directly to the City Recorder, Rocio Vargas, 
prior to the meeting to request to speak during public comment. The City Recorder will 
need your first and last name, address, and contact information (email, phone 
number), and topic name you will receive the Zoom Meeting link or information. When it 
is your turn, the Mayor will announce your name, and your microphone will be unmuted.   

 
 
 
 

mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov
mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov
mailto:rvargas@daytonoregon.gov


MINUTES  
DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 

WORK/SPECIAL 
OCTOBER 21, 2024 

PRESENT: Council President Luke Wildhaber ABSENT: Mayor Annette Frank (Excused) 
 Councilor Scott Hover  Councilor Drew Hildebrandt (Excused) 
 Councilor Kitty Mackin   
 Councilor Jim Maguire      
 Councilor Chris Teichroew   
    
    
STAFF: Cyndi Park, Interim City Manager 

Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 
Dave Rucklos, Tourism & Economic Development Director 
Don Cutler, Public Works Supervisor 
 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council President Wildhaber called the meeting to order at 6:32 pm and all those present gave 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 

B. ROLL CALL 

Council President Wildhaber noted that councilors Hover, Mackin, and Maguire were present in 
person. Councilor Teichroew was present via Zoom. 

C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS  

None. 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. October 7, 2024, Regular Session Minutes 

Councilor Maguire noted edits to the minutes.  

KITTY MACKIN MOVED TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 7, 
2024, REGULAR SESSION MINUTES AS AMENDED. 
SECONDED BY JIM MAGUIRE. Motion carried with Hover, 
Mackin, Maguire, Teichroew and Wildhaber voting aye. 
Mayor Frank and Councilor Hildebrandt were absent. 

E. ACTION ITEMS 
1. Resignation of Public Works Employee and Approval for Recruitment 

1



Cyndi Park, Interim City Manager stated that Rebecca Eastman has secured a new job and turned 
in her resignation with the City. Interim City Manager stated that the City is in need of filling the 
position as soon as possible and is requesting the City Council to approve the recruitment and 
hiring of a new Public Works employee. 

Don Cutler, Public Works Supervisor stated that he has a candidate that he would like to make an 
offer to. He stated that he was a candidate in the previous recruitment, and he did seasonal work 
for the City   

KITTY MACKIN MOVED TO AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM 
CITY MANAGER TO ADVERTISE, RECRUIT, AND HIRE A 
NEW PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEE. SECONDED BY SCOTT 
HOVER. Motion carried with Hover, Mackin, Maguire, 
Teichroew and Wildhaber voting aye. Mayor Frank and 
Councilor Hildebrandt were absent. 

 

2. Second Reading of Ordinance 662 – Limiting Trial Use Liability 

Councilor Maguire noted edits to the ordinance. 

Councilor Maguire preformed the second reading of Ordinance 662 by title only.  

KITTY MACKIN MOVED TO APPROVE THE SECOND 
READING BY TITLE ONLY OF ORDINANCE 662, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE DAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY FOR CERTAIN CLAIMS 
ARISING FROM THE USE OF TRAILS OR STRUCTURES 
WITHIN PUBLIC EASEMENTS AND UNIMPROVED 
RIGHTS OF WAY UNDER ORS 105.668 AS AMENDED. 
SECONDED BY CHRIS TEICHROEW. Motion carried with 
Hover, Mackin, Maguire, Teichroew and Wildhaber voting 
aye. Mayor Frank and Councilor Hildebrandt were absent. 

SCOTT HOVER MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 662, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE DAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY FOR CERTAIN CLAIMS 
ARISING FROM THE USE OF TRAILS OR STRUCTURES 
WITHIN PUBLIC EASEMENTS AND UNIMPROVED 
RIGHTS OF WAY UNDER ORS 105.668 AS AMENDED.  
SECONDED BY JIM MAGUIRE. Motion carried with Hover, 

2



Mackin, Maguire, Teichroew and Wildhaber voting aye. 
Mayor Frank and Councilor Hildebrandt were absent. 

 

 

3. Second Reading of Ordinance 663 – Amending Chapter 3.8 Transient Lodging 
Tax (TLT) of the Dayton Municipal Code 

Councilor Maguire noted edits to the ordinance.  

KITTY MACKIN MOVED TO APPROVE THE SECOND 
READING BY TITLE ONLY OF ORDINANCE 663, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 3.8 TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 
(TLT) OF THE DAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE AS AMENDED. 
SECONDED BY JIM MAGUIRE. Motion carried with Hover, 
Mackin, Maguire, Teichroew and Wildhaber voting aye. 
Mayor Frank and Councilor Hildebrandt were absent. 

JIM MAGUIRE MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 663, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
AMENDING SECTION 3.8 TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 
(TLT) OF THE DAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE AS AMENDED. 
SECONDED BY CHRIS TEICHROEW. Motion carried with 
Hover, Mackin, Maguire, Teichroew and Wildhaber voting 
aye. Mayor Frank and Councilor Hildebrandt were absent. 

 

4. First Reading of Ordinance 664 – Adopting the Urban Renewal Plan 

Councilor Maguire noted edits to the ordinance.  

Councilor Mackin noted edits to the draft of the Urban Renewal Plan. 

Council President noted edit of the date for notice of the Public Hearing. 

KITTY MACKIN MOVED TO APPROVE THE FIRST 
READING BY TITLE ONLY OF ORDINANCE 664, AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL MAKING 
CERTAIN DETERMINATION AND FINDINGS RELATED TO 
AND APPROVING THE DAYTON URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 
AND DIRECTING THAT NOTICE OF APPROVAL BE 
PUBLISHED. SECONDED BY CHRIS TEICHROEW. Motion 
carried with Hover, Mackin, Maguire, Teichroew and 

3



Wildhaber voting aye. Mayor Frank and Councilor 
Hildebrandt were absent. 

 

F. COUNCILOR COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

Councilor Mackin inquired about the procedure for disposing of a deceased animal on the road. 
She requested assistance to register for the Elected Officials Essentials training. She RSVP’d for the 
City/County Dinner in Lafayette. 

Councilor Hover stated that there was a similar situation of a deceased animal by the bridge on 
HWY 221 and that he called Oregon State Police and OSP got Wildlife and Game involved. 

G. INFORMATION REPORTS 
1. TED Director 

Dave Rucklos, Tourism and Economic Development Director stated that with the first reading of 
the ordinance approving the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan today and the second reading set for 
the November 4th meeting, it put the City on track to capture the financial return on the current 
renovations of the merchant block in the URA. 

The footbridge will open on Friday, October 25, 2024, and the ribbon cutting would be moved to 
a later date, as final repairs need to be done to the approaches. 

The City is still waiting on a building permit from Newberg for the remodel of the bandstand. 

The parks master plan work has begun by the consultants.  

The community center is getting new hardwood in the auditorium and the risers will be removed 
for safety.  

Update on grants – the City has four grants under consideration, two with Travel Oregon, one with 
T-Mobile, and one with LLGP. 

Councilor Maguire inquired if the Vintages was notified of the opening of the footbridge. 

Council President inquired about the agreement with the Dayton Fire District on the Dayton Urban 
Renewal Plan. TED confirmed that there was an agreement made with the DFD. 

Councilor Mackin inquired if the $30,000 budget for the bandstand was enough to rebuild it.  She 
requested to include an ADA ramp for next year. 

TED stated that the bid came in at about $26,000 six months ago and hopes that it will stay near 
that when the renovation can be started. He also invited Councilor Mackin to look at the ramp 
attached to the Public Works modular to see if that is something that could be considered for the 
bandstand.  

 

4



H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Interim City Manager stated that the first Transportation System Plan PAC meeting will be Tuesday, 
October 22, 2024. 

The Comprehensive Housing Plan update open house will be held at the Community Center on 
Wednesday, October 23, 2024.  

The Library Halloween Party will be held Thursday, October 31, 2024, at the Community Center. 

I. ADJOURN

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:19pm. 

Respectfully submitted: APPROVED BY COUNCIL on November 4, 2024. 

By: ☐ As Written ☐ As Amended

Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 

_________________________________________ 

Annette Frank, Mayor 

5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

6



RESOLUTION NO. 2024/25-07 
City of Dayton 

A Resolution Approving a Contract for City Manager 

 

Whereas, the City of Dayton Charter explains the requirement for the City to have a City 
Manager; and 

Whereas, City Council has done a search for and found a candidate for the position; and 

Whereas, Jeremy Caudle has been identified as the City Manager Candidate through a 
selection process approved by the City Council; and 

Whereas, the City Council and Jeremy Caudle have negotiated the attached contract. 

 

THEREFORE, the City of Dayton resolves as follows: 

1) THAT the City Council does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign a contract 
substantially the same as the attached Exhibit A. 
 

2) THAT Jeremy Caudle be appointed as City Manager for the City of Dayton. 
 
 

3) THAT this resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

ADOPTED this 4th day of November 2024. 

In Favor: 

Opposed: 

Absent: 

Abstained: 

 

___________________________________________  _____________________ 
Annette Frank, Mayor     Date Signed 

 

Attest: 

 

___________________________________________  _______________________ 
Rocio Varas, City Recorder      Date of Enactment 

Attachment: Exhibit A 

7



{00917767; 2 } CITY OF DAYTON / CITY MANAGER CONTRACT 
Employment Contract - Page 1 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 
between 

THE CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON 
and 

JEREMY CAUDLE 

THIS EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT entered this 4th day of November, 2024 is between the CITY OF DAYTON, 
OREGON (CITY) and JEREMY CAUDLE (EMPLOYEE). 

FINDINGS 

A. CITY and EMPLOYEE desire a written contract creating a professional and businesslike relationship serving
as the basis for effective communication and to avoid misunderstandings, and

B. CITY and EMPLOYEE mutually agree as follows:

SECTION I. EMPLOYMENT, DUTIES AND AUTHORITY. 

A. CITY employs EMPLOYEE as City Manager and EMPLOYEE accepts this position.  EMPLOYEE understands
and agrees that he is an at-will employee and exempt from the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards
Act and its counterpart in Oregon law.

B. The authority of EMPLOYEE, consistent with state law, the Dayton City Charter and ordinances, includes the
following as set forth in Section 34 of the City Charter:
1. Attend all council meetings unless excused by the Mayor or Council; and
2. Make reports and recommendations to the Mayor and Council about the needs of the City; and
3. Administer and enforce all City ordinances, resolutions, franchises, leases, contracts, permits and other City

decisions; and
4. Appoint, supervise and remove city employees; and
5. Organize City departments and administrative structure; and
6. Prepare and administer the annual City budget; and
7. Administer City utilities and property; and
8. Encourage and support regional and intergovernmental cooperation; and
9. Promote cooperation among the council, staff and citizens in developing city policies and building a sense of

community; and
10. Perform other duties as directed by the council; and
11. Delegate duties but remain responsible for the acts of all subordinates.

C. The Mayor and other members of the City Council will direct concerns and communications about the City’s
administration through the City Manager.  EMPLOYEE will respond promptly to all inquiries from the Mayor
and City Council, whether made individually or collectively.

D. Except as otherwise provided by this Contract, CITY’S Employee Handbook and other personnel policies shall
govern EMPLOYEE’S employment with CITY. In case of conflict between this Contract and CITY’S Employee
Handbook and other personnel policies, this Contract shall prevail.

E. At all times, EMPLOYEE shall perform his duties in compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws,
rules, and regulations.

SECTION II. TERM. 

A. This Contract is effective December 16, 2024, (“Effective Date”) and shall expire two (2) years later. Prior to this
Contract’s expiration, CITY and EMPLOYEE may agree to renew this Contract for additional terms of two (2)
years each or as may otherwise be mutually agreed.

Exhibit A

8



 
 

{00917767; 2 } CITY OF DAYTON / CITY MANAGER CONTRACT  
Employment Contract - Page 2 
 

 
B. In the event that CITY chooses not to renew this Contract, CITY shall give EMPLOYEE 60 (sixty) days’ written 

notice prior to the expiration of the then-current term. If CITY decides not to renew this Contract upon its 
expiration, CITY shall pay severance to EMPLOYEE as specified in Section V. Should this Contract expire 
without renewal, neither party will have any further obligations or responsibilities under this Contract except for 
the severance payment under Section V and indemnification under Section XII(A). 
 

C. Nothing in this Contract prevents, limits, or otherwise interferes with the right of the CITY to terminate the 
services of EMPLOYEE at any time, subject only to the provisions below. 
 

D. Nothing in this Contract is meant to prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of EMPLOYEE to resign 
at any time from this position with CITY, subject only to the limitations below. 
 

E. EMPLOYEE agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of CITY during the term of this Contract. 
 
 
SECTION III.  TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE AND RESIGNATION. 
 
A. Termination Without Cause. EMPLOYEE serves at the pleasure of the City Council and the City Council may 

terminate his employment with the CITY at any time without cause prior to the expiration of this Contract. In 
the event that the EMPLOYEE is terminated without cause, the CITY shall pay severance as specified in 
Section V, less applicable withholdings as required by law. 
 

B. If CITY reduces the salary or other financial benefits of EMPLOYEE in greater percentage than applicable to 
all unclassified employees of CITY, or if EMPLOYEE resigns at the request of the City Council (for reasons 
other than those set out in Section IV), EMPLOYEE may deem this Contract involuntarily terminated without 
cause and become entitled to the severance payment consistent with Section V. 
 

C. If the City Council, citizens, or legislature amend any provisions of the City Charter, City ordinances, or 
legislation pertaining to the role, powers, duties, authority, and responsibilities of City Manager resulting in a 
substantial change in the form of government, then such amendments may constitute grounds for termination 
without cause at EMPLOYEE’s discretion. In such an event, EMPLOYEE may provide written notice of 
Termination Without Cause to the City Council, effective immediately upon delivery of such notice, and the 
CITY must honor such termination. 
 

D. If EMPLOYEE voluntarily resigns his position with CITY before expiration of this Contract, then EMPLOYEE 
must give CITY at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice in advance, and EMPLOYEE must be available 
to perform services for that period.  The City Council, however, has the discretion to decide whether 
EMPLOYEE will continue in the position during the notice period. EMPLOYEE shall be paid for the entire 30-
day notice period regardless of whether EMPLOYEE works during the 30-day notice period. 

 
SECTION IV.  TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. 
 
A. The purpose of this section is to outline the conditions under which CITY may terminate EMPLOYEE for 

cause, specifically in cases of serious misconduct that would make continued employment detrimental to 
CITY’s operations, integrity, or finances. This section does not apply to the good-faith exercise of managerial 
discretion, policy disagreements, or professional differences. 
 

B. If EMPLOYEE resigns in lieu of termination or if this Contract is terminated for cause, EMPLOYEE shall not 
be entitled to severance under Section V. 
 

C. CITY, at CITY’s sole discretion, may terminate this Contract for any of the following events immediately upon 
the conclusion of the process set forth in Section IV(D): 
 
1. EMPLOYEE’S  knowing violation of law, regulation, or written CITY policy. 

 

9



 
 

{00917767; 2 } CITY OF DAYTON / CITY MANAGER CONTRACT  
Employment Contract - Page 3 
 

2. CITY has reasonable cause to believe that EMPLOYEE has committed fraud, misappropriated CITY funds, 
goods, or services, or has committed other acts of serious misconduct that CITY believes are detrimental to 
CITY or its interest.  
 

3. CITY has reasonable cause to believe that EMPLOYEE engaged in conduct which, if criminally convicted, 
would be a Class B misdemeanor or higher under city, state, federal or international law. 
 

4. EMPLOYEE fails to faithfully or diligently perform his duties after CITY has provided written notice of 
EMPLOYEE’s performance deficiencies and EMPLOYEE has failed to cure the identified deficiencies 
within 30 days of receiving written notice.  
 

5. Abuse of authority by EMPLOYEE to achieve personal or financial gain. 
 
D. Termination for cause may occur only after following this process: 

 
1. The City Council adopts written allegations identifying specific instances of serious misconduct as defined 

above. 
 

2. The allegations shall specify the conduct, relevant dates and times, along with any available physical 
evidence. 
 

3. Written allegations shall be provided to EMPLOYEE, who shall have an opportunity to respond in writing 
before the City Council votes whether to terminate EMPLOYEE. 
 

4. After reviewing the allegations and EMPLOYEE’s response, the City Council shall vote whether to 
terminate EMPLOYEE.  

 
SECTION V. SEVERANCE  
 
A. If EMPLOYEE is terminated without cause, CITY shall provide a minimum severance payment equal to six (6) 

months’ base salary at the then current rate of pay, less all withholdings required by law. This severance shall 
be paid in a lump sum or in a continuation of salary payable in installments at the same time that the other 
Department Heads of CITY are paid, at EMPLOYEE’s option. EMPLOYEE shall also be compensated for all 
accrued vacation leave.  
 

B. If EMPLOYEE is terminated without cause, the CITY shall continue to provide EMPLOYEE’s health 
insurance benefits for a period of six (6) months following the termination date or until EMPLOYEE secures 
comparable health coverage through new employment, whichever occurs first. If the CITY's health insurance 
plan offers post-separation coverage, EMPLOYEE shall be entitled to remain on the CITY’s plan under the 
terms described above. If the CITY’s health plan does not offer post-separation coverage, CITY shall reimburse 
EMPLOYEE for COBRA premiums or for the cost of purchasing comparable health insurance through the 
Oregon Health Insurance Marketplace, up to the same amount CITY was contributing toward EMPLOYEE’s 
health insurance premiums immediately prior to termination. This reimbursement shall continue for a period of 
six (6) months or until EMPLOYEE secures alternative coverage, whichever occurs first. 
 

C. If EMPLOYEE is terminated without cause during the sixty (60) day period immediately following either the 
seating and swearing-in of one or more new City Council members or a City election, then CITY shall pay the 
EMPLOYEE's salary and benefits for any portion of the sixty (60) days EMPLOYEE has not worked, in 
addition to the severance payable according to Sections V(A) and V(B). This additional payment shall not 
reduce, offset, or be credited against the six (6) months' severance to which EMPLOYEE is entitled under 
Sections V(A) and V(B). The payments under this sub-section and Sections V(A) and V(B) are cumulative and 
distinct. 

 
SECTION VI.  SALARY, PAID LEAVE, AND RELOCATION  
 
A. Base Salary.  Commencing on the Effective Date, CITY agrees to pay EMPLOYEE an annual base salary of 

10



 
 

{00917767; 2 } CITY OF DAYTON / CITY MANAGER CONTRACT  
Employment Contract - Page 4 
 

$108,100 payable in installments at the same time that the other Department Heads of CITY are paid.  If CITY 
Department Heads receive Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) to their salaries, EMPLOYEE is entitled to 
COLA adjustments at the same rate. 

 
B. Paid Vacation Leave.  EMPLOYEE will accrue paid vacation at the rate established for other similarly situated 

City employees consistent with the provisions of CITY’s most current Personnel Policies/Handbook.  
 
C. Paid Management Leave. EMPLOYEE will receive eight (8) hours paid management leave every month. 

Management leave will not carryover at the end of each fiscal year. No payment will be made by CITY to 
EMPLOYEE for any paid management leave upon termination of employment.  
 

D. Holidays.  EMPLOYEE will receive the same holiday benefits established for other Department Heads City 
employees consistent with the provisions of CITY’s most current Personnel Policies/Handbook. 

 
E. Sick Leave.  EMPLOYEE will accrue paid sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per month.  No payment will 

be made by CITY to EMPLOYEE for any sick leave upon termination of employment. 
 

F. The CITY shall pay EMPLOYEE a lump sum payment of $5,000 to cover relocation expenses incurred in 
moving to assume the position of City Manager. This lump sum shall be payable within 30 days of the 
execution of this Contract. 

 
SECTION VII.  RETIREMENT, HEALTH, DISABILITY AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS. 
 
A. Retirement.  CITY will pay both the employer and employee contributions into the Oregon Public Employees 

Retirement System (PERS) at the same percentage of salary contributed for CITY’s other Department Heads.   
 

B. Health Insurance.  CITY will provide coverage and make required premium payments for EMPLOYEE and 
dependents for comprehensive medical, dental and vision plans consistent with that paid for CITY Department 
Heads. 

 
SECTION VIII.  PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EXPENSE. 
 
A. CITY encourages the professional growth and development of EMPLOYEE and encourages participation, as he 

deems appropriate, in professional associations, short courses, seminars and conferences, including membership 
in the Oregon City County Management Association (OCCMA) and the League of Oregon Cities (LOC).  As 
long as the City Council approves funds in CITY’s budget, CITY agrees to pay the requisite membership fees, 
registration fees, and travel expenses, associated with these professional development activities and to permit a 
reasonable about of time for EMPLOYEE to attend courses, seminars or conferences. CITY expects 
EMPLOYEE to attend the LOC Annual Conference. EMPLOYEE may attend the ICMA Northwest Regional 
Conference and OCCMA Summer Conference as long as the Council approves the funds in the CITY’s budget.  
The CITY will permit a reasonable amount of time for EMPLOYEE to attend, and CITY will pay for the direct 
costs necessary for travel, subsistence and registration subject to reasonable availability of funds and as 
approved in the annual budget. 

 
B. CITY acknowledges the value of having EMPLOYEE participate and be directly involved in local civic clubs 

or professional organizations.  Accordingly, CITY shall pay for the reasonable membership fees and/or dues to 
enable EMPLOYEE to become an active member in local civic clubs and professional organizations. 

 
SECTION IX. AUTOMOBILE AND CELL PHONE. 
 
A. If EMPLOYEE uses his personal vehicle on CITY business, CITY will pay monthly vehicle expense 

reimbursement at the current IRS auto allowance rate. 
 

B. CITY will provide a cell phone with a City-paid plan consistent with that paid for CITY Department Heads or 
EMPLOYEE may choose to receive a monthly cell phone stipend of $50 toward a personal phone and plan.  

 

11



 
 

{00917767; 2 } CITY OF DAYTON / CITY MANAGER CONTRACT  
Employment Contract - Page 5 
 

SECTION X.  GOAL-SETTING AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. 
 
A. The Mayor and City Council will promptly and constructively direct all substantial concerns to EMPLOYEE 

either through informal discussions with EMPLOYEE or more formally.   
 

B. CITY shall annually review the performance of EMPLOYEE, and the first performance review must occur before 
December 1, 2025.  CITY may, at its discretion, preform an initial performance evaluation within the first six 
months of EMPLOYEE’S employment with CITY.  
 

C. The annual performance review process shall, at a minimum, include the opportunity for CITY and EMPLOYEE 
to:  
 
1. prepare a written evaluation; 

  
2. meet and discuss the evaluation; and 

 
3. present a written summary of the evaluation results. 

 
D. The final written evaluation shall be completed and delivered to EMPLOYEE within thirty (30) days of the 

evaluation meeting.  
 

E. Unless EMPLOYEE expressly requests otherwise in writing, the evaluation of EMPLOYEE shall always be 
conducted in executive session of the City Council. The evaluation process and evaluation results shall be 
considered confidential to the extent permitted by law. Nothing in this Contract shall prohibit the CITY or 
EMPLOYEE from sharing the content of EMPLOYEE’S evaluation with their respective legal counsel. 
 

F. If the City Council decides to modify the evaluation criteria, then any changes that introduce new or different 
performance expectations shall be communicated to EMPLOYEE in writing. EMPLOYEE shall be provided 
with at least ninety (90) days to adapt to and demonstrate performance under the new expectations. 
 

G. At every annual evaluation, City Council shall consider an additional salary increase for EMPLOYEE beyond 
EMPLOYEE’S cost-of-living increase provided in Section VI.A of this Contract. 

 
SECTION XI.  FLEXIBLE WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
A. CITY acknowledges that EMPLOYEE may need to dedicate substantial time outside of standard working hours 

to fulfill CITY’s business needs. In recognition of this, CITY authorizes EMPLOYEE to use a flexible work 
schedule, at his discretion, allowing for the management of personal matters without the need to utilize vacation 
or sick time. This flexibility permits EMPLOYEE to adjust his work hours as necessary, with the understanding 
that EMPLOYEE must fulfill the responsibilities and expectations of his role effectively and in a timely 
manner. Whenever EMPLOYEE exercises this flexible work schedule, he must keep CITY’s administrative 
staff informed of his adjusted hours. 

 
SECTION XII.  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
A. Professional Liability.  CITY will defend, hold harmless and indemnify EMPLOYEE from any and all demands, 

claims, suits, actions and legal proceedings brought against EMPLOYEE in his individual capacity, or in his 
official capacity as agent and employee of CITY, consistent with the terms of the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 
30.260 to 30.300). CITY shall indemnify EMPLOYEE even after EMPLOYEE’S employment has ended, so long 
as EMPLOYEE’S alleged act or omission occurred during the term of EMPLOYEE’S employment. 

 
B. Nothing restricts the ability of CITY and EMPLOYEE to amend or adjust the terms of this Contract.  However, 

no amendment or adjustment will be valid unless in writing and signed by both CITY and EMPLOYEE.  
EMPLOYEE reserves the right to discuss the terms of this Contract with the City Council in either closed 
Executive Session or open Regular Session as state law allows. 

 

12



 
 

{00917767; 2 } CITY OF DAYTON / CITY MANAGER CONTRACT  
Employment Contract - Page 6 
 

C. Bonding.  CITY shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of EMPLOYEE under any law or 
ordinance. 

 
D. Mediation.   Should any dispute arise between CITY and EMPLOYEE regarding the terms of this Contract, the 

parties shall first discuss the matter informally and if not resolved during those discussions, the dispute shall be 
submitted to a mediator prior to any arbitration thereon.  Mediation must commence within thirty (30) days of the 
act or event giving rise to the dispute.  The parties will exercise good faith to select a mediator. CITY shall cover 
the upfront costs of mediation, including the mediator's fees and any associated administrative costs. However, 
following the mediation, costs may be reallocated between the parties based on the mediation outcome and each 
party’s conduct during the process. Mediation will be conducted in Yamhill County unless both parties agree 
otherwise.  Both parties will exercise good-faith efforts to resolve disputes covered by this section through this 
mediation process.  If either party requests mediation and the other party fails to respond within ten (10) days, or 
if the parties fail to agree on a mediator within ten (10) days, a mediator will be appointed by the presiding judge 
of the Yamhill County Circuit Court upon request of either party.  

 
E. Arbitration. In the event of a dispute between EMPLOYEE and CITY concerning the interpretation or application 

of the terms of this Contract, and if such dispute is not resolved through the mandatory mediation process outlined 
in subsection (D), the parties agree to resolve the dispute exclusively through binding arbitration. Arbitration shall 
be conducted in accordance with the then-effective rules of the Arbitration Service of Portland, Inc. (ASP). Either 
CITY or EMPLOYEE may initiate arbitration by filing a Statement of Claim in compliance with ASP rules, no 
later than ninety (90) days following the conclusion of mediation. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and 
binding on both parties. Judgment on the award rendered in arbitration may be entered in any court with proper 
jurisdiction. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses 
related to the arbitration, including costs for witnesses and depositions, from the non-prevailing party. 
 

F. The failure of either Party to enforce any provision of this Contract shall not be construed as a waiver of such 
provision or the right to enforce it thereafter. Any waiver of any provision of this Contract must be in writing and 
signed by the Party waiving the provision to be effective. A waiver of any provision on one occasion shall not be 
deemed to be a waiver of such provision on any other occasion or a waiver of any other provision of this Contract. 

 
G. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and personal representatives of 

EMPLOYEE’S estate. 
 
H. Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire Contract between the parties and supersedes all prior written or 

oral discussions or Contracts. 
 
I. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is held unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 

of this Contract is severable, not affected, and remains in effect. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor signs this Contract on behalf of the CITY OF DAYTON, OREGON, and 
JEREMY CAUDLE signs this Contract on his own behalf. Two (2) original copies will be executed with one (1) 
original being retained by each party. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________    __________________________ 
Annette Frank       Jeremy Caudle  
Mayor       Employee  
Dayton, Oregon 
 
________________________    ________________________ 
Date       Date 
 

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

14



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:  Dave Rucklos – TED Director 
 
Issue:  Approving Resolution 2024/25-06 Concurring with Urban Renewal Plan 

to Include Public Building Projects 
 
Date:  November 4, 2024 
  
 
Background and Information 
 
Objective:   
 
To adopt a resolution concurring with support of public building projects as outlined in the 
City of Dayton’s Urban Renewal Plan (URP).     
 
Explanation: 
 
The City of Dayton has established an Urban Renewal Agency (URA) to manage a proposed 
25-year District plan.  Because the URP includes several public building projects, a resolution 
must be approved to authorize use of funds for such purpose.  
 
City staff would like the council to approve the resolution to meet legal requirements of 
adopting the URP as outlined. 
 
City Manager Recommendation: I recommend approval.  
 
Potential Motion: “I move to approve Resolution a Resolution 2024/25-06 Concurring with 
the Inclusion of a Public Building project in the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan”. 
 
City Council Options: 
 
1 – Approve as recommended.  
2 – Approve with amendments. 
3 –Take no action and ask staff to do more research and bring further options back to the City 
Council. 
 
 
 
 

15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

16



RESOLUTION NO. 2024/25-06 
CITY OF DAYTON 

 
A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF DAYTON CONCURRING WITH THE 

INCLUSION OF A PUBLIC BUILDING PROJECT IN THE DAYTON URBAN 
RENEWAL PLAN  

 
WHEREAS, the Dayton Municipal Code contains Chapter 1.19 creating an Urban Renewal 
Agency (“Agency”); 
 
WHEREAS, the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency pursuant to the requirements of ORS 
Chapter 457 prepared the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (“Plan”) reviewed by the Agency 
on May 6, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section V of the Plan authorizes certain project activities within the Dayton 
Urban Renewal Area; and  
 
WHEREAS, these projects include funding for improvements to the Dayton Fire station or 
Dayton Fire District capital equipment and for recreation facilities for the Dayton School 
District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fire District project is considered a public building project under ORS 
457.010(12)(a)(A) and the interpretation of ORS 457.010 (12(b)F) is that the School District 
project is not defined as a public building project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the inclusion of a public building project requires concurrence of taxing 
districts in accordance with ORS 457.089; and 
 
WHEREAS, these public projects are described in Section V of Exhibit A, Dayton Urban 
Renewal Plan and Exhibit B, Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing body of taxing districts representing three of the four taxing 
districts who are estimated to forego the most property tax revenue must concur with this 
expenditure of funds for a public building project as required by ORS 457.089(3); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Agency has requested concurrence from the City of Dayton, the Dayton 
School District, Yamhill County and the Dayton Fire District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dayton concurs with the inclusion of the public building projects 
for improvements to the Dayton Fire District station or Dayton Fire District capital 
equipment and for recreation facilities for the Dayton School District in the Dayton Urban 
Renewal Plan; 
 
THEREFORE, The City Of Dayton resolves as follows: 
 
1)  THAT the recitals of this resolution are adopted as additional findings and are 
incorporated herein as if fully set forth.  
 

17



 
2)  THAT the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will enter into intergovernmental 
agreements with the Dayton Fire District describing the terms of the funding for the 
Dayton Fire District and with the Dayton School District describing the terms of the 
funding for the Dayton School District. 

 
3)  THAT this resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 4th day of November 2024. 

In Favor: 

Opposed: 

Absent: 

Abstained: 

 

___________________________________________  _____________________ 
Annette Frank, Mayor     Date Signed 

 

Attest: 

 

___________________________________________  _______________________ 
Rocio Varas, City Recorder      Date of Enactment 

 

Attachments:  

Exhibit A. Dayton Urban Renewal Plan  
Exhibit B. Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan 

18



 

Dayton Urban Renewal Plan 
 

 

 

 

Adopted by the City of Dayton 

November 4, 2024 

Ordinance No. 664 

 
 

  

19



If Amendments are made to the Plan, the Resolution or Ordinance Number, date and a brief summary 
will be listed here. The amendment will be incorporated into the Plan and noted through a footnote. 

 

 

 

 

  

20



LIST OF PARTICIPANTS 
 

City Council  

Mayor Annette Frank  
Council President Luke Wildhaber  
Jim Maguire  
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Kitty Mackin 
Scott Hover 
Chris Teichroew 
 
Dayton Urban Renewal Agency  

Jim Maguire, Chair  
Annette Frank, Vice-Chair 
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Kitty Mackin 
Luke Wildhaber 
Scott Hover 
Chris Teichroew 

Planning Commission  

Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson 
Dave Mackin, Vice Chairperson 
Tim Parsons 
Rob Hallyburton 
Katelyn Weber Van Genderen 
 
  

 

  

City of Dayton Staff 

Interim City Manager, Cyndi Park 
Director of Tourism and Economic Development, 
Dave Rucklos  
City Recorder, Rocio Vargas 
 
Consulting Team  

Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC 

Elaine Howard 
Scott Vanden Bos 

Tiberius Solutions LLC 

Nick Popenuk 
Ali Danko 
 

Margaret Raimann 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

21



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

I. DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................................ 1 

II. INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 3 

III. MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS ......................................................................................................... 6 

IV. PLAN GOALS ................................................................................................................................. 6 

V. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS ........................................................................................................ 8 

VI. AMENDMENTS TO PLAN ............................................................................................................ 10 

VII. PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION.............................................................................. 11 

VIII. RELOCATION METHODS ............................................................................................................. 12 

IX. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OF PLAN ...................................................................................... 13 

X. VALIDITY ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

XI. ANNUAL REPORT ....................................................................................................................... 14 

XII. RELATIONSHIP TO LOCAL OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................... 15 

 

22



I. DEFINITIONS 

“Agency ” means the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency. This Dayton Urban Renewal Agency is responsible 
for administration of the urban renewal plan. 

“Area” means the properties and rights-of-way located within the Dayton Urban Renewal Boundary. 

“Blight” is defined in ORS 457.010(1)(A-E) and identified in the ordinance adopting the urban renewal 
plan.  

“Board of Commissioners” means the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners.  

“City” means the City of Dayton, Oregon.  

“City Council” or “Council” means the Dayton City Council. 

“Comprehensive Plan” means the City of Dayton comprehensive land use plan and its implementing 
ordinances, policies, and standards.  

“County” means Yamhill County, Oregon.  

“Fiscal year ending” means the year commencing on July 1 of one year and closing on June 30 of the 
next year. 

“Frozen base” means the total assessed value including all real, personal, manufactured, and utility 
values within an urban renewal area at the time of adoption. The County Assessor certifies the assessed 
value after the adoption of an urban renewal plan.  

“Increment” means that part of the assessed value of a taxing district attributable to any increase in the 
assessed value of the property located in an urban renewal area, or portion thereof, over the assessed 
value specified in the certified statement. 

“Maximum indebtedness” means the amount of the principal of indebtedness included in a plan 
pursuant to ORS 457.190 and does not include indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing 
indebtedness. 

“ORS” means Oregon Revised Statutes. Chapter 457 specifically relates to urban renewal. 

“Planning Commission” means the Dayton Planning Commission.  

“Revenue sharing” means under-levying tax increment proceeds to effectively share a portion of the 
revenue with the other taxing districts that levy permanent rate taxes in the urban renewal area as 
defined in ORS 457.470. 

“Tax increment financing (TIF)” is a method of funding urban renewal projects and programs through 
incurring debt that is repaid by the division of taxes accomplished through the adoption of an urban 
renewal plan.  

“Tax increment finance revenues” means the funds allocated by the assessor to an urban renewal area 
due to increases in assessed value over the frozen base within the area.  

23



“Urban renewal area” or “URA” means a blighted area included in an urban renewal plan or an area 
included in an urban renewal plan under ORS 457.160. 

“Urban renewal plan” or “Plan” means a plan, as it exists or is changed or modified from time to time, 
for one or more urban renewal areas, as provided in ORS 457.085, 457.095, 457.105, 457.115, 457.120, 
457.125, 457.135 and 457.220. 

“Urban renewal project” or “Project” means any work or undertaking carried out under ORS 457 in an 
urban renewal area. 

“Urban renewal report” or “Report” means the official report that accompanies the urban renewal plan 
pursuant to ORS 457.087.  

  

24



II. INTRODUCTION  

A. Background 

Dayton Forward, A Vision for the Future (Dayton Forward), was prepared for the Dayton Community 
Development Association in 2012. Since that time, the City of Dayton has used the Dayton Forward plan 
guidelines and action items as guidelines for the future development of downtown Dayton. One of the 
recommended Next Steps in the Dayton Forward plan was to seek funding for a significant package of 
infrastructure. Other recommended actions in the Dayton Forward plan require funding that is not 
available in the City of Dayton budget. Urban renewal, with its associated tax increment financing, is a 
financing tool that can assist the city with the implementation of the Dayton Forward plan and create a 
vibrant downtown for its residents and visitors.  

Opportunities for public involvment in the preparation of the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan included:   

• City Council Urban Renewal 101, October 2, 2023 

• City Council consideration of ordiance for establishing urban renewal agency March 4, 2024,  
April 3, 2024  

• Dayton Urban Renewal Agency meeting on May 6, 2024 

• Planning Commission meeting on June 20, 2024 

• City Council public hearing on July 15, 2024 which was noticed to all utility customers in the City 
of Dayton via the utility bills. 

• City Council 1st reading of the ordinance considering adopting the URA Plan on October 21, 
2024. 

• City Council 2nd reading of the ordinance and adoption of the URA Plan on November 4, 2024. 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Plan Area (Area), shown in Figure 1, consists of approximately 133.2 acres. It 
is anticipated that the Plan will take twenty five years (25) of tax increment collections to implement, 
although there is no duration provision in this Plan. The maximum amount of indebtedness that may be 
issued for the Plan is Twenty-Nine Million Four Hundred Thousand dollars ($29,400,000). Detailed 
financial analysis is in the Report accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan. 

Goals and objectives developed for the Plan are intended to guide tax increment finance (TIF) revenue 
investment in the Area over the life of the Plan. The project category descriptions and list of projects are 
similarly intended to aid future decision makers when considering how best to expend TIF revenue.  

The relationship between the sections of the Plan and the ORS 457.085 requirements is shown in Table 
1. The specific reference in the table is the section of this Plan that primarily addresses the statutory 
reference. There may be other sections of the Plan that also address the statute. 

  

25



Table 1 - Statutory References 

Statutory Requirement  Plan Section 
ORS 457.085(2)(a) V 
ORS 457.085(2)(b) V 
ORS 457.085(2)(c) XIII 
ORS 457.085(2)(d) XII 
ORS 457.085(2)(e) XII 
ORS 457.085(2)(f) VIII 
ORS 457.085(2)(g) VII 
ORS 457.085(2)(h) III 
ORS 457.085(2)(i) VI 
ORS 457.085(2)(j) V 

 

B. Urban Renewal Overview 

Urban renewal allows for the use of tax increment financing, a funding source that is unique to urban 
renewal, to fund its projects. Tax increment revenues - the amount of property taxes generated by the 
increase in total assessed values in the urban renewal area from the time the urban renewal area is first 
established - are used to repay borrowed funds. The borrowed funds are used to pay for urban renewal 
projects and cannot exceed the maximum indebtedness amount set by the urban renewal plan.  

The purpose of urban renewal is to improve specific areas of a city that are poorly developed or 
underdeveloped, called blighted areas in Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 457.010. These areas can have 
deteriorated buildings, changing uses, streets and utilities in poor condition, a complete lack of streets 
and utilities altogether, or other obstacles to development.  

In general, urban renewal projects can include construction or improvement of streets, utilities, and 
other public facilities; assistance for rehabilitation or redevelopment of property; acquisition and re-sale 
of property (site assembly) from willing sellers; and improvements to public spaces including parks and 
open spaces. This Area meets the definition of blight due to the condition of the buildings, changing uses 
in the Area, utility infrastructure deficiencies, and underdeveloped and undeveloped properties. These 
blighted conditions are specifically cited in the ordinance adopting the Plan and described in detail in the 
Report Accompanying the Plan (Report). 

  

26



The Report contains the information required by ORS 457.087, including:  

• A description of the physical, social, and economic conditions in the Area and expected 
impact of the plan, including fiscal impact in light of increased services; (ORS 457.087(1)) 

• Reasons for selection of the plan Area; (ORS 457.087(2)) 
• The relationship between each project to be undertaken and the existing conditions; (ORS 

457.087(3)) 
• The estimated total cost of each project and the source of funds to pay such costs; (ORS 

457.087(4)) 
• The estimated completion date of each project; (ORS 457.087(5))The estimated amount of 

funds required in the Area and the anticipated year in which the debt will be retired; (ORS 
457.087(6)) 

• A financial analysis of the plan; (ORS 457.087(7)) 
• A fiscal impact statement that estimates the impact of tax increment financing (TIF) upon 

all entities levying taxes upon property in the urban renewal area; (ORS 457.0857(8)) and 
• A relocation report.(ORS 457.087(9)) 

  

27



III. MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS 

Maximum indebtedness is the amount of indebtedness secured by a pledge of tax increment revenue 
that can be spent on projects, programs and administration throughout the life of the Plan. The 
maximum amount of indebtedness that may be issued or incurred under the Plan, based upon good 
faith estimates of the scope and costs of projects in the Plan and the schedule for their completion is 
Twenty-Nine Million Four Hundred Thousand dollars ($29,400,000). This amount is the principal of such 
indebtedness and does not include interest or indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing 
indebtedness or interest earned on bond or loan proceeds.  

IV. PLAN GOALS 

The goals of the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan are listed below. The urban renewal plan is an 
implementation tool to enable the city to undertake projects for which there are no other funding 
sources or are limited funding sources.   

The goals of the Plan represent its basic intents and purposes.  These goals come from the Dayton 
Forward A Vision for the Future Plan. The urban renewal projects identified in Section V of the Plan are 
the specific means of meeting the goals. The goals will be pursued as they become economically feasible 
and at the discretion of the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency. The goals are not listed in any order of 
importance or priority. A matrix of how the projects align with the goals is shown in Table 2. 

A.  Develop and maintain resilient infrastructure to support operations and meet growth.  

B.  Create a livable community that is aesthetically pleasing, affordable, inviting, and with a vibrant 
and diverse economy.  

C. Capitalize on Dayton’s facilities and resources to provide recreational and cultural opportunities. 

D. Use Dayton’s heritage and historic resources to forward our image as an authentic and charming 
town. 

 

Table 2 – Relationship of Projects to Dayton Urban Renewal Plan Goals 

Project Category    
Recreation Improvements    B, C, D 
Downtown Streetscape  B,D 
Building Façade Grant Program  B,D 
Taxing District Partnerships  A,B 
Infrastructure (streets and utilities) A 
Development and Redevelopment  B,D 
Administration & staffing  All 

 

  

28



Figure 1 – Dayton Urban Renewal Plan Area Boundary  

 
Source: Tiberius Solutions  

  

29



V. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS   

Urban renewal projects authorized by the Plan are described below. They are not listed in any priority 
order. The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will determine the order of the projects and may add and 
remove projects in the future through the amendment process defined in Section VI of this Plan. The 
projects identified for the Area are described below, including how they relate to the existing conditions 
in the Area.  

A. Recreation/Public Space Improvements  

      Install recreation and park improvements including but not limited to:  
• Dayton Landing   
• Courthouse Square Park Enhancement  
• Legion Field  
• 11th Street Park  
• Alderman Park 
• Brookside Cemetery  

B. Downtown Streetscape Improvements  

Install streetscape improvements including but not limited to:  
• Ornate lighting installation 
• Bicycle racks  
• Benches 
• Signage  
• Street trees 

C. Building Façade Grant Program  

Create a building façade grant program to improve the buildings in the Area.  

D. Taxing District Partnerships  

Work with taxing districts to identify projects that will assist them in providing services to the Area.  

Dayton Fire District: provide funding up to $2.88 million dollars calculated annually at a rate of 
7.946 percent of the Agency’s tax receipts for the Area for the purchase of capital equipment or for 
capital improvements to the Fire District station. The Improvements to the fire station serve and 
benefit the Area by being able to provide fire protection services to the Area and to the proposed 
redevelopment and new development in the Area. The Agency will enter into an intergovernmental 
agreement with the Dayton Fire District for the provision of capital improvements in the Area. 

Dayton School District: provide funding up to one million dollars calculated annually at a rate of 
2.76 percent of the Agency’s tax receipts for the Area for recreational improvements at the Dayton 
High School. The assistance to the Dayton School District serves and benefits the Area by providing 
additional facilities to the school district to help with the education of the residents of Dayton, 
encouraging the existing residents to keep their children in Dayton schools and showing the city’s 
commitment to the school district to help encourage other families to move to Dayton. The Agency 

30



will enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Dayton School District for the provision of 
capital improvements in the Area. 

The Fire Station project is deemed to be a public building project pursuant to the definition of a 
public building in the 2024 edition of ORS 457.010(12)(a)(A)1 and must be approved by at least 
three of the four taxing districts that are estimated to forgo the most property tax revenue as 
computed in the report accompanying the proposed plan (ORS 457.089(3)).  

The Fire District project and the School District project, even though the interpretation is that  it is 
defined as not a public building project in ORS 457.089(12)(b)(F)2, have received concurrence from 
the Dayton City Council, the Dayton Fire District and the Dayton School District. The resolutions of 
concurrence are attached to the City Council ordinance adopting the Plan. 

E. Public Infrastructure  

Provide for infrastructure upgrades including but not limited to: 

• Sewer and Water Line Extension and Upgrades 
• Street Paving, Overlay and Repair as allowed  
• Water Pressure Upgrades 
• Sewer Pond Addition 

F. Redevelopment and Development  

Provide development support including but not limited to: 

• Upgrading existing buildings  
• Providing incentives for development  in the Area, including the development of workforce 

housing 

G. Administration & staffing  

Authorizes expenditures for the administrative costs associated with managing the Area including 
but not liited to budgeting and annual reporting, planning and the implementation of projects in 
the Area.  

  

1 ORS 457.010(12)(a)(A).1  “Public building” means: (A) A fire station, police station, public library, public hospital, 
capitol building, school as defined in ORS 339.315, college, university, city hall or the residence of any state official 
elected by the state at large. 

2 ORS 457.010(12)(b)F) “Public building” does not mean: Park and recreation facilities, including sports fields. 

31



VI. AMENDMENTS TO PLAN 

The Plan may be amended as described in this section. Adding other properties to the Developer 
Incentives Program does not require an amendment to the Plan.   

A. Substantial Amendments 

Substantial Amendments, in accordance with ORS 457.085(2)(i), shall require the same notice, hearing, 
and approval procedure required of the original Plan, under ORS 457.095, including public involvement, 
consultation with taxing districts, presentation to the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency, the Planning 
Commission, the County, and adoption by the City Council by non-emergency ordinance after a hearing. 
Notice of such hearing shall be provided to individuals or households within the City of Dayton, as 
required by ORS 457.120. Notice of adoption of a Substantial Amendment shall be provided in 
accordance with ORS 457.095 and 457.115.  

Substantial Amendments are amendments that:3 

1. Add land to the urban renewal area, except for an addition of land that totals not more than a 
cumulative 1% of the existing area of the urban renewal area; or  

2. Increase the maximum amount of indebtedness that can be issued or incurred under the 
Plan. 

B. Minor Amendments 

Minor Amendments are amendments that are not Substantial Amendments as defined in this Plan and 
in ORS 457. Minor Amendments require approval by the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency by resolution.  

C. Amendments to the Dayton Comprehensive Plan and/or the Dayton Land Use an Development 
Code  

Amendments to the Dayton Comprehensive Plan and/or the Dayton Land Use and Development Code 
that affect the Plan and/or the Area shall be incorporated automatically within the Plan without any 
separate action required by the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency or City Council. If a Substantial 
Amendment is prepared, the Section of this Plan on Relationship to Local Objectives should be updated.   

  

3 Unless otherwise permitted by state law, no land equal to more than 20 percent of the total land area of the original Plan shall be added to the 
urban renewal area by amendments, and the aggregate amount of all amendments increasing the maximum indebtedness may not exceed 20 
percent of the Plan’s initial maximum indebtedness, as adjusted, as provided by law and by concurrence provisions in ORS 457.470. 

32



 

VII. PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION 

The Plan authorizes the acquisition and disposition of property as described in this section. Property 
includes any and all interests in property, including fee simple ownership, lease, easements, licenses, or 
other rights to use. If property is acquired it will be identified in the Plan through a Minor Amendment, 
as described in Section VII. Identification of property to be acquired and its anticipated disposition is 
required by ORS 457.085(g). If property acquisition includes a public building, how that public building 
serves and benefits the Area must be identified per ORS 457.085(2)(j). 

A. Property acquisition for public improvements 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency may acquire any property within the Area for the public 
improvement projects undertaken pursuant to the Plan by all legal means, including use of eminent 
domain. Good faith negotiations for such acquisitions must occur prior to institution of eminent domain 
procedures.  

B. Property acquisition from willing sellers 

The Plan authorizes Dayton Urban Renewal Agency acquisition of any interest in property within the 
Area that the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency finds is necessary for private redevelopment, but only in 
those cases where the property owner wishes to convey such interest to the Dayton Urban Renewal 
Agency. The Plan does not authorize the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency to use the power of eminent 
domain to acquire property from a private party to transfer property to another private party for private 
redevelopment. Property acquisition from willing sellers may be required to support development of 
projects within the Area.  

C. Land disposition 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will dispose of property acquired for a public improvement project 
by conveyance to the appropriate public Dayton Urban Renewal Agency responsible for the construction 
and/or maintenance of the public improvement. The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency may retain such 
property during the construction of the public improvement. 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency may dispose of property acquired under Subsection B of this Section 
VIII by conveying any interest in property acquired. Property shall be conveyed at its fair reuse value. Fair 
reuse value is the value, whether expressed in terms of rental or capital price, at which the urban 
renewal Dayton Urban Renewal Agency , in its discretion, determines such land should be made 
available in order that it may be developed, redeveloped, cleared, conserved, or rehabilitated for the 
purposes specified in the Plan. Because fair reuse value reflects limitations on the use of the property to 
those purposes specified in the Plan, the value may be lower than the property’s fair market value. 

Where land is sold or leased, the purchaser or lessee must agree to use the land for the purposes 
designated in the Plan and to begin and complete the building of its improvements within a period of 
time that the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency determines is reasonable. 

D. Properties to be acquired  

33



This Plan must provide an indication of which real property may be acquired and the anticipated 
disposition of said real property whether by retention, resale, lease or other legal use, together with an 
estimated time schedule for such acquisition and disposition. This may be added at a date when the 
property is identified and may be added through a Minor Amendment.  

The Agency intends to work with Yamhill County on the acquisition of Dayton Landing.  

VIII. RELOCATION METHODS 

When the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency acquires occupied property under the Plan, residential or 
commercial occupants of such property shall be offered relocation assistance, as required under 
applicable state law. Prior to such acquisition, the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency shall adopt rules and 
regulations, as necessary, for the administration of relocation assistance. The Dayton Urban Renewal 
Agency will comply with all applicable state law in providing these potential benefits. 

There are plans to acquire land for infrastructure which may trigger relocation benefits in the future in 
the Area. All acquisitions will be reviewed for potential relocation benefits.  

 
  

34



IX. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OF PLAN 

Tax increment financing consists of using annual tax increment revenues to make payments on debt, 
usually in the form of bank loans or revenue bonds. The proceeds of the debt are used to finance the 
urban renewal projects authorized in the Plan. Debt may be either long-term or short-term.  

Tax increment revenues equal most of the annual property taxes imposed on the cumulative increase in 
assessed value within an urban renewal area over the frozen base value (i.e., total assessed value at the 
time an urban renewal plan is adopted). The property taxes for general obligation (GO) bonds and local 
option levies approved after October 6, 2001, are not part of the tax increment revenues.  

A. General description of the proposed financing methods 

The Plan will be financed using a combination of revenue sources. These include: 

• Tax increment revenues; 
• Advances, loans, grants, and any other form of financial assistance from federal, state, or 

local governments, or other public bodies; 
• Loans, grants, dedications, or other contributions from private developers and property 

owners, including, but not limited to, assessment districts; and 
• Any other public or private source. 

Revenues obtained by the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will be used to pay or repay the costs, 
expenses, advancements, and indebtedness incurred in (1) planning or undertaking project activities, or 
(2) otherwise exercising any of the powers granted by ORS Chapter 457 in connection with the 
implementation of this Plan, including costs associated with the preparation of the Plan. 

B. Tax increment financing 

The Plan may be financed, in whole or in part, by tax increment revenues allocated to the Dayton Urban 
Renewal Agency , as provided in ORS Chapter 457. The ad valorem taxes, if any, levied by a taxing district 
in which all or a portion of the Area is located, shall be divided as provided in Section 1c, Article IX of the 
Oregon Constitution, and ORS 457.440. Amounts collected pursuant to ORS 457.440 shall be deposited 
into the unsegregated tax collections account and distributed to the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency 
based upon the distribution schedule established under ORS 311.390. 

X. VALIDITY 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction find any work, clause, sentence, section or part of this Plan to 
be invalid, the remaining words, clauses, sentences, sections or parts shall be unaffected by such findings 
and shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Plan. 

  

35



XI. ANNUAL REPORT  

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency shall file an Annual Financial Statement in compliance with ORS 
457.460. 

Figure 2 - Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Designations 

 
Source: Tiberius Solutions  

 

36



XII. RELATIONSHIP TO LOCAL OBJECTIVES  

ORS 457.085 requires that the Plan conform to local objectives including the comprehensive plan and 
economic development plan of a locality. This section provides that analysis. Relevant local planning and 
development objectives are contained within the City of Dayton Planning Atlas Comprehensive Plan 
(Comprehensive Plan), Dayton Forward A vison for the Future and the Dayton Land Use and 
Development Code. The following section describes the purpose and intent of these plans, the main 
applicable goals and policies within each plan, and an explanation of how the Plan relates to the 
applicable goals and policies. The analysis covers the most relevant sections of the documents but may 
not cover every section of the documents that relate to the Plan.  

The numbering of the goals and policies within this section reflects the numbering that occurs in the 
original document. Italicized text is text that has been taken directly from an original document and 
therefore cannot be changed.  

Comprehensive Plan and Zoning designations for all land in the Area are shown in Figure 2. All proposed 
land uses conform to Figure 2. Maximum densities and building requirements for all land in the Area are 
contained in the Dayton Development Code.  

A. City of Dayton Comprehensive Plan   

This document establishes goals and objectives for the City and creates implementing policies to achieve 
those goals, taking into account the objectives of the Statewide Land Use Goals and the requirements of 
the various implementing statutes and administrative rules. The goals contained in this plan are the 
general directions or accomplishments toward which the City wishes to go in the future. The polices are 
more specific actions the City feels are necessary to accomplish the goals. 

As the Comprehensive Plan is updated in the future, this document will automatically incorporate those 
updates without the Plan having to be formally amended. This section of the Plan should be updated if 
there is a substantial amendment completed in the future. 

Chapter 3. Natural, Scenic and Historic Resources Goals and Policies  
Goals 
1. To conserve open spaces, and preserve natural, scenic and cultural resources. 
3. To preserve significant historic land marks, sites and structures. 
 
Finding: The Plan a Building Façade program which will be able to assist in the preservation of historic 
buildings in the Area. The funding for recreation improvements will help preserve the valuable 
downtown recreation resources. The Plan is in conformance with the Natural, Scenic and Historic 
Resources Goals of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chapter 6. Land Use and Urbanization 
Goals 
2. To ensure a compact urban growth pattern. 
3. To recognize the importance of the adjacent farmland and the rural farm community to the local 

economy and larger Dayton and Yamhill County Community. 
 

37



Finding: The projects in the Plan will create an environment conducive to new development and 
redevelopment, ensuring a compact urban growth pattern. The Plan’s recreation projects will support 
the development of housing in the Area. The Plan also has infrastructure projects that will promote 
housing development to occur in the Area.  The Building Façade program that will assist in improving the 
appearance and function of the businesses in the Area which will provide services to future residents of 
the Area. The Plan is in conformance with the Land Use and Urbanization Goals of the Dayton 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Chapter 7. Housing and Public Needs  
Goals 
1. To encourage housing that will meet the needs of the community in a manner that will best afford 

adequate choices in all income ranges and housing types. 
3.  To ensure that the citizens are provided with safe and sanitary housing while promoting residential 

energy conservation design and construction techniques. 
4. To establish a residential zoning pattern and use which reduces the dependency on the automobile 

and encourages pedestrian connections to commercial and public areas. 
 

Finding: The Plan has recreation projects that will support the development of housing  
in the Area which will help provide housing choice, ensure safe and sanitary housing using current 
energy design and construction techniques. Providing housing in a mixed-use environment will help 
reduce the dependency on automobile traffic and encourage pedestrian connections to commercial and 
public areas. The Plan also has infrastructure projects that will promote housing development to occur in 
the Area.  The Building Façade program that will assist in improving the appearance and function of the 
businesses in the Area which will provide services to future residents of the Area. The Plan also has 
funding for redevelopment and development which could be used for the development of workforce 
housing. The Plan is in conformance with the Housing and Public Needs Goals of the Dayton 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Chapter 8. Economy of the City  
Goals 
1. To diversify and improve the City’s economy. 
2. To provide sufficient, orderly and convenient commercial and industrial development that will 

enhance the livability of the community and meet the needs of the citizens. 
3. Create an environment that will enhance the downtown and provide a focal point for both residents 

and visitors. 
 
Finding: The Plan has recreation projects that will provide increased activity in the Area, enhance the 
downtown and provide a focal point for residents and visitors. The Plan has infrastructure projects that 
will promote development to occur in the Area and a Building Façade program that will assist in 
improving the appearance and function of the businesses in the Area. Much of the development is 
anticipated to be mixed use developments, so will add to the environment that will enhance the 
downtown. The Plan is in conformance with the Economy Goal of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan.  

 
  

38



Chapter 9. Public Facilities and Services  
Goals 
1. To develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public and private facilities and services as 

a framework for future development. 
 
Finding: The Plan has transportation and utility projects within the Area. These projects will help 
facilitate new development within the Area. The Plan also has a project category of Taxing District 
Partnerships to work with the taxing districts to complete proejcts within the Area. The Plan is in 
conformance with the Public Facilities and Services Goals of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chapter 10. Transportation  
Goals 
1. To provide a safe, convenient, aesthetic and economic transportation system through a variety of 

transportation means. 
 
Finding: The Plan has transportation projects that will improve the transportation system and provide 
improved pedestrian mobility within the Area.  
The Plan is in conformance with the Transportation Goal of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
  

39



B. City of Dayton Land Use and Development Code  

The following zoning districts are within the Area. This Development Code is enacted to implement the 
goals and policies of the City of Dayton Comprehensive Plan; provide methods of administering and 
enforcing the provisions of this Code; and promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the 
community. As property is developed within the Area, it will go through the normal approval process of 
the City. This urban renewal plan does not change zoning or add any increased restrictions to any zoning 
category.   

1. Single Family Residential - R1 

7.2.102.01 Purpose 

The purpose of the R-1 zone is to allow development of single family homes on individual lots provided 
with urban services at urban densities. Other uses compatible with residential development are also 
appropriate. These areas are designated as Residential in the Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Limited Density Residential - R2 

7.2.103.01 Purpose 
The R-2 zone is intended to provide for detached and attached dwellings on a lot or multiple dwellings on 
a lot at an intermediate density. Other uses compatible with residential development are also 
appropriate. R-2 zones are located in areas designated Residential in the Comprehensive Plan 

3. Commercial Residential - CR 

7.2.105.01 Purpose 
To provide areas for the development of a mixture of single family, multi-family, and manufactured homes, 
and limited retail and service commercial uses. 

4. Commercial - C 

7.2.106.01 Purpose 
The Commercial (C) Zone is the primary commercial zone within the City. The zone is specifically designed 
to provide area for commercial activities to serve the residents of the City and the surrounding area. The 
Commercial Zone is suitable for the Commercial Plan designation. 

5. Industrial - I 

7.2.107.01 Purpose 

The purpose of the I Zone is to provide areas suitable for warehousing, primary and secondary 
processing, packaging, fabricating of finished goods and equipment with related outdoor storage and 
incidental sales. The Industrial zone is appropriate in those areas designated Industrial in the 
Comprehensive Plan where the location has access to an arterial street or highway and where the noises, 
lights, odors, and traffic will not conflict with residential areas. 

6. Public - P 

7.2.108.01 Purpose 

40

https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.102.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.103.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.105.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.106.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.107.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.108.01_Purpose


The purpose of the P (PUBLIC) zone is to provide areas appropriate for specific public and semi-public uses 
and to ensure their compatibility with adjacent uses. The Public zone is applicable to those properties 
designated Public in the Comprehensive Plan. 

Finding: The Plan is in conformance with the land use designations in the Dayton City Code. As property is 
developed within the Area, it will go through the normal approval process of the City. This urban renewal 
plan does not change zoning or add any increased restrictions to any zoning category.   

C. Dayton Forward – A Vision for the Future   

This plan was prepared for the City of Dayton in 2012.  

Goal 1. Build an authentic, peaceful, safe and inclusive community - diverse in its culture, ages, beliefs 
and income levels - where citizens care for each other and all groups feel welcome and comfortable. 

Goal 2. Maintain Dayton’s compact, pedestrian friendly, small-town character. Revitalize its central 
business core with appropriately scaled development. Focus on infill development and placemaking 
within the existing fabric. Avoid auto oriented commercial strip development. 

Goal 3. Use Dayton’s historic, cultural, and natural resources to transform it into an authentic and 
charming community which appeals to individuals with high disposable incomes. 

 Goal 4. Create a vibrant employment base through the development of small commercial 
businesses that serve residents and tourists, with industries that highlight the quality of surrounding 
agricultural products and sustainable practices. 

Goal 5. Use Dayton’s heritage and historic resources to forward its image as an authentic and charming 
town. 

Goal 6. Transform Dayton’s character through the use of landscape elements such as street trees, public 
parks and trail systems.  

Goal 7. Preserve, enhance and develop the scenic qualities of the Yamhill River by improving public 
access, creating recreation opportunities, and maintaining its natural beauty. 

Goal 8. Capitalize on Dayton’s natural resources to provide recreational opportunities for residents, 
tourists, and retirees. 

Goal 11. Provide a range of quality housing opportunities that will be attractive to young families, 
retirees, students, tourists and those employed within greater Dayton. 

Goal 12. Make Dayton a more self-sufficient community by improving residents’ access to basic daily 
retail services. 

Goal 13. Encourage a transportation system and modes of transportation that enhance and support the 
character of the town. 

Goal 15. Upgrade Dayton’s infrastructure so that commercial, industrial and housing growth can be 
accommodated. 

41



Finding: The Plan’s projects are intended to provide the type of community envisioned by the Dayton 
Forward Plan. There are projects to greatly enhance the recreational experience for residents and to 
bring visitors to Dayton. There are projects to support increased commercial activities, either through 
storefront loans, rehabilitation or new development.  There is funding to bring new residential 
opportunities to the Area, including workforce housing. There is funding to improve the streetscape and 
pedestrian atmosphere in the Area. The Plan is in conformance with the Dayton Forward – A Vision for 
the Future Plan.  

42



EXHIBIT A 
City of Dayton 

Urban Renewal Area Description 
 
A tract of land and road rights-of-way, located in the Northwest and Southwest One-Quarters of 
Section 16, the Northeast, Southwest, and Southeast One-Quarters of Section 17, and the Northwest 
One-Quarter of Section 20, Township 4 South, Range 3 West, Willamette Meridian, City of Dayton, 
Yamhill County, Oregon, and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the westerly corner of Lot 261 of the plat “Town of Dayton”, also being the intersection 
of the southeasterly right-of-way line of Main Street and the northeasterly right-of-way line of 5th 
Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 
 

1. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 300 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 4th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

2. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 721 feet, more or less, to 
the centerline of Oak Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

3. Thence along said centerline, Northeasterly 370 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly 
right-of-way line of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17AD); 

4. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 640 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly corner of Deed Instrument Number 200702379, Yamhill County Deed 
Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

5. Thence leaving said southwesterly right-of-way line, North 16°43’40” East 105.94 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

6. Thence North 44°55’45” East 90.79 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way 
line of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17AD); 

7. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,498 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Main Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

8. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 300 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 2nd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

9. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 140 feet, more or less, to 
the northerly corner of Lot 147 of said “Town of Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

10. Thence along the northeasterly extension of the northwesterly line of said Lot 147, 
Northeasterly 740 feet, more or less, to the northerly corner of Lot 31 of said “Town of 
Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

11. Thence leaving said northeasterly extension, Northeasterly 120 feet, more or less, to the 
westerly corner of Deed Film 245, Page 0007, Yamhill County Deed Records (Assessor's 
Map 4.3.16); 

12. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Deed, Northeasterly 310 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of SE Kreder Road (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

43



13. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 517 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly extension of the northwesterly line of Film 126, Page 259, Yamhill 
County Deed Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

14. Thence along said southwesterly extension and the northwesterly line of said Deed, 
Northeasterly 886 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly line of Instrument Number 
199704522, Yamhill County Deed Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

15. Thence along said southwesterly line, Northwesterly 962 feet, more or less, to the 
southeasterly right-of-way line of Oregon State Highway 18/233 (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

16. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 1,215 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly line of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

17. Thence along said northeasterly line and the southeasterly extension thereof, Southeasterly 
1,014 feet, more or less, to the southeasterly right-of-way line of SE Kreder Road 
(Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

18. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,591 feet, more or less, 
to the northeasterly line of Volume 48, Page 283 (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

19. Thence along said northeasterly line, Southeasterly 647 feet, more or less, to the easterly 
corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

20. Thence along the southeasterly line of said Deed, Southwesterly 968 feet, more or less, to 
the southerly corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

21. Thence leaving said southeasterly line, Southwesterly 145 feet, more or less, to the easterly 
corner of Volume 181, Page 111 (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

22. Thence along the southeasterly line of said Deed, Southwesterly 116 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

23. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 372 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly right-of-way line of 1st Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

24. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 150 feet, more or less, to 
the westerly corner of Lot 6 of said “Town of Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

25. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Lot 6 and the northeasterly extension thereof, 
Northeasterly 360 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of SE Water 
Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

26. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 190 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Alder Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

27. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 360 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly right-of-way line of 1st Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

28. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 260 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

29. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 440 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 2nd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

30. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 260 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Alder Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

31. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 240 feet, more or less, to 
the easterly corner of Lot 141 of said “Town of Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

32. Thence along the southeasterly extension of the northeasterly line of said Lot 141, 
Southeasterly 220 feet, more or less, to the westerly corner of Lot 130 of said “Town of 
Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

33. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Lot 130, Northeasterly 60 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly line of said Lot 130 (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

44



34. Thence along said northeasterly line, Southeasterly 120 feet, more or less, to the easterly 
corner of Partition Plat No. 2006-35, also being on the northwesterly right-of-way line of 
Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

35. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to 
the easterly corner of Parcel 1 of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

36. Thence leaving said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southerly 71 feet, more or less, to the 
intersection of the southeasterly right-of-way line of Mill Street and the northeasterly right-
of-way line of 3rd Street (Assessor’s Map 4.3.16CB); 

37. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,309 feet, more or less, to 
the centerline of SE Palmer Road (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

38. Thence along said centerline, Southerly 155 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly right-
of-way line of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

39. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 977 feet, more or less, to 
easterly line of Instrument Number 201816829, Yamhill County Deed Records (Assessor's 
Map 4.3.17DD); 

40. Thence along said easterly line, Southerly 206 feet, more or less, to the southerly corner of 
said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

41. Thence along the southerly line of said Deed, Westerly 363 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

42. Thence along the southwesterly line of said Deed, Northwesterly 66 feet, more or less, to 
the westerly corner of said Deed, also being on the southeasterly line of Partition Plat No. 
92-40 (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

43. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Deed, Northeasterly 452 feet, more or less, to 
the northerly corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

44. Thence leaving said northwesterly line, Northwesterly 330 feet, more or less, to a point on 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Mill Street, said point bears Northeasterly 48.5 feet, 
more or less, from the northerly corner of Instrument Number 202207411, Yamhill County 
Deed Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

45. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 788 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 5th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

46. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 681 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

47. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,291 feet, more or less, 
to the southwesterly right-of-way line of 7th Street (Assessor’s Map 4.3.20AB); 

48. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 209 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly line of Lot 2 of the plat “Palmer Creek Addition” (Assessor’s Map 
4.3.20AB); 

49. Thence along said southeasterly line, Southwesterly 352 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly line of said Lot 2 (Assessor’s Map 4.3.20AB); 

50. Thence along said southwesterly line, Northwesterly 194 feet, more or less, to the 
southeasterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

51. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 2,465 feet, more or less, 
to the southeasterly extension of the southwesterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane 
(Assessor's Map 4.3.20); 

52. Thence along said southeasterly extension, Northwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to the 
easterly corner of Partition Plat No. 2006-49, also being on the northwesterly right-of-way 
line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

45



53. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 418 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly line of Partition Plat No. 2003-17 (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

54. Thence along said southwesterly line, Northwesterly 274 feet, more or less, to the 
northwesterly line of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

55. Thence along said northwesterly line, Northeasterly 267 feet, more or less, to the northerly 
corner of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

56. Thence along the northeasterly line of said plat, Southeasterly 81 feet, more or less, to the 
northwesterly line of said Partition Plat No. 2006-49 (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

57. Thence along said northwesterly line, Northeasterly 152 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

58. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 828 feet, more or less, to 
the southerly right-of-way line of SE Ash Road (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

59. Thence leaving said southerly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 62 feet, more or less, to the 
intersection of the northerly right-of-way line of SE Ash Road and the northwesterly right-
of-way line of Ash Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

60. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 4,268 feet, more or less, 
to the northeasterly right-of-way line of 5th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

61. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,075 feet, more or less, to 
the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA). 

Excepting therefrom; 
 
Excepting Parcel 1; 
Beginning at the southerly corner of Lot 232 of said “Town of Dayton”, also being on the 
northwesterly right-of-way line of Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 
 

100. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 70 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 4th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

101. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 340 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Alder Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

102. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 405 feet, more or less, to 
the centerline of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

103. Thence along said centerline, Southeasterly 340 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly 
right-of-way line of Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

104. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 335 feet, more or less, to 
the Point of Beginning. 

 
Excepting Parcel 2; 
Beginning at the southerly corner of Partition Plat No. 2010-16, also being on the northeasterly right-
of-way line of 9th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 
 

200. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 521 feet, more or less 
(Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

201. Thence leaving said northeasterly right-of-way line along a line perpendicular to said right-
of-way line, North 53°33’50” East 112.61 feet, more or less 

202. Thence along a line parallel to said right-of-way line, South 36°26’10” East 78.74 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

203. Thence along a line perpendicular to said right-of-way line, North 53°33’50” East 212.11 
feet, more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

46



204. Thence along a line parallel to said right-of-way line, North 36°26’10” West 395.77 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

205. Thence along a line perpendicular to said right-of-way line, South 53°33’50” West 212.11 
feet, more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

206. Thence along a line parallel to said right-of-way line, South 36°26’10” East 112.27 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

207. Thence along a line perpendicular to said right-of-way line, South 53°33’50” West 112.61 
feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of 9th Street (Assessor's Map 
4.3.17CD); 

208. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 582 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ash Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

209. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 2,416 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 5th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

210. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,281 feet, more or less, 
to the northwesterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

211. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 2,414 feet, more or less, 
to the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD). 

 
Excepting Parcel 3; 
Beginning at the northerly corner of Partition Plat No. 95-04, also being on the southwesterly right-
of-way line of 9th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 
 

300. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,319 feet, more or less, 
to the northwesterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

301. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,513 feet, more or less, 
to the northeasterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

302. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 752 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Church Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

303. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 152 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly line of Lot 3, Block 3 of the plat “Palmer Addition” (Assessor's Map 
4.3.17CC); 

304. Thence along said southwesterly line, Southeasterly 93 feet, more or less, to the 
southeasterly line of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

305. Thence along said southeasterly line, Northeasterly 226 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly right-of-way line of 11th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

306. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 103 feet, more or less, to 
the northerly corner of Lot 5 of said plat, also being on the southeasterly right-of-way line 
of Church Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

307. Thence leaving said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to 
a point on the northwesterly right-of-way line of Church Street, said point bears 
Northeasterly 46 feet, more or less, from the southerly corner of Lot 21, Block 2 of said 
plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

308. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 389 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

309. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 261 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ash Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

310. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 1,600 feet, more or less, to 
the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD). 

47



 
The above-described tract of land contains 133.2 acres, more or less. 

 
9/4/2024 

 
 
 

 

48



 

 
Report Accompanying the 

Dayton Urban Renewal Plan 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted by the City of Dayton 

November 4, 2024 

Ordinance No. 664 

 

49



  

 

List of Participants
 

City Council  
Mayor Trini Marquez 
Council President Jim Maguire  
Annette Frank 
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Kitty Mackin 
Luke Wildhaber  

Dayton Urban Renewal Agency  
Jim Maguire, Chair  
Annette Frank, Vice-Chair 
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Scott Hover 
Kitty Mackin 
Luke Wildhaber  
Chirs Teichroew 

Planning Commission  
Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson 
Dave Mackin, Vice Chairperson 
Rob Hallyburton 
Tim Parsons 
Katelyn Weber Van Genderen 
 
  

 

  

City of Dayton Staff 
City Manager, Rochelle Roaden 
Director of Tourism and Economic 
Development, Dave Rucklos  
 
Consulting Team  
Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC 
Elaine Howard 
Scott Vanden Bos 

Tiberius Solutions LLC 
Nick Popenuk 
Ali Danko 
Margaret Raimann 

50



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I. DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................ 1 

II. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................... 3 

III. THE PROJECTS IN THE AREA AND THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN URBAN 
RENEWAL PROJECTS AND THE EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA ...................................................................................................... 5 

IV. THE ESTIMATED TOTAL COST OF EACH PROJECT AND THE SOURCES OF 
MONEYS TO PAY SUCH COSTS ............................................................................. 8 

V. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PLAN ..................................................................... 9 

VI. THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES REQUIRED AND 
THE ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEBTEDNESS WILL BE RETIRED ......... 11 

VII. THE ANTICIPATED COMPLETION DATE FOR EACH PROJECT ......................... 16 

VIII. REVENUE SHARING .............................................................................................. 20 

IX. IMPACT OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING................................................... 21 

X. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY LIMITS ON ASSESSED VALUE AND SIZE OF 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA ....................................................................................... 25 

XI. EXISTING PHYSICAL, SOCIAL, AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND IMPACTS 
ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES .................................................................................... 26 

XII. REASONS FOR SELECTION OF EACH URBAN RENEWAL AREA IN THE PLAN 31 

XIII. RELOCATION REPORT ......................................................................................... 31 

 

 

51



I. DEFINITIONS 
“Agency ” means the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency. This Dayton Urban Renewal Agency 
is responsible for administration of the urban renewal plan. 

“Area” means the properties and rights-of-way located within the Dayton Urban Renewal 
Boundary. 

“Blight” is defined in ORS 457.010(1)(A-E) and identified in the ordinance adopting the 
urban renewal plan.  

“Board of Commissioners” means the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners.  

“City” means the City of Dayton, Oregon.  

“City Council” or “Council” means the Dayton City Council. 

“Comprehensive Plan” means the City of Dayton comprehensive land use plan and its 
implementing ordinances, policies, and standards.  

“County” means Yamhill County, Oregon.  

“Fiscal year ending” means the year commencing on July 1 of one year and closing on June 
30 of the next year. 

“Frozen base” means the total assessed value including all real, personal, manufactured, 
and utility values within an urban renewal area at the time of adoption. The County Assessor 
certifies the assessed value after the adoption of an urban renewal plan.  

“Increment” means that part of the assessed value of a taxing district attributable to any 
increase in the assessed value of the property located in an urban renewal area, or portion 
thereof, over the assessed value specified in the certified statement. 

“Maximum indebtedness” means the amount of the principal of indebtedness included in a 
plan pursuant to ORS 457.190 and does not include indebtedness incurred to refund or 
refinance existing indebtedness. 

“ORS” means Oregon Revised Statutes. Chapter 457 specifically relates to urban renewal. 

“Planning Commission” means the Dayton Planning Commission.  

“Revenue sharing” means under-levying tax increment proceeds to effectively share a 
portion of the revenue with the other taxing districts that levy permanent rate taxes in the 
urban renewal area as defined in ORS 457.470. 

“Tax increment financing (TIF)” is a method of funding urban renewal projects and programs 
through incurring debt that is repaid by the division of taxes accomplished through the 
adoption of an urban renewal plan.  

“Tax increment finance revenues” means the funds allocated by the assessor to an urban 
renewal area due to increases in assessed value over the frozen base within the area.  

“Urban renewal area” or “URA” means a blighted area included in an urban renewal plan or 
an area included in an urban renewal plan under ORS 457.160. 

“Urban renewal plan” or “Plan” means a plan, as it exists or is changed or modified from time 
to time, for one or more urban renewal areas, as provided in ORS 457.085, 457.095, 
457.105, 457.115, 457.120, 457.125, 457.135 and 457.220. 

52



“Urban renewal project” or “Project” means any work or undertaking carried out under ORS 
457 in an urban renewal area. 

“Urban renewal report” or “Report” means the official report that accompanies the urban 
renewal plan pursuant to ORS 457.087.   

53



II. INTRODUCTION 
The Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (Report) contains background 
information and project details that pertain to the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (Plan). The 
Report is not a legal part of the Plan but is intended to provide public information and 
support the findings made by the Dayton City Council (City Council) as part of the approval 
of the Plan. 

The Report provides the analysis and contains the information required to meet the 
standards of ORS 457.087, including financial feasibility. The Report requirements include:   

1. A description of the physical, social, and economic conditions in the Area and 
expected impact of the plan, including fiscal impact in light of increased 
services; (ORS 457.087(1)) 

2. Reasons for selection of the plan Area; (ORS 457.087(2)) 
3. The relationship between each project to be undertaken and the existing 

conditions; (ORS 457.087(3)) 
4. The estimated total cost of each project and the source of funds to pay such 

costs; (ORS 457.087(4)) 
5. The estimated completion date of each project; (ORS 457.087(5))The 

estimated amount of funds required in the Area and the anticipated year in 
which the debt will be retired; (ORS 457.087(6)) 

6. A financial analysis of the plan; (ORS 457.087(7)) 
7. A fiscal impact statement that estimates the impact of tax increment financing 

(TIF) upon all entities levying taxes upon property in the urban renewal area; 
(ORS 457.0857(8)) and 

8. A relocation report.(ORS 457.087(9)) 
The relationship between the sections of the Report and the ORS 457.087 requirements is 
shown in Table 1. The specific reference shown is the section of this Report that most 
addresses the statutory reference. There may be other sections of the Report that also 
address the statute.  

The Report provides guidance on how the Plan might be implemented. As the Dayton Urban 
Renewal Agency (Agency) reviews revenues and potential projects each year, it has the 
authority to make adjustments to the implementation assumptions in this Report. The 
Agency may allocate budgets differently, adjust the timing of the projects, decide to incur 
debt at different times than assumed in this Report, and make other adjustments to the 
financials as determined by the Agency. The Agency may also make changes as allowed in 
the Amendments section of the Plan.

54



 

Table 1. Statutory References  

Statutory Requirement  Report Section  
ORS 457.087 (1) XI 
ORS 457.087 (2) XII 
ORS 457.087 (3) III 
ORS 457.087 (4) IV 
ORS 457.087 (5) VII 
ORS 457.087 (6) V,VI 
ORS 457.087 (7) V,VI 
ORS 457.087 (8) IX 
ORS 457.087 (9) XIII 

Figure 1. Dayton Urban Renewal Districy Boundary 

 

  

55



III. THE PROJECTS IN THE AREA AND THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN 
URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS AND THE EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

The projects identified for the Dayton Urban Renewal Area (Area) are described below, 
including how they relate to the existing conditions in the Area.  

A. Recreation and Park  Improvements  

Install recreation and park improvements including but not limited to:  

1. Dayton Landing   

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Dayton Landing is a 1.4-acre county park consisting of a gravel parking lot and small 
boat ramp. The boat ramp is located at the confluence of the Yamhill River and Palmer 
Creek, about five miles upstream from the Willamette River. The Yamhill River is 
currently navigable upstream from here to Lafayette Locks Historical Park and is popular 
with canoeists and kayakers. 

Nearby, a footbridge connects Dayton Landing Park to the City of Dayton's Alderman 
Park across the Yamhill River. 

2. Courthouse Square Park Enhancement  

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Court House Square Park covers one full city block in the middle of downtown Dayton  
between Ferry and Main Streets and between 3rd and 4th Streets. The park has a 
covered picnic area and historic bandstand and fountain, a new children's playground 
area, basketball court and restrooms. The park is owned by the City of Dayton.  

3.   Legion Field  

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Legion Field is a full city block in size and is located in the middle of Dayton between 
Church and Oak Streets and between 3rd and 4th Streets. Zoned for public use, this 
park is maintained by the City of Dayton. 

This City Park is owned by the City of Dayton.  It was the original site of the Dayton 
Grade School that was built around 1875 and was destroyed in a fire in the 1950's. 

Legion Field is currently used as a baseball field by local Junior and Midget Baseball 
Teams, with the baseball diamond maintained by volunteers during the baseball season. 

4.  Andrew Smith Park   

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Andrew Smith Park  is located west of 11th Street and between Church Street and Park 
Place. It is owned by the City of Dayton. The park is equipped with a children's play area 
that includes swings, a climbing rock, and a basketball court. The park also has new 
public restrooms.  

 

56



B. Downtown Streetscape Improvements  

 Install streetscape improvements including but not limited to:  

• Ornate lighting installation 
• Bicycle racks  
• Benches 
• Signage  
• Street trees 

 
EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Downtown Dayton has minimal streetscape features. There is no common streetscape 
theme throughout the downtown to provide a sense of place. 

C. Building Façade Grant Program   

Create a building façade grant program to improve the buildings in the Area.  
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

There are existing buildings in the Area that are in need of façade improvements. One 
major building is undergoing substantial rehabilitation, but there are other buildings which 
need improvements to their façades and for overall building improvements.  

D. Taxing District Partnerships  

Work with taxing districts to identify projects that will assist them in providing services to the 
Area. 

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

The Fire District will need a new ladder truck to be able to service the projected new 
development in the Area. The School District may need assistance to their facilities within 
the Area.  

E. Public Infrastructure  

Provide funds for leveraging or grant applications for the following infrastructure upgrades: 

1. Sewer and Water Line Extension and Upgrades 
2. Street Paving, Overlay and Repair as allowed  
3. Water Pressure Upgrades 
4. Sewer Pond Addition 

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Section XI of this Report details the existing conditions of the utility infrastructure and 
transportation network needs in the Area.  

F. Redevelopment and Development   

Provide development support including but not limited to: 

• Upgrading existing buildings  

57



• Providing incentives for development  in the Area, including the development of 
workforce housing. 
 

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

There are existing buildings in the Area that are in need of redevelopment. One major 
building is undergoing substantial rehabilitation, but there are other buildings which need 
improvements to be redeveloped. There are many parcels that are not developed and may 
need assistance to develop in the Area.  

G. Administration  

Authorizes expenditures for the administrative costs associated with managing the Area 
including budgeting and annual reporting, planning and the implementation of projects in 
the Area.  
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

This area in Dayton is not presently in an urban renewal area, so requires no 
administrative responsibilities from the urban renewal agency. Once an urban renewal 
plan with its associated requirements for administration exists for the Area, there will be a 
need for administrative funds to be allocated for that administration.  

  

58



IV. THE ESTIMATED TOTAL COST OF EACH PROJECT AND THE SOURCES 
OF MONEYS TO PAY SUCH COSTS   

Table 2 shows the costs of the projects in Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) 2024 constant dollars.  

Table 2. Estimated Cost of Each Project in Constant FYE 2024$ 
 

Estimated Cost 
2024$ 

Recreation/Public Space  Improvements  $8,518,000 
Downtown Streetscape Improvements  $460,000 
Building Façade Grant Program $100,000 
Taxing District Partnerships  $2,000,000 
Public Infrastructure  $4,848,249 
Redevelopment/Development   $3,172,000 
Financing Fees  $197,904 
Administration  $1,000,000 
Total Cost $20,296,153 

Source: City of Dayton  

These estimates will be refined in the annual budgeting process, understanding the limiting total 
cost factor of the maximum indebtedness. Different allocations may be made to different line 
items within the Plan.  

The scenario presented in this Report is only one scenario for how the Agency may decide to 
implement this Plan, and this scenario is financially feasible.  

  

59



V. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PLAN 
The estimated tax increment revenues through Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2050 are calculated 
based on projections of the assessed value within the Area and the consolidated tax rate that 
will apply in the Area.  

The long-term projections for FYE 2026 and beyond assume an annual growth rate of 3% for 
existing assessed value in the Area plus specific exception value assumptions for future 
development within the Area. These assumptions were provided by Dayton staff and relied on 
existing permit data and discussions with potential developers. The frozen base value, the 
assessed value of the Area at the time it is adopted by the City Council is very low. The success 
of this Area will depend upon new development and rehabilitation within the Area.  

If actual assessed value growth is less than forecast, then it would reduce the financial capacity 
of the Area to fund projects listed in the Plan over the anticipated duration of the Plan. 

Table 3 shows the incremental assessed value, tax rates, and tax increment revenues each 
year, adjusted for discounts, delinquencies, and truncation loss. The first year of tax increment 
collections is anticipated to be FYE 2026. The narrative analysis for Table 3 is shown below:  

• Total AV is the estimated total assessed value of the Area on an annual basis.  
• Frozen base is the estimate of the assessed value of the Area at its formation. 
• Increment applied is the total assessed value minus the frozen base. 
• Increment shared is the amount that will be distributed to all taxing Areas according 

to their permanent rate due to revenue sharing. In this Plan, there is no assumption 
for revenue sharing as the financial projections do not meet the statutory 
thresholds.  See Section VIII for a definition of revenue sharing.  

• Tax rate is the total permanent rate levy for the Area. 
• Gross tax increment financing revenue (TIF) is calculated by multiplying the tax rate 

times the assessed value used. The tax rate is per thousand dollars of assessed 
value, so the calculation is “tax rate times assessed value used divided by one 
thousand.”  

• Adjustments are calculated at 5% of the Gross TIF and are for discounts, 
delinquencies, and rate truncation. 

• Current Year Net reflects subtracting the 5% adjustment factor from Gross TIF.  
• Prior Year Net is the tax increment revenue that was delinquent the prior year and 

is paid by the assessor’s office once it is received. It is estimated that this amount 
is 1.5% of total TIF. 

• Total TIF is the amount of tax increment revenues estimated to be received by the 
Agency. 

 

60



Table 3. Projected Incremental Assessed Value, Tax Rates, and Tax Increment Revenues 
FYE Total AV Frozen Base AV Increment Applied Tax Rate Gross TIF Adjustments Current Year Net Prior Year Net Total TIF 

2026 24,235,093 10,915,900 13,319,193 11.6873 155,665 (7,783) 147,882 - 147,882 
2027 24,962,146 10,915,900 14,046,246 11.6873 164,163 (8,208) 155,955 2,218 158,173 
2028 84,525,598 10,915,900 73,609,698 11.6873 860,299 (43,015) 817,284 2,339 819,623 
2029 91,983,354 10,915,900 81,067,454 11.6873 947,460 (47,373) 900,087 12,259 912,346 
2030 101,232,003 10,915,900 90,316,103 11.6873 1,055,551 (52,778) 1,002,774 13,501 1,016,275 
2031 110,033,760 10,915,900 99,117,860 11.6873 1,158,420 (57,921) 1,100,499 15,042 1,115,541 
2032 121,595,978 10,915,900 110,680,078 11.6873 1,293,551 (64,678) 1,228,874 16,507 1,245,381 
2033 125,243,858 10,915,900 114,327,958 11.6873 1,336,185 (66,809) 1,269,376 18,433 1,287,809 
2034 129,001,175 10,915,900 118,085,275 11.6873 1,380,098 (69,005) 1,311,093 19,041 1,330,134 
2035 132,871,211 10,915,900 121,955,311 11.6873 1,425,328 (71,266) 1,354,062 19,666 1,373,728 
2036 136,857,348 10,915,900 125,941,448 11.6873 1,471,915 (73,596) 1,398,320 20,311 1,418,631 
2037 140,963,070 10,915,900 130,047,170 11.6873 1,519,900 (75,995) 1,443,905 20,975 1,464,880 
2038 145,191,962 10,915,900 134,276,062 11.6873 1,569,325 (78,466) 1,490,858 21,659 1,512,517 
2039 149,547,721 10,915,900 138,631,821 11.6873 1,620,232 (81,012) 1,539,220 22,363 1,561,583 
2040 154,034,153 10,915,900 143,118,253 11.6873 1,672,666 (83,633) 1,589,033 23,088 1,612,121 
2041 158,655,177 10,915,900 147,739,277 11.6873 1,726,673 (86,334) 1,640,340 23,835 1,664,175 
2042 163,414,833 10,915,900 152,498,933 11.6873 1,782,301 (89,115) 1,693,186 24,605 1,717,791 
2043 168,317,278 10,915,900 157,401,378 11.6873 1,839,597 (91,980) 1,747,617 25,398 1,773,015 
2044 173,366,796 10,915,900 162,450,896 11.6873 1,898,612 (94,931) 1,803,682 26,214 1,829,896 
2045 178,567,800 10,915,900 167,651,900 11.6873 1,959,398 (97,970) 1,861,428 27,055 1,888,483 
2046 183,924,833 10,915,900 173,008,933 11.6873 2,022,007 (101,100) 1,920,907 27,921 1,948,828 
2047 189,442,578 10,915,900 178,526,678 11.6873 2,086,495 (104,325) 1,982,170 28,814 2,010,984 
2048 195,125,855 10,915,900 184,209,955 11.6873 2,152,917 (107,646) 2,045,271 29,733 2,075,004 
2049 200,979,630 10,915,900 190,063,730 11.6873 2,221,332 (111,067) 2,110,265 30,679 2,140,944 
2050 207,009,020 10,915,900 196,093,120 11.6873 2,291,799 (114,590) 2,177,209 31,654 2,208,863 
  TOTAL:     $37,611,889 $(1,880,596) $35,731,297 $503,310 $36,234,607 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

61



VI. THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES REQUIRED 
AND THE ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEBTEDNESS WILL BE 
RETIRED 

Table 4 shows a summary of the financial capacity of the Area, including how total TIF revenue 
translates to the ability to fund urban renewal projects in constant 2024 dollars in five-year 
increments. Table 6, Table 7 and Table 8 show more detailed tables on the allocation of tax 
revenues to debt service.  Table 9, Table 10 and Table 10  show potential allocations to projects 
and administration over time.  

The Area is anticipated to complete all projects and have sufficient tax increment finance 
revenue to terminate the Area in FYE 2050, a 25-year time frame for taking division of tax 
revenues. If growth in assessed value is slower than projected, the Agency may not be able to 
complete all projects in the Plan in this timeframe and would therefore continue taking division 
of tax proceeds until the Agency reaches the maximum indebtedness. If growth in assessed 
value is more robust than the projections, it may take a shorter period. These assumptions show 
one scenario for financing and that this scenario is financially feasible.  

The maximum indebtedness is $29,400,000 (Twenty-Nine Million Four Hundred Thousand 
dollars). The estimated total amount of tax increment revenues required to service the maximum 
indebtedness of $29,400,000 is $36,234,607 and is from permanent rate tax levies. The 
difference between the total amount of tax increment revenues (Net TIF)  and maximum 
indebtedness is due the cost of borrowing to complete projects. If the Agency decides to 
accelerate projects in the future by using loans, then the interest on those loans is not 
calculated as part of the maximum indebtedness and may be repaid through tax increment 
proceeds. If the Agency does not borrow money, then this number will be lower. 

Table 4. TIF Capacity of the Area in FYE 2024 Constant Rounded Numbers  
Net TIF $36,200,000  
Maximum Indebtedness $29,400,000  
Capacity (2024$) $20,500,000  
Years 1-5 $3,400,000  
Years 6-10 $8,500,000  
Years 11-15 $3,400,000  
Years 16-20 $2,700,000  
Years 21-25 $2,600,000  

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

62



This financial analysis shows borrowings as identified in Table 5. This is only one scenario for 
how the Agency may decide to implement this Plan, and this scenario is financially feasible. The 
Agency may decide to do borrowings at different times or for different amounts, depending on 
their analysis at the time. The timeframes on these borrowings are designed to have all 
borrowings repaid at the termination of the Area in FYE 2050. The amounts shown are the 
principal amounts of the borrowings. The total amounts, including interest, are shown in the 
second column of The total amounts, including interest, are shown in the second column of 
Table 6. 

Table 5.  Projected Loan Amounts and Loan Terms  

  Loan A Loan B Loan C Loan D 
Principal Amount $1,200,000  $8,000,000  $2,100,000  $1,300,000  
Interest Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 
Loan Term 20 20 15 10 
Loan Year 2026 2031 2036 2041 
Interest Payment Start 2026 2031 2036 2041 
Principal Payment Start 2026 2031 2036 2041 
Annual Payment ($96,291) ($641,941) ($202,319) ($168,356) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions

63



Table 6. Tax Increment Revenues and Allocations to Debt Service, Through FYE 2033 
 Total FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030 FYE 2031 FYE 2032 FYE 2033 

Resources          
TIF: Current Year 35,731,296 147,882 155,955 817,284 900,087 1,002,774 1,100,499 1,228,874 1,269,376 
TIF: Prior Years 503,311 - 2,218 2,339 12,259 13,501 15,042 16,507 18,433 
Total Resources 36,234,607 147,882 158,173 819,623 912,346 1,016,275 1,115,541 1,245,381 1,287,809 
Expenditures          
Debt Service          
Scheduled Payments          
Loan A (1,925,822) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) 
Loan B (12,838,814) - - - - - (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) 
Loan C (3,034,782) - - - - - - - - 
Loan D (1,683,559) - - - - - - - - 
Total Debt Service (19,482,977) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (738,232) (738,232) (738,232) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio  1.54 1.64 8.51 9.47 10.55 1.51 1.69 1.74 
Transfer to URA Projects Fund (16,751,630) (51,591) (61,882) (723,332) (816,055) (919,984) (377,309) (507,149) (549,577) 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES (36,234,607) (147,882) (158,173) (819,623) (912,346) (1,016,275) (1,115,541) (1,245,381) (1,287,809) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

64



Table 7. Tax Increment Revenues and Allocations to Debt Service, Through FYE 2041  
 FYE 2034 FYE 2035 FYE 2036 FYE 2037 FYE 2038 FYE 2039 FYE 2040 FYE 2041 

Resources         
TIF: Current Year 1,311,093 1,354,062 1,398,320 1,443,905 1,490,858 1,539,220 1,589,033 1,640,340 
TIF: Prior Years 19,041 19,666 20,311 20,975 21,659 22,363 23,088 23,835 
Total Resources 1,330,134 1,373,728 1,418,631 1,464,880 1,512,517 1,561,583 1,612,121 1,664,175 
Expenditures         
Debt Service         
Scheduled Payments         
Loan A (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) 
Loan B (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) 
Loan C - - (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) 
Loan D - - - - - - - (168,356) 
Total Debt Service (738,232) (738,232) (940,551) (940,551) (940,551) (940,551) (940,551) (1,108,907) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.80 1.86 1.51 1.56 1.61 1.66 1.71 1.50 
Transfer to URA Projects Fund (591,902) (635,496) (478,080) (524,329) (571,966) (621,032) (671,570) (555,269) 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES (1,330,134) (1,373,728) (1,418,631) (1,464,880) (1,512,517) (1,561,583) (1,612,121) (1,664,175) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions  

  

65



Table 8. Tax Increment Revenues and Allocations to Debt Service, Through FYE 2050 
 FYE 2042 FYE 2043 FYE 2044 FYE 2045 FYE 2046 FYE 2047 FYE 2048 FYE 2049 FYE 2050 

Resources          
TIF: Current Year 1,693,186 1,747,617 1,803,682 1,861,428 1,920,907 1,982,170 2,045,271 2,110,265 2,177,209 
TIF: Prior Years 24,605 25,398 26,214 27,055 27,921 28,814 29,733 30,679 31,654 
Total Resources 1,717,791 1,773,015 1,829,896 1,888,483 1,948,828 2,010,984 2,075,004 2,140,944 2,208,863 
Expenditures          
Debt Service          
Scheduled Payments          
Loan A (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) - - - - - 
Loan B (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) 
Loan C (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) 
Loan D (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) 
Total Debt Service (1,108,907) (1,108,907) (1,108,907) (1,108,907) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.55 1.60 1.65 1.70 1.92 1.99 2.05 2.11 2.18 
Transfer to URA Projects Fund (608,884) (664,109) (720,989) (779,577) (936,213) (998,368) (1,062,388) (1,128,329) (1,196,248) 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES (1,717,791) (1,773,015) (1,829,896) (1,888,483) (1,948,828) (2,010,984) (2,075,004) (2,140,944) (2,208,863) 

   Source: Tiberius Solutions 

66



VII. THE ANTICIPATED COMPLETION DATE FOR EACH PROJECT 
The schedule for construction of projects will be based on the availability of funding. The 
projects will be ongoing and will be completed as directed by the Agency.  

The Area is anticipated to complete all projects and have sufficient tax increment finance 
revenue to terminate the Area in FYE 2050, a 25-year program of tax increment collections.  

The amount of money available for projects in 2024 constant dollars for the Area is 
approximately $20,300,000. See Table 2 for the individual project analysis.  

Table 9, Table 10 and Table 10  show the approximate $20,300,000 of 2024 constant 
dollars for projects inflated over the life of the Area, totaling the maximum indebtedness of 
$29,400,000. All costs shown in Table 9, Table 10 and Table 10  are in year-of-expenditure 
dollars, which are adjusted by 3.0% annually to account for inflation.   

The 3% inflation rate is the rate to use in the future if any amendment to increase maximum 
indebtedness is pursued in accordance with ORS 457.470. 

The Agency may change the completion dates in their annual budgeting process or as 
project decisions are made in administering the Plan. The following tables are prepared to 
show that the Area is financially feasible as required by ORS 457.   

67



Table 9. Programs and Costs in Year of Expenditure Dollars, Through FYE 2032 
 Total FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030 FYE 2031 FYE 2032 FYE 2033 

Resources          
Beginning Balance  - 7,556 25,768 619,796 378,189 117,905 107,773 66,938  
Interest Earnings 80,855 - 38 129 3,099 1,891 590 539 335  
Transfer from TIF Fund 16,751,630 51,591 61,882 723,332 816,055 919,984 377,309 507,149 549,577  
Bond/Loan Proceeds 12,600,000 1,200,000 - - - - 8,000,000 -  
Total Resources 29,432,485 1,251,591 69,476 749,229 1,438,949 1,300,064 8,495,804 615,462 616,850  
Expenditures (YOE $)          
Recreation and Open Space  (10,428,656) (583,495) - (84,413) (1,014,388) (1,134,395) (5,534,550) (497,852) (521,920)) 
Downtown Streetscape  (488,014) (488,014) - - - - - -  
Building Façade Grant Program (106,090) (106,090) - - - - - - - 
Taxing District Partnerships  (2,704,550) - - - - - (922,425) - - 
Redevelopment and Development  (4,565,388) - - - - - (1,721,860) - ) 
Infrastructure (9,340,603) - - - - - - -  
Financing Fees (252,000) (24,000) - - - - (160,000) - ) 
Administration (1,547,184) (42,436) (43,708) (45,020) (46,372) (47,764) (49,196) (50,672) (52,192) 
Total Expenditures (29,432,485) (1,244,035) (43,708) (129,433) (1,060,760) (1,182,159) (8,388,031) (548,524) (574,112) 
Ending Balance  7,556 25,768 619,796 378,189 117,905 107,773 66,938 42,738  

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

68



Table 10. Programs and Costs in Year of Expenditure Dollars, Through FYE 2042  
 FYE 2034 FYE 2035 FYE 2036 FYE 2037 FYE 2038 FYE 2039 FYE 2040 FYE 2041 FYE 2042 

Resources          
Beginning Balance 42,738 77,135 103,970 801,417 1,271,013 1,788,830 2,356,487 132,123 77,861 
Interest Earnings 214 386 520 4,007 6,355 8,944 11,782 661 389 
Transfer from TIF Fund 591,902 635,496 478,080 524,329 571,966 621,032 671,570 555,269 608,884 
Bond/Loan Proceeds - - 2,100,000 - - - - 1,300,000 - 
Total Resources 634,854 713,018 2,682,570 1,329,753 1,849,334 2,418,807 3,039,839 1,988,053 687,134 
Expenditures (YOE $)          
Recreation and Open Space  (503,963) (553,680) - - - - - - - 
Downtown Streetscape  - - - - - - - - - 
Building Façade Grant Program - - - - - - - - - 
Taxing District Partnerships  - - (1,782,125) - - - - - - 
Redevelopment and Development  - - - - - - (2,843,528) - - 
Infrastructure - - - - - - - (1,818,080) - 
Financing Fees - - (42,000) - - - - (26,000) - 
Administration (53,756) (55,368) (57,028) (58,740) (60,504) (62,320) (64,188) (66,112) (68,096) 
Total Expenditures (557,719) (609,048) (1,881,153) (58,740) (60,504) (62,320) (2,907,716) (1,910,192) (68,096) 
Ending Balance 77,135 103,970 801,417 1,271,013 1,788,830 2,356,487 132,123 77,861 619,038 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

69



Table 11. Programs and Costs in Year of Expenditure Dollars, Through FYE 2050  
 FYE 2043 FYE 2044 FYE 2045 FYE 2046 FYE 2047 FYE 2048 FYE 2049 FYE 2050 

Resources         
Beginning Balance 619,038 1,216,101 64,828 770,317 1,633,738 291,691 1,274,225 2,325,173 
Interest Earnings 3,095 6,081 324 3,852 8,169 1,458 6,371 11,626 
Transfer from TIF Fund 664,109 720,989 779,577 936,213 998,368 1,062,388 1,128,329 1,196,248 
Bond/Loan Proceeds - - - - - - - - 
Total Resources 1,286,241 1,943,172 844,729 1,710,382 2,640,275 1,355,537 2,408,925 3,533,047 
Expenditures (YOE $)         
Recreation and Open Space  - - - - - - - - 
Downtown Streetscape  - - - - - - - - 
Building Façade Grant Program - - - - - - - - 
Taxing District Partnerships  - - - - - - - - 
Redevelopment and Development  - - - - - - - - 
Infrastructure - (1,806,100) - - (2,269,640) - - (3,446,783) 
Financing Fees - - - - - - - - 
Administration (70,140) (72,244) (74,412) (76,644) (78,944) (81,312) (83,752) (86,264) 
Total Expenditures (70,140) (1,878,344) (74,412) (76,644) (2,348,584) (81,312) (83,752) (3,533,047) 
Ending Balance 1,216,101 64,828 770,317 1,633,738 291,691 1,274,225 2,325,173 - 

Source: Tiberius Solutio

70



VIII. REVENUE SHARING 
Revenue sharing targets defined in ORS 457,470 are not projected to be reached as the 
threshold set (annual tax increment revenues in excess of 10 percent of the maximum 
indebtedness) is not projected to be met during the expected life of the Area.  

Revenue sharing means that, at thresholds defined in ORS 457.470, the impacted taxing 
jurisdictions will receive a share of the incremental growth in the Area. The first threshold is 
when annual tax increment finance revenues exceed 10% of the original maximum 
indebtedness of the Plan (10% = $2,940,000). At the 10% threshold, the Agency will receive the 
full 10% of the initial maximum indebtedness plus 25% of the increment above the 10% 
threshold, and the taxing jurisdictions will receive 75% of the increment above the 10% 
threshold.  

The second threshold is set at 12.5% of the maximum indebtedness (12.5% = $3,675,000). If 
this threshold is met, revenue for the Area would be capped at 12.5% of the maximum 
indebtedness, with all additional tax revenue being shared with affected taxing districts.  

If assessed value in the Area grows more quickly than projected, the revenue sharing triggers 
could be reached during the life of the Area.   
  

71



IX. IMPACT OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 
This section describes the impact of tax increment financing of the maximum indebtedness, 
both until and after the indebtedness is repaid, upon all entities levying taxes upon property in 
the Area. 

The impact of tax increment financing on overlapping taxing Areas consists of the property tax 
revenues foregone on permanent rate levies as applied to the growth in assessed value in the 
Area. These projections are for impacts estimated through FYE 2050 and are shown in Table 12 
and Table 13. School District 8 and the Willamette Regional Education Service District are not 
directly affected by the tax increment financing, but the amounts of their taxes divided for the 
urban renewal plan are shown in the following tables. Under current school funding law, 
property tax revenues are combined with State School Fund revenues to achieve per-student 
funding targets. Under this system, property taxes foregone, due to the use of tax increment 
financing, are substantially replaced with State School Fund revenues, as determined by a 
funding formula at the state level.  

Table 12 and Table 13 show the projected impacts to permanent rate levies of taxing Areas as a 
result of this Plan. Table 12 shows the general government levies, and Table 13 shows the 
education levies

72



Table 12. Projected Impact on Taxing Area Permanent Rate Levies - General Government 

FYE Yamhill 
County 

Yamhill 
County 

Extension 
Service 

Yamhill 
County 
Soil & 
Water 

City of 
Dayton 

Dayton Fire 
Department 

Chemeketa 
Library 

Subtotal Gen. 
Govt. 

2026 (32,614) (568) (448) (21,583) (15,566) (1,035) (71,813) 
2027 (34,883) (608) (479) (23,084) (16,649) (1,107) (76,811) 
2028 (180,758) (3,149) (2,483) (119,620) (86,273) (5,737) (398,019) 
2029 (201,207) (3,505) (2,763) (133,152) (96,033) (6,386) (443,047) 
2030 (224,128) (3,904) (3,078) (148,320) (106,973) (7,113) (493,516) 
2031 (246,020) (4,286) (3,379) (162,807) (117,421) (7,808) (541,721) 
2032 (274,655) (4,784) (3,772) (181,757) (131,088) (8,716) (604,773) 
2033 (284,012) (4,947) (3,901) (187,949) (135,554) (9,013) (625,376) 
2034 (293,346) (5,110) (4,029) (194,126) (140,009) (9,310) (645,930) 
2035 (302,960) (5,278) (4,161) (200,488) (144,598) (9,615) (667,100) 
2036 (312,863) (5,450) (4,297) (207,042) (149,324) (9,929) (688,905) 
2037 (323,063) (5,628) (4,437) (213,792) (154,193) (10,253) (711,364) 
2038 (333,568) (5,811) (4,581) (220,744) (159,207) (10,586) (734,497) 
2039 (344,389) (5,999) (4,730) (227,905) (164,372) (10,930) (758,324) 
2040 (355,535) (6,193) (4,883) (235,281) (169,691) (11,283) (782,866) 
2041 (367,015) (6,393) (5,041) (242,878) (175,170) (11,648) (808,144) 
2042 (378,839) (6,599) (5,203) (250,703) (180,814) (12,023) (834,181) 
2043 (391,018) (6,812) (5,370) (258,762) (186,627) (12,409) (860,998) 
2044 (403,563) (7,030) (5,543) (267,064) (192,614) (12,808) (888,621) 
2045 (416,483) (7,255) (5,720) (275,614) (198,781) (13,218) (917,071) 
2046 (429,792) (7,487) (5,903) (284,421) (205,133) (13,640) (946,376) 
2047 (443,499) (7,726) (6,091) (293,493) (211,675) (14,075) (976,559) 
2048 (457,618) (7,972) (6,285) (302,836) (218,414) (14,523) (1,007,648) 
2049 (472,161) (8,225) (6,485) (312,460) (225,355) (14,985) (1,039,670) 
2050 (487,139) (8,486) (6,690) (322,372) (232,504) (15,460) (1,072,652) 
TOTAL: $(7,991,128) $(139,205) $(109,752) $(5,288,253) $(3,814,038) $(253,610) $(17,595,982) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

73



 

Table 13. Projected Impact on Taxing Area Permanent Rate Levies – Education 

FYE School 
District 8 

Willamette 
Regional 

ESD 

Chemeketa 
Community 

College 

Subtotal 
Education 

Total All 

2026 (64,395) (3,754) (7,920) (76,069) (147,882) 
2027 (68,876) (4,015) (8,471) (81,362) (158,173) 
2028 (356,902) (20,807) (43,894) (421,604) (819,623) 
2029 (397,278) (23,161) (48,860) (469,299) (912,346) 
2030 (442,534) (25,800) (54,425) (522,759) (1,016,275) 
2031 (485,759) (28,320) (59,742) (573,820) (1,115,541) 
2032 (542,298) (31,616) (66,695) (640,608) (1,245,381) 
2033 (560,773) (32,693) (68,967) (662,433) (1,287,809) 
2034 (579,203) (33,767) (71,234) (684,204) (1,330,134) 
2035 (598,186) (34,874) (73,568) (706,629) (1,373,728) 
2036 (617,738) (36,014) (75,973) (729,726) (1,418,631) 
2037 (637,878) (37,188) (78,450) (753,516) (1,464,880) 
2038 (658,621) (38,398) (81,001) (778,020) (1,512,517) 
2039 (679,987) (39,643) (83,629) (803,259) (1,561,583) 
2040 (701,993) (40,926) (86,335) (829,255) (1,612,121) 
2041 (724,660) (42,248) (89,123) (856,031) (1,664,175) 
2042 (748,007) (43,609) (91,994) (883,610) (1,717,791) 
2043 (772,054) (45,011) (94,952) (912,017) (1,773,015) 
2044 (796,823) (46,455) (97,998) (941,275) (1,829,896) 
2045 (822,334) (47,942) (101,136) (971,412) (1,888,483) 
2046 (848,612) (49,474) (104,367) (1,002,453) (1,948,828) 
2047 (875,677) (51,052) (107,696) (1,034,425) (2,010,984) 
2048 (903,554) (52,677) (111,124) (1,067,356) (2,075,004) 
2049 (932,268) (54,351) (114,656) (1,101,275) (2,140,944) 
2050 (961,843) (56,075) (118,293) (1,136,211) (2,208,863) 
TOTAL: $(15,778,245) $(919,870) $(1,940,503) $(18,638,628) $(36,234,607) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions  Please refer to the explanation of the schools funding in the preceding section 

.  

74



Table 14 shows the projected increased revenue to the taxing jurisdictions after tax 
increment proceeds are projected to be terminated in FYE 2050.  

The Frozen Base is the assessed value of the Area established by the County Assessor at 
the time the Area is established. Excess Value is the increased assessed value in the Area 
above the Frozen Base.  

Table 14. Additional Revenues Obtained after Termination of TIF - FYE 2051 
Taxing District Type Tax 

Rate 
From Frozen 

Base 
From Excess 

Value 
Total 

General Government      
Yamhill County Permanent 2.5775 28,136 521,437 549,573 
Yamhill County Extension 
Service 

Permanent 0.0449 490 9,083 9,573 

Yamhill County Soil & Water Permanent 0.0354 386 7,162 7,548 
City of Dayton Permanent 1.7057 18,619 345,069 363,688 
Dayton Fire Department Permanent 1.2302 13,429 248,874 262,303 
Chemeketa Library Permanent 0.0818 893 16,548 17,441 
Subtotal  5.6755 61,953 1,148,173 1,210,126 
Education  .0000    
School District 8 Permanent 5.0892 55,553 1,029,562 1,085,115 
Willamette Regional ESD Permanent 0.2967 3,239 60,023 63,262 
Chemeketa Community 
College 

Permanent 0.6259 6,832 126,622 133,454 

Subtotal  6.0118 65,624 1,216,208 1,281,832 
TOTAL:  11.6873 $127,577 $2,364,381 $2,491,958 

Source: Tiberius Solutions  

 

 

  

75



X. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY LIMITS ON ASSESSED VALUE AND 
SIZE OF URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

State law limits the percentage of both a municipality’s total assessed value and the total 
land area that can be contained in an urban renewal Area at the time of its establishment to 
25% for municipalities under 50,000 in population. As noted below, the frozen base 
(assumed to be FYE 2024 values), including all real, personal, manufactured, and utility 
properties in the Area, is projected to be $10,915,900. The frozen base is the assessed 
value of the Area at the time it is adopted. The Yamhill County Assessor will establish the 
frozen base once the urban renewal plan is adopted.  

The percentage of total City assessed value in urban renewal area is 6.83%, below the 25% 
threshold.  

The Area contains approximately 131 acres, including public rights-of-way. This puts 
24.25% of the city’s acreage in an urban renewal area, which is below the 25% threshold. 

Table 15. Urban Renewal Area Conformance with Assessed Value and Acreage Limits 

  Acreage Assessed Value 
Dayton Urban Renewal Area 131 $10,915,900  

City of Dayton 538 $159,743,377  

% of City Acreage  23.6%   

% of City Assessed Value  24.25%  6.83% 
Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC  

  

76



 

XI. EXISTING PHYSICAL, SOCIAL, AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND 
IMPACTS ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES 

This section of the Report describes existing conditions within the Area and documents the 
occurrence of “blighted areas,” as defined by ORS 457.010(1). 

A. Physical Conditions 

1. Land Use 

The Area measures 131 total acres in size, which is composed of 106 individual parcels 
encompassing 89.14 acres, and an additional 41.86 acres in public rights-of-way. An 
analysis of FYE 2024 property classification data from the Yamhill County Department of 
Assessment and Taxation database was used to determine the land use designation of 
parcels in the Area. By acreage, Exempt (49.20%) accounts for the most prevalent land use 
within the Area. Exempt uses are those uses that are government, non-profit or other tax-
exempt status. Some of the exempt uses are classified as residential in the comprehensive 
plan and zoning table. This was followed by Industrial (35.19%) and Residential (11.21%). 
Detailed land use designations in the Area can be seen in Table 16.   

Table 16. Land Use in the Area   
Land Use Tax Lots Acres Percent of Acres 

Exempt 29 43.86 49.20% 
Industrial 1 31.37 35.19% 
Residential 46 9.99 11.21% 
Commercial 26 3.36 3.77% 
Miscellaneous 4 0.56 0.63% 
  TOTAL: 106 89.14 100.00% 

Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting with data from Tiberius Solutions received from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation (FYE 2024) 

 

  

77



 

2. Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Designations 

The Comprehensive Plan and Zoning designations in Dayton are the same. The most 
prevalent comprehensive plan and zoning designation by acreage in the Area is Public 
(44.09%). The second most prevalent comprehensive  plan designation in the Area is 
Industrial (35.19%).The Industrial parcel has split zoning, with commercial on the top edge 
of the parcel. However, the parcel is identified in the following table as Industrial. Detailed 
comprehensive plan designations in the Area can be seen in  Table 17.  

Table 17. Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Designations in the Area 

Designations Tax Lots Acres Percent of Acres 
Public 21 39.3 44.09% 
Industrial 1 31.37 35.19% 
Residential-2 25 6.3 7.07% 
Commercial 37 5.55 6.23% 
Commercial/Residential 17 3.36 3.77% 
Residential 1 5 3.26 3.66% 
  TOTAL: 106 89.14 100.00% 

Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting with data from Tiberius Solutions received from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation (FYE 2024).  

Figure 2. Comprehensive Plan Designations  

 
FIGURE TO BE INSERTED LATER

78



B. Infrastructure 

This section identifies the existing conditions in the Area to assist in establishing blight in 
the ordinance adopting the urban renewal plan. These are projects identified by the City 
of Dayton staff in identifying infrastructure needs in the Area for establishing blighting 
conditions in the Area. This does not mean that all of these projects are included in the 
urban renewal plan. The specific projects that are included in the Plan are listed in 
Sections III and IV of this Report.  

1. Transportation  

Deficiencies in the Area are shown below.  

• Ash Street from west connection to Flower Lane to 5th Street 
• 5th Street to Mill Street  
• 4th Street from Oak Street to Main Street  
• Mill Street 4th Street to 3rd  Street (Highway 221) 
• Main Street from 5th Street to 4th Street and 3rd Street to 2nd Street  
• Church Street from 4th Street to 3rd Street (Highway 221) 
• Oak Street from 4th Street to 3rd Street (Highway 221) 
• 2nd Street from Main Street to Alder Street  
• Kreeder Road from Highway 223 to the east edge of the Area  

2. Water, Sanitary Sewer and Storm Water 

Deficiencies in the water, sanitary sewer, and storm water systems are shown below.   

Water:  There are water pipe upsizing projects needed within the Area.  

• Ash Street west from 9th Street and continuing as Ash Street turns south.  
• 5th Street between Oak Street and Church Street  
• 4th Street between Ferry Street and Alder Street  
• Kreeder Road east of the Yamhill River  
• Highway 221 from south side of the Area to Mill Street 
• Mill Street between 4th Street and 3rd Street (Highway 221) 

 

Sanitary Sewer:  There are sewer pipe upsizing projects and other sanitary sewer 
deficiencies within the Area.  

• Ash Street west from 9th Street and continuing as Ash Street turns south.  
• Ferry Street from Ash Street west to 8th Street  
• Kreeder Road along west portion of the loop  
• North of Ferry Street and west of 1st Street  
• Main Pump Station Fore Main(to Wastewater Treatment Plant) and Bore under 

Yamhill River) 
• Reroute RV Park Force Main 
• Ferry Street (9th Street pump station (P.S.) to Manhole (MH) 34 
• 9th Street Pump Station Force Main (P.S. to MH 11)  
• New Ash Street Pump Station Force Main.  

  

  

79



  

Storm: There are storm pipe upsizing projects deficiencies within the Area.  

• Ferry Street east of Flower Lane to 7th Street.  
• Oak Street from 3rd street to 5th Street 
• 3rd  Street from Ash street to Main Street  
• Main Street east of 3rd Street  
•  and Church Street.  
• Ferry Street between 1st Street and 2nd Street  
• Mill Street west of 4th Street.  

C. Social Conditions  

According to information from the Yamhill County Assessor’s office, the Area contains forty-
six parcels containing ten acres that have residential uses. Since there are such limited 
residents in the Area, the following demographics are presented for the City of Dayton as a 
whole. These facts are from the US Census 2022 American Community Survey 5 Year 
Estimates.  

• There are households 722 with 2.69 persons per household. Dayton has a 
population of 2,678.  

• Thirty percent of the residents are Hispanic or Latin. 
• Thirty percent speak a language other than English at home.  
• In 2021, the median household income of Dayton households was $76,014.  
• Twenty one percent of residents in Dayton meet the poverty level in the census 

tracking.  
• Seventy-nine percent of residents own their own homes.  

  

80



D. Economic Conditions 

1. Taxable Value of Property within the Area 

The estimated total assessed value of the Area calculated with data from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation for FYE 2024 including all real, personal, 
manufactured, and utility properties, is estimated to be $10,915,900. 

2. Building to Land Value Ratio 

Table 18 shows the improvement to land ratios (I:L) for properties within the Area. In the 
Area, 29 tax lots or 49.21% of the Area is exempt, meaning they have no assessed value.  
Fifteen tax lots representing 37.42% of the acreage have no improvement value. Another 
6.52% of the acreage has  I:L ratios less than 1.0. In other words, the improvements on 
these properties are worth less than the land they sit on. A reasonable I:L ratio for properties 
in the Area is 2.0. Only 19 of the 105 tax lots in the Area, totaling 3.25% of the acreage have 
I:L ratios of 2.0 or more. In summary, the area is underdeveloped and not contributing 
significantly to the tax base in Dayton.  

Table 18. Improvement to Land Ratios in the Area 
Improvement to Land Ratio Tax Lots Acres Percent of Acres 
Exempt 29 43.86 49.21% 
No Improvement Value 15 33.35 37.42% 
0.01-0.50 7 0.89 1.00% 
0.51-1.00 20 4.92 5.52% 
1.01-1.50 11 2.44 2.74% 
1.51-2.00 5 0.77 0.86% 
2.01-2.50 12 1.48 1.66% 
2.51-3.00 3 0.82 0.92% 
3.01-4.00 1 0.16 0.18% 
> 4.00 3 0.44 0.49% 
  TOTAL: 106 89.13 100.00% 

Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting with data from Tiberius Solutions received from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation (FYE 2023) 

 

  

81



E. Impact on Municipal Services 

The fiscal impact of tax increment financing on taxing Areas that levy taxes within the Area 
(affected taxing Areas) is described in Section IX of this Report. This subsection discusses 
the fiscal impacts resulting from potential increases in demand for municipal services.  

The projects being considered for future use of urban renewal funding are for improving the 
overall conditions of the Area including improvements to the recreation facilities, façade 
improvements, redevelopment of buildings, and improving the pedestrian and streetscape 
environment. It is anticipated that these improvements will catalyze development on the 
undeveloped parcels in the Area.  

The financial impacts from tax increment collections will be countered by future economic 
development, and, in the future, adding increases in assessed value to the tax base for all 
taxing jurisdictions, including the city.  

XII. REASONS FOR SELECTION OF EACH URBAN RENEWAL AREA IN THE 
PLAN 

The reason for selecting the Area is to provide the ability to fund projects and programs 
necessary to cure blight within the Area. The outcome of implementing these projects is 
anticipated to be an increase to the economic growth in Dayton by providing infrastructure 
improvements to improve the overall environment of the Area including providing improved 
facilities for recreation opportunities for residents and tourists, improving the safety and 
functioning of the transportation network in the Area, providing upgraded utility systems and 
the ability to provide incentives for economic development in the Area. 

XIII. RELOCATION REPORT 
When the Agency acquires occupied property under the Plan, residential or commercial 
occupants of such property shall be offered relocation assistance, as required under 
applicable state law. Prior to such acquisition, the Agency shall adopt rules and regulations, 
as necessary, for the administration of relocation assistance. The Agency will comply with all 
applicable state law in providing these potential benefits. At the writing of this Report, the 
Agency anticipates acquiring right of way in the Area. 

 

82



To:   Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 
 
From:  Dave Rucklos – TED Director 
 
Issue:  Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 664 Adopting the Urban 

Renewal Plan  
 
Date:  November 4, 2024 
  
 
Background and Information 
 
Objective:   
 
To adopt the City of Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (URP) as authorized by its Urban Renewal 
Agency (URA).     
 
Explanation: 
 
On July 15, 2024, Elaine Howard presented the Urban Renewal Plan, and a public hearing 
was held. The first reading of Ordinance 664 was approved on October 21, 2024 by the City 
Council. 
 
The taxing districts of the City of Dayton, Dayton Fire District, and Dayton School District have 
cooperatively come together to approve said plan as attached.   
 
City staff would like the council to adopt the 25-year plan as outlined, allowing the city to use 
tax increment financing for defined projects including but not limited to the creation of 
infrastructure improvements and upgrades, recreational improvements, downtown property 
enhancements, and fire district and school district capital projects 
 
 
Interim City Manager Recommendation: I recommend approving the second reading of 
Ordinance 664. 
 

1. Perform the Second Reading of the Ordinance by Title Only. 
 

“ORDINANCE NO. 664 
CITY OF DAYTON 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL MAKING CERTAIN 
DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS RELATING TO AND APPROVING THE DAYTON 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND DIRECTING THAT NOTICE OF APPROVAL BE 
PUBLISHED” 

 
2. Potential Motion to Approve the Second Reading of the Ordinance by Title Only: 

 

83



“I MOVE TO APPROVE THE SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 664 AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL MAKING CERTAIN 
DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS RELATING TO AND APPROVING THE DAYTON 
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND DIRECTING THAT NOTICE OF APPROVAL BE 
PUBLISHED” 
 

3. Potential Montion to Adopt Ordinance 664: 
“I MOVE TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 664 AN ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS RELATING TO AND 
APPROVING THE DAYTON URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND DIRECTING THAT NOTICE 
OF APPROVAL BE PUBLISHED 
 
City Council Options: 
 
1 – Approve the 2nd Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 664 as recommended.  
2 – Approve the 2nd Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 664 with amendments. 
3 –Take no action and ask staff to do more research and bring further options back to the City 
Council. 
 
 
 
 

84



ORDINANCE NO. 664 
CITY OF DAYTON 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE DAYTON CITY COUNCIL MAKING CERTAIN 
DETERMINATIONS AND FINDINGS RELATING TO AND APPROVING THE 

DAYTON URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND DIRECTING THAT NOTICE OF 
APPROVAL BE PUBLISHED 

 

WHEREAS, the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency (“the Agency”), as the duly authorized and 
acting urban renewal agency of the City of Dayton, Oregon, is proposing to undertake 
certain urban renewal activities in a designated area within the City pursuant to ORS Chapter 
457; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency, pursuant to the requirements of ORS Chapter 457, has caused the 
preparation of the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan dated August 5, 2024, and attached hereto as 
Exhibit A (the “Plan”) and incorporated hereby by reference, and the Plan authorizes certain 
urban renewal activities within the Dayton Urban Renewal Area (the “Area”); and  

WHEREAS, the Agency has caused the preparation of a certain report accompanying the 
Dayton Urban Renewal Plan dated August 5, 2024, attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Report”) 
and incorporated hereby by reference to accompany the Plan as required under ORS 
457.087; and  

WHEREAS, the Agency forwarded the Plan and Report to the Dayton Planning Commission 
(the “Planning Commission”) for review and recommendation.  The Planning Commission 
considered the Plan and Report on June 13, 2024 and passed a motion that the Plan 
conformed with the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. A memorandum stating that action is 
attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Planning Commission Recommendation”); and 

WHEREAS, the Plan and the Report were forwarded on May 7, 2024 to the governing body 
of each taxing district affected by the Plan, and the Agency has thereafter consulted and 
conferred with each taxing district; and 

WHEREAS, there is a public building project in the Plan for the Dayton Fire District and a 
project not defined as a public building project for the Dayton School District; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Dayton, Dayton Fire District, Dayton School District and Yamhill 
County were asked to concur with the inclusion of the Dayton Fire District and Dayton School 
District projects pursuant to ORS 457. 089 (3); and  

WHEREAS, the Dayton City Council, Dayton School District and the Dayton Fire District 
passed resolutions approving the inclusion of these public projects in the Plan attached 
hereto as Exhibit C, Exhibit D and Exhibit E respectively; and  

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2024 the City met with representatives of Yamhill County to review 
the Plan, including proposed maximum indebtedness for the Plan; and  

85



WHEREAS, the City Council has received a written recommendation from the governing 
body of the Yamhill Soil and Conservation District dated June 14, 2024, attached hereto as 
Exhibit F; and hereby modifies that recommendation and agrees to collaborate with the 
Yamhill County Soil and Water Conservation District; and 

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2024, the City caused notice of the public hearing to be held before 
the Council on the Plan, including the required statements of ORS 457.120(3), to be mailed 
to utility customers within City’s incorporated limits; and 

WHEREAS, on July 15, 2024, the City Council held a public hearing to review and consider 
the Plan, the Report, the recommendation of the Dayton Planning Commission and the public 
testimony received on or before that date and to receive additional public testimony; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council found that the Plan conforms with all applicable legal 
requirements; and 

WHEREAS, after consideration of the record presented through this date, the City Council 
does by this Ordinance desire to approve the Plan.   

NOW THEREFORE, CITY OF DAYTON HEREBY ORDAINS THAT: 

Section 1:   The Plan complies with all applicable requirements of ORS Chapter 457 and the 
specific criteria of ORS 457.095, in that, based on the information provided in the Report, the 
Dayton Planning Commission Recommendation, and the public testimony before the City 
Council: 

1. The process for the adoption of the Plan, has been conducted in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of Chapter 457 of the Oregon Revised Statutes and all other 
applicable legal requirements. 

2. The area designated in the Plan as the Area is blighted, as defined by ORS 457.010(1) 
and is eligible for inclusion within the Plan because of conditions described in the 
Report in the Section “Existing Physical, Social, and Economic Conditions and Impacts 
on Municipal Services”, including the existence of inadequate streets and other rights 
of way, open spaces and utilities within the Area (ORS 457.010(1)(e)) and a prevalence 
of depreciated values, impaired investments and social and economic maladjustments 
to such an extent that the capacity to pay taxes is reduced and tax receipts are 
inadequate for the cost of public services rendered (ORS 457.010(1)(e) and (g)); 

3. The rehabilitation and redevelopment described in the Plan to be undertaken by the 
Agency is necessary to protect the public health, safety or welfare of the City because 
absent the completion of urban renewal projects, the Area will fail to contribute its fair 
share of property tax revenues to support City services and will fail to develop and/or 
redevelop according to the goals of the City’s Comprehensive Plan; 

4. The Plan conforms to the Dayton Comprehensive Plan and provides an outline for 
accomplishing the projects described in the Plan, as more fully described in XII of the 
Plan and in the Dayton Planning Commission recommendation. 

5. No residential displacement will occur as a result of the acquisition and disposition of 
land and redevelopment activities proposed in the Plan and therefore the Plan does 
not include provisions to house displaced persons.  

86



6. Acquisition is an eligible component of the Plan and is necessary to cure blight in the 
Area and to promote economic prosperity.  

7. Adoption and carrying out the Plan is economically sound and feasible in that eligible 
projects and activities will be funded by urban renewal tax revenues derived from a 
division of taxes pursuant to section 1c, Article IX of the Oregon Constitution and ORS 
457.440 and other available funding as more fully described in the Sections IV 
through IX of the Report.  

8. The City shall assume and complete any activities prescribed it by the Plan; and 
9. The Agency consulted and conferred with affected overlapping taxing districts prior 

to the Plan being forwarded to the City Council. 

Section 2: At the time of the consideration of this ordinance for approval the City has 
received concurrence of the public building projects listed in the Plan by three of the four 
taxing districts estimated to forego the most taxes as computed in the Report accompanying 
the Plan.  

Section 3:  The Dayton Urban Renewal Plan is hereby approved based upon review and 
consideration by the City Council of the Plan and Report, the Dayton Planning Commission 
Recommendation, each of which is hereby accepted, and the public testimony in the record. 

Section 4: The City Manager shall forward forthwith to the Agency and to the Yamhill County 
Assessor a copy of this Ordinance and all attachments.  

Section 5: The Agency shall thereafter cause a copy of the Plan to be recorded in the 
Records of Yamhill County, Oregon. 

Section 6: The City Recorder, in accordance with ORS 457.115, shall publish notice of the 
adoption of the Ordinance approving the Plan including the provisions of ORS 457.135, in 
the News Register no later than four days following adoption of this Ordinance. 

 
ADOPTED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Dayton this ______ of 
___________, 2024. 

Mode of enactment: 

Date of first reading: _October 21, 2024_ In Full ____ or by title only _XX__ 

Date of second reading: ____________ In Full ____ or by title only ______ 

____ No council member present at the meeting requested that the ordinance be read in full. 

____ A copy of the ordinance was provided to each Council member; three copies of the 
ordinance were provided for public inspection in the office of the City Recorder no later than 
one week before the first reading of the ordinance. 

Final Vote 

In Favor: 

Opposed: 

87



Absent: 

Abstained: 

 

_____________________________________   ____________________ 
Annette Frank, Mayor     Date of Signing 

 

 

_____________________________________   ____________________ 
Rocio Vargas, City Recorder     Date of Enactment 

 

 
Attachments:  

Exhibit A – Dayton Urban Renewal Plan   

Exhibit B – Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan    

Exhibit C – Dayton Planning Commission Recommendation on             
the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan   

Exhibit D – City Council Resolution for Inclusion of Public Building Projects 

Exhibit E – Dayton School District Resolution for Inclusion of Public Building Projects 

Exhibit F – Dayton Fire District Resolution for Inclusion of Public Building Projects 

Exhibit G – Yamhill Conty Soil and Conservation District letter  

 

88



Dayton Urban Renewal Plan 

Adopted by the City of Dayton 

November 4, 2024 

Ordinance No. 664 

Exhibit A

89



If Amendments are made to the Plan, the Resolution or Ordinance Number, date and a brief summary 
will be listed here. The amendment will be incorporated into the Plan and noted through a footnote. 

 

 

 

 

  

90



LIST OF PARTICIPANTS 
 

City Council  

Mayor Annette Frank  
Council President Luke Wildhaber  
Jim Maguire  
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Kitty Mackin 
Scott Hover 
Chris Teichroew 
 
Dayton Urban Renewal Agency  

Jim Maguire, Chair  
Annette Frank, Vice-Chair 
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Kitty Mackin 
Luke Wildhaber 
Scott Hover 
Chris Teichroew 

Planning Commission  

Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson 
Dave Mackin, Vice Chairperson 
Tim Parsons 
Rob Hallyburton 
Katelyn Weber Van Genderen 
 
  

 

  

City of Dayton Staff 

Interim City Manager, Cyndi Park 
Director of Tourism and Economic Development, 
Dave Rucklos  
City Recorder, Rocio Vargas 
 
Consulting Team  

Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC 

Elaine Howard 
Scott Vanden Bos 

Tiberius Solutions LLC 

Nick Popenuk 
Ali Danko 
 

Margaret Raimann 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

91



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

I. DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................................ 1 

II. INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 3 

III. MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS ......................................................................................................... 6 

IV. PLAN GOALS ................................................................................................................................. 6 

V. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS ........................................................................................................ 8 

VI. AMENDMENTS TO PLAN ............................................................................................................ 10 

VII. PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION.............................................................................. 11 

VIII. RELOCATION METHODS ............................................................................................................. 12 

IX. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OF PLAN ...................................................................................... 13 

X. VALIDITY ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

XI. ANNUAL REPORT ....................................................................................................................... 14 

XII. RELATIONSHIP TO LOCAL OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................... 15 

 

92



I. DEFINITIONS 

“Agency ” means the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency. This Dayton Urban Renewal Agency is responsible 
for administration of the urban renewal plan. 

“Area” means the properties and rights-of-way located within the Dayton Urban Renewal Boundary. 

“Blight” is defined in ORS 457.010(1)(A-E) and identified in the ordinance adopting the urban renewal 
plan.  

“Board of Commissioners” means the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners.  

“City” means the City of Dayton, Oregon.  

“City Council” or “Council” means the Dayton City Council. 

“Comprehensive Plan” means the City of Dayton comprehensive land use plan and its implementing 
ordinances, policies, and standards.  

“County” means Yamhill County, Oregon.  

“Fiscal year ending” means the year commencing on July 1 of one year and closing on June 30 of the 
next year. 

“Frozen base” means the total assessed value including all real, personal, manufactured, and utility 
values within an urban renewal area at the time of adoption. The County Assessor certifies the assessed 
value after the adoption of an urban renewal plan.  

“Increment” means that part of the assessed value of a taxing district attributable to any increase in the 
assessed value of the property located in an urban renewal area, or portion thereof, over the assessed 
value specified in the certified statement. 

“Maximum indebtedness” means the amount of the principal of indebtedness included in a plan 
pursuant to ORS 457.190 and does not include indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing 
indebtedness. 

“ORS” means Oregon Revised Statutes. Chapter 457 specifically relates to urban renewal. 

“Planning Commission” means the Dayton Planning Commission.  

“Revenue sharing” means under-levying tax increment proceeds to effectively share a portion of the 
revenue with the other taxing districts that levy permanent rate taxes in the urban renewal area as 
defined in ORS 457.470. 

“Tax increment financing (TIF)” is a method of funding urban renewal projects and programs through 
incurring debt that is repaid by the division of taxes accomplished through the adoption of an urban 
renewal plan.  

“Tax increment finance revenues” means the funds allocated by the assessor to an urban renewal area 
due to increases in assessed value over the frozen base within the area.  

93



“Urban renewal area” or “URA” means a blighted area included in an urban renewal plan or an area 
included in an urban renewal plan under ORS 457.160. 

“Urban renewal plan” or “Plan” means a plan, as it exists or is changed or modified from time to time, 
for one or more urban renewal areas, as provided in ORS 457.085, 457.095, 457.105, 457.115, 457.120, 
457.125, 457.135 and 457.220. 

“Urban renewal project” or “Project” means any work or undertaking carried out under ORS 457 in an 
urban renewal area. 

“Urban renewal report” or “Report” means the official report that accompanies the urban renewal plan 
pursuant to ORS 457.087.  

  

94



II. INTRODUCTION  

A. Background 

Dayton Forward, A Vision for the Future (Dayton Forward), was prepared for the Dayton Community 
Development Association in 2012. Since that time, the City of Dayton has used the Dayton Forward plan 
guidelines and action items as guidelines for the future development of downtown Dayton. One of the 
recommended Next Steps in the Dayton Forward plan was to seek funding for a significant package of 
infrastructure. Other recommended actions in the Dayton Forward plan require funding that is not 
available in the City of Dayton budget. Urban renewal, with its associated tax increment financing, is a 
financing tool that can assist the city with the implementation of the Dayton Forward plan and create a 
vibrant downtown for its residents and visitors.  

Opportunities for public involvment in the preparation of the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan included:   

• City Council Urban Renewal 101, October 2, 2023 

• City Council consideration of ordiance for establishing urban renewal agency March 4, 2024,  
April 3, 2024  

• Dayton Urban Renewal Agency meeting on May 6, 2024 

• Planning Commission meeting on June 20, 2024 

• City Council public hearing on July 15, 2024 which was noticed to all utility customers in the City 
of Dayton via the utility bills. 

• City Council 1st reading of the ordinance considering adopting the URA Plan on October 21, 
2024. 

• City Council 2nd reading of the ordinance and adoption of the URA Plan on November 4, 2024. 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Plan Area (Area), shown in Figure 1, consists of approximately 133.2 acres. It 
is anticipated that the Plan will take twenty five years (25) of tax increment collections to implement, 
although there is no duration provision in this Plan. The maximum amount of indebtedness that may be 
issued for the Plan is Twenty-Nine Million Four Hundred Thousand dollars ($29,400,000). Detailed 
financial analysis is in the Report accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan. 

Goals and objectives developed for the Plan are intended to guide tax increment finance (TIF) revenue 
investment in the Area over the life of the Plan. The project category descriptions and list of projects are 
similarly intended to aid future decision makers when considering how best to expend TIF revenue.  

The relationship between the sections of the Plan and the ORS 457.085 requirements is shown in Table 
1. The specific reference in the table is the section of this Plan that primarily addresses the statutory 
reference. There may be other sections of the Plan that also address the statute. 

  

95



Table 1 - Statutory References 

Statutory Requirement  Plan Section 
ORS 457.085(2)(a) V 
ORS 457.085(2)(b) V 
ORS 457.085(2)(c) XIII 
ORS 457.085(2)(d) XII 
ORS 457.085(2)(e) XII 
ORS 457.085(2)(f) VIII 
ORS 457.085(2)(g) VII 
ORS 457.085(2)(h) III 
ORS 457.085(2)(i) VI 
ORS 457.085(2)(j) V 

 

B. Urban Renewal Overview 

Urban renewal allows for the use of tax increment financing, a funding source that is unique to urban 
renewal, to fund its projects. Tax increment revenues - the amount of property taxes generated by the 
increase in total assessed values in the urban renewal area from the time the urban renewal area is first 
established - are used to repay borrowed funds. The borrowed funds are used to pay for urban renewal 
projects and cannot exceed the maximum indebtedness amount set by the urban renewal plan.  

The purpose of urban renewal is to improve specific areas of a city that are poorly developed or 
underdeveloped, called blighted areas in Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 457.010. These areas can have 
deteriorated buildings, changing uses, streets and utilities in poor condition, a complete lack of streets 
and utilities altogether, or other obstacles to development.  

In general, urban renewal projects can include construction or improvement of streets, utilities, and 
other public facilities; assistance for rehabilitation or redevelopment of property; acquisition and re-sale 
of property (site assembly) from willing sellers; and improvements to public spaces including parks and 
open spaces. This Area meets the definition of blight due to the condition of the buildings, changing uses 
in the Area, utility infrastructure deficiencies, and underdeveloped and undeveloped properties. These 
blighted conditions are specifically cited in the ordinance adopting the Plan and described in detail in the 
Report Accompanying the Plan (Report). 

  

96



The Report contains the information required by ORS 457.087, including:  

• A description of the physical, social, and economic conditions in the Area and expected 
impact of the plan, including fiscal impact in light of increased services; (ORS 457.087(1)) 

• Reasons for selection of the plan Area; (ORS 457.087(2)) 
• The relationship between each project to be undertaken and the existing conditions; (ORS 

457.087(3)) 
• The estimated total cost of each project and the source of funds to pay such costs; (ORS 

457.087(4)) 
• The estimated completion date of each project; (ORS 457.087(5))The estimated amount of 

funds required in the Area and the anticipated year in which the debt will be retired; (ORS 
457.087(6)) 

• A financial analysis of the plan; (ORS 457.087(7)) 
• A fiscal impact statement that estimates the impact of tax increment financing (TIF) upon 

all entities levying taxes upon property in the urban renewal area; (ORS 457.0857(8)) and 
• A relocation report.(ORS 457.087(9)) 

  

97



III. MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS 

Maximum indebtedness is the amount of indebtedness secured by a pledge of tax increment revenue 
that can be spent on projects, programs and administration throughout the life of the Plan. The 
maximum amount of indebtedness that may be issued or incurred under the Plan, based upon good 
faith estimates of the scope and costs of projects in the Plan and the schedule for their completion is 
Twenty-Nine Million Four Hundred Thousand dollars ($29,400,000). This amount is the principal of such 
indebtedness and does not include interest or indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing 
indebtedness or interest earned on bond or loan proceeds.  

IV. PLAN GOALS 

The goals of the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan are listed below. The urban renewal plan is an 
implementation tool to enable the city to undertake projects for which there are no other funding 
sources or are limited funding sources.   

The goals of the Plan represent its basic intents and purposes.  These goals come from the Dayton 
Forward A Vision for the Future Plan. The urban renewal projects identified in Section V of the Plan are 
the specific means of meeting the goals. The goals will be pursued as they become economically feasible 
and at the discretion of the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency. The goals are not listed in any order of 
importance or priority. A matrix of how the projects align with the goals is shown in Table 2. 

A.  Develop and maintain resilient infrastructure to support operations and meet growth.  

B.  Create a livable community that is aesthetically pleasing, affordable, inviting, and with a vibrant 
and diverse economy.  

C. Capitalize on Dayton’s facilities and resources to provide recreational and cultural opportunities. 

D. Use Dayton’s heritage and historic resources to forward our image as an authentic and charming 
town. 

 

Table 2 – Relationship of Projects to Dayton Urban Renewal Plan Goals 

Project Category    
Recreation Improvements    B, C, D 
Downtown Streetscape  B,D 
Building Façade Grant Program  B,D 
Taxing District Partnerships  A,B 
Infrastructure (streets and utilities) A 
Development and Redevelopment  B,D 
Administration & staffing  All 

 

  

98



Figure 1 – Dayton Urban Renewal Plan Area Boundary  

 
Source: Tiberius Solutions  

  

99



V. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS   

Urban renewal projects authorized by the Plan are described below. They are not listed in any priority 
order. The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will determine the order of the projects and may add and 
remove projects in the future through the amendment process defined in Section VI of this Plan. The 
projects identified for the Area are described below, including how they relate to the existing conditions 
in the Area.  

A. Recreation/Public Space Improvements  

      Install recreation and park improvements including but not limited to:  
• Dayton Landing   
• Courthouse Square Park Enhancement  
• Legion Field  
• 11th Street Park  
• Alderman Park 
• Brookside Cemetery  

B. Downtown Streetscape Improvements  

Install streetscape improvements including but not limited to:  
• Ornate lighting installation 
• Bicycle racks  
• Benches 
• Signage  
• Street trees 

C. Building Façade Grant Program  

Create a building façade grant program to improve the buildings in the Area.  

D. Taxing District Partnerships  

Work with taxing districts to identify projects that will assist them in providing services to the Area.  

Dayton Fire District: provide funding up to $2.88 million dollars calculated annually at a rate of 
7.946 percent of the Agency’s tax receipts for the Area for the purchase of capital equipment or for 
capital improvements to the Fire District station. The Improvements to the fire station serve and 
benefit the Area by being able to provide fire protection services to the Area and to the proposed 
redevelopment and new development in the Area. The Agency will enter into an intergovernmental 
agreement with the Dayton Fire District for the provision of capital improvements in the Area. 

Dayton School District: provide funding up to one million dollars calculated annually at a rate of 
2.76 percent of the Agency’s tax receipts for the Area for recreational improvements at the Dayton 
High School. The assistance to the Dayton School District serves and benefits the Area by providing 
additional facilities to the school district to help with the education of the residents of Dayton, 
encouraging the existing residents to keep their children in Dayton schools and showing the city’s 
commitment to the school district to help encourage other families to move to Dayton. The Agency 

100



will enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Dayton School District for the provision of 
capital improvements in the Area. 

The Fire Station project is deemed to be a public building project pursuant to the definition of a 
public building in the 2024 edition of ORS 457.010(12)(a)(A)1 and must be approved by at least 
three of the four taxing districts that are estimated to forgo the most property tax revenue as 
computed in the report accompanying the proposed plan (ORS 457.089(3)).  

The Fire District project and the School District project, even though the interpretation is that  it is 
defined as not a public building project in ORS 457.089(12)(b)(F)2, have received concurrence from 
the Dayton City Council, the Dayton Fire District and the Dayton School District. The resolutions of 
concurrence are attached to the City Council ordinance adopting the Plan. 

E. Public Infrastructure  

Provide for infrastructure upgrades including but not limited to: 

• Sewer and Water Line Extension and Upgrades 
• Street Paving, Overlay and Repair as allowed  
• Water Pressure Upgrades 
• Sewer Pond Addition 

F. Redevelopment and Development  

Provide development support including but not limited to: 

• Upgrading existing buildings  
• Providing incentives for development  in the Area, including the development of workforce 

housing 

G. Administration & staffing  

Authorizes expenditures for the administrative costs associated with managing the Area including 
but not liited to budgeting and annual reporting, planning and the implementation of projects in 
the Area.  

  

1 ORS 457.010(12)(a)(A).1  “Public building” means: (A) A fire station, police station, public library, public hospital, 
capitol building, school as defined in ORS 339.315, college, university, city hall or the residence of any state official 
elected by the state at large. 

2 ORS 457.010(12)(b)F) “Public building” does not mean: Park and recreation facilities, including sports fields. 

101



VI. AMENDMENTS TO PLAN 

The Plan may be amended as described in this section. Adding other properties to the Developer 
Incentives Program does not require an amendment to the Plan.   

A. Substantial Amendments 

Substantial Amendments, in accordance with ORS 457.085(2)(i), shall require the same notice, hearing, 
and approval procedure required of the original Plan, under ORS 457.095, including public involvement, 
consultation with taxing districts, presentation to the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency, the Planning 
Commission, the County, and adoption by the City Council by non-emergency ordinance after a hearing. 
Notice of such hearing shall be provided to individuals or households within the City of Dayton, as 
required by ORS 457.120. Notice of adoption of a Substantial Amendment shall be provided in 
accordance with ORS 457.095 and 457.115.  

Substantial Amendments are amendments that:3 

1. Add land to the urban renewal area, except for an addition of land that totals not more than a 
cumulative 1% of the existing area of the urban renewal area; or  

2. Increase the maximum amount of indebtedness that can be issued or incurred under the 
Plan. 

B. Minor Amendments 

Minor Amendments are amendments that are not Substantial Amendments as defined in this Plan and 
in ORS 457. Minor Amendments require approval by the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency by resolution.  

C. Amendments to the Dayton Comprehensive Plan and/or the Dayton Land Use an Development 
Code  

Amendments to the Dayton Comprehensive Plan and/or the Dayton Land Use and Development Code 
that affect the Plan and/or the Area shall be incorporated automatically within the Plan without any 
separate action required by the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency or City Council. If a Substantial 
Amendment is prepared, the Section of this Plan on Relationship to Local Objectives should be updated.   

  

3 Unless otherwise permitted by state law, no land equal to more than 20 percent of the total land area of the original Plan shall be added to the 
urban renewal area by amendments, and the aggregate amount of all amendments increasing the maximum indebtedness may not exceed 20 
percent of the Plan’s initial maximum indebtedness, as adjusted, as provided by law and by concurrence provisions in ORS 457.470. 

102



 

VII. PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION 

The Plan authorizes the acquisition and disposition of property as described in this section. Property 
includes any and all interests in property, including fee simple ownership, lease, easements, licenses, or 
other rights to use. If property is acquired it will be identified in the Plan through a Minor Amendment, 
as described in Section VII. Identification of property to be acquired and its anticipated disposition is 
required by ORS 457.085(g). If property acquisition includes a public building, how that public building 
serves and benefits the Area must be identified per ORS 457.085(2)(j). 

A. Property acquisition for public improvements 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency may acquire any property within the Area for the public 
improvement projects undertaken pursuant to the Plan by all legal means, including use of eminent 
domain. Good faith negotiations for such acquisitions must occur prior to institution of eminent domain 
procedures.  

B. Property acquisition from willing sellers 

The Plan authorizes Dayton Urban Renewal Agency acquisition of any interest in property within the 
Area that the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency finds is necessary for private redevelopment, but only in 
those cases where the property owner wishes to convey such interest to the Dayton Urban Renewal 
Agency. The Plan does not authorize the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency to use the power of eminent 
domain to acquire property from a private party to transfer property to another private party for private 
redevelopment. Property acquisition from willing sellers may be required to support development of 
projects within the Area.  

C. Land disposition 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will dispose of property acquired for a public improvement project 
by conveyance to the appropriate public Dayton Urban Renewal Agency responsible for the construction 
and/or maintenance of the public improvement. The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency may retain such 
property during the construction of the public improvement. 

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency may dispose of property acquired under Subsection B of this Section 
VIII by conveying any interest in property acquired. Property shall be conveyed at its fair reuse value. Fair 
reuse value is the value, whether expressed in terms of rental or capital price, at which the urban 
renewal Dayton Urban Renewal Agency , in its discretion, determines such land should be made 
available in order that it may be developed, redeveloped, cleared, conserved, or rehabilitated for the 
purposes specified in the Plan. Because fair reuse value reflects limitations on the use of the property to 
those purposes specified in the Plan, the value may be lower than the property’s fair market value. 

Where land is sold or leased, the purchaser or lessee must agree to use the land for the purposes 
designated in the Plan and to begin and complete the building of its improvements within a period of 
time that the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency determines is reasonable. 

D. Properties to be acquired  

103



This Plan must provide an indication of which real property may be acquired and the anticipated 
disposition of said real property whether by retention, resale, lease or other legal use, together with an 
estimated time schedule for such acquisition and disposition. This may be added at a date when the 
property is identified and may be added through a Minor Amendment.  

The Agency intends to work with Yamhill County on the acquisition of Dayton Landing.  

VIII. RELOCATION METHODS 

When the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency acquires occupied property under the Plan, residential or 
commercial occupants of such property shall be offered relocation assistance, as required under 
applicable state law. Prior to such acquisition, the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency shall adopt rules and 
regulations, as necessary, for the administration of relocation assistance. The Dayton Urban Renewal 
Agency will comply with all applicable state law in providing these potential benefits. 

There are plans to acquire land for infrastructure which may trigger relocation benefits in the future in 
the Area. All acquisitions will be reviewed for potential relocation benefits.  

 
  

104



IX. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OF PLAN 

Tax increment financing consists of using annual tax increment revenues to make payments on debt, 
usually in the form of bank loans or revenue bonds. The proceeds of the debt are used to finance the 
urban renewal projects authorized in the Plan. Debt may be either long-term or short-term.  

Tax increment revenues equal most of the annual property taxes imposed on the cumulative increase in 
assessed value within an urban renewal area over the frozen base value (i.e., total assessed value at the 
time an urban renewal plan is adopted). The property taxes for general obligation (GO) bonds and local 
option levies approved after October 6, 2001, are not part of the tax increment revenues.  

A. General description of the proposed financing methods 

The Plan will be financed using a combination of revenue sources. These include: 

• Tax increment revenues; 
• Advances, loans, grants, and any other form of financial assistance from federal, state, or 

local governments, or other public bodies; 
• Loans, grants, dedications, or other contributions from private developers and property 

owners, including, but not limited to, assessment districts; and 
• Any other public or private source. 

Revenues obtained by the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will be used to pay or repay the costs, 
expenses, advancements, and indebtedness incurred in (1) planning or undertaking project activities, or 
(2) otherwise exercising any of the powers granted by ORS Chapter 457 in connection with the 
implementation of this Plan, including costs associated with the preparation of the Plan. 

B. Tax increment financing 

The Plan may be financed, in whole or in part, by tax increment revenues allocated to the Dayton Urban 
Renewal Agency , as provided in ORS Chapter 457. The ad valorem taxes, if any, levied by a taxing district 
in which all or a portion of the Area is located, shall be divided as provided in Section 1c, Article IX of the 
Oregon Constitution, and ORS 457.440. Amounts collected pursuant to ORS 457.440 shall be deposited 
into the unsegregated tax collections account and distributed to the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency 
based upon the distribution schedule established under ORS 311.390. 

X. VALIDITY 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction find any work, clause, sentence, section or part of this Plan to 
be invalid, the remaining words, clauses, sentences, sections or parts shall be unaffected by such findings 
and shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Plan. 

  

105



XI. ANNUAL REPORT  

The Dayton Urban Renewal Agency shall file an Annual Financial Statement in compliance with ORS 
457.460. 

Figure 2 - Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Designations 

 
Source: Tiberius Solutions  

 

106



XII. RELATIONSHIP TO LOCAL OBJECTIVES  

ORS 457.085 requires that the Plan conform to local objectives including the comprehensive plan and 
economic development plan of a locality. This section provides that analysis. Relevant local planning and 
development objectives are contained within the City of Dayton Planning Atlas Comprehensive Plan 
(Comprehensive Plan), Dayton Forward A vison for the Future and the Dayton Land Use and 
Development Code. The following section describes the purpose and intent of these plans, the main 
applicable goals and policies within each plan, and an explanation of how the Plan relates to the 
applicable goals and policies. The analysis covers the most relevant sections of the documents but may 
not cover every section of the documents that relate to the Plan.  

The numbering of the goals and policies within this section reflects the numbering that occurs in the 
original document. Italicized text is text that has been taken directly from an original document and 
therefore cannot be changed.  

Comprehensive Plan and Zoning designations for all land in the Area are shown in Figure 2. All proposed 
land uses conform to Figure 2. Maximum densities and building requirements for all land in the Area are 
contained in the Dayton Development Code.  

A. City of Dayton Comprehensive Plan   

This document establishes goals and objectives for the City and creates implementing policies to achieve 
those goals, taking into account the objectives of the Statewide Land Use Goals and the requirements of 
the various implementing statutes and administrative rules. The goals contained in this plan are the 
general directions or accomplishments toward which the City wishes to go in the future. The polices are 
more specific actions the City feels are necessary to accomplish the goals. 

As the Comprehensive Plan is updated in the future, this document will automatically incorporate those 
updates without the Plan having to be formally amended. This section of the Plan should be updated if 
there is a substantial amendment completed in the future. 

Chapter 3. Natural, Scenic and Historic Resources Goals and Policies  
Goals 
1. To conserve open spaces, and preserve natural, scenic and cultural resources. 
3. To preserve significant historic land marks, sites and structures. 
 
Finding: The Plan a Building Façade program which will be able to assist in the preservation of historic 
buildings in the Area. The funding for recreation improvements will help preserve the valuable 
downtown recreation resources. The Plan is in conformance with the Natural, Scenic and Historic 
Resources Goals of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chapter 6. Land Use and Urbanization 
Goals 
2. To ensure a compact urban growth pattern. 
3. To recognize the importance of the adjacent farmland and the rural farm community to the local 

economy and larger Dayton and Yamhill County Community. 
 

107



Finding: The projects in the Plan will create an environment conducive to new development and 
redevelopment, ensuring a compact urban growth pattern. The Plan’s recreation projects will support 
the development of housing in the Area. The Plan also has infrastructure projects that will promote 
housing development to occur in the Area.  The Building Façade program that will assist in improving the 
appearance and function of the businesses in the Area which will provide services to future residents of 
the Area. The Plan is in conformance with the Land Use and Urbanization Goals of the Dayton 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Chapter 7. Housing and Public Needs  
Goals 
1. To encourage housing that will meet the needs of the community in a manner that will best afford 

adequate choices in all income ranges and housing types. 
3.  To ensure that the citizens are provided with safe and sanitary housing while promoting residential 

energy conservation design and construction techniques. 
4. To establish a residential zoning pattern and use which reduces the dependency on the automobile 

and encourages pedestrian connections to commercial and public areas. 
 

Finding: The Plan has recreation projects that will support the development of housing  
in the Area which will help provide housing choice, ensure safe and sanitary housing using current 
energy design and construction techniques. Providing housing in a mixed-use environment will help 
reduce the dependency on automobile traffic and encourage pedestrian connections to commercial and 
public areas. The Plan also has infrastructure projects that will promote housing development to occur in 
the Area.  The Building Façade program that will assist in improving the appearance and function of the 
businesses in the Area which will provide services to future residents of the Area. The Plan also has 
funding for redevelopment and development which could be used for the development of workforce 
housing. The Plan is in conformance with the Housing and Public Needs Goals of the Dayton 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Chapter 8. Economy of the City  
Goals 
1. To diversify and improve the City’s economy. 
2. To provide sufficient, orderly and convenient commercial and industrial development that will 

enhance the livability of the community and meet the needs of the citizens. 
3. Create an environment that will enhance the downtown and provide a focal point for both residents 

and visitors. 
 
Finding: The Plan has recreation projects that will provide increased activity in the Area, enhance the 
downtown and provide a focal point for residents and visitors. The Plan has infrastructure projects that 
will promote development to occur in the Area and a Building Façade program that will assist in 
improving the appearance and function of the businesses in the Area. Much of the development is 
anticipated to be mixed use developments, so will add to the environment that will enhance the 
downtown. The Plan is in conformance with the Economy Goal of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan.  

 
  

108



Chapter 9. Public Facilities and Services  
Goals 
1. To develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public and private facilities and services as 

a framework for future development. 
 
Finding: The Plan has transportation and utility projects within the Area. These projects will help 
facilitate new development within the Area. The Plan also has a project category of Taxing District 
Partnerships to work with the taxing districts to complete proejcts within the Area. The Plan is in 
conformance with the Public Facilities and Services Goals of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chapter 10. Transportation  
Goals 
1. To provide a safe, convenient, aesthetic and economic transportation system through a variety of 

transportation means. 
 
Finding: The Plan has transportation projects that will improve the transportation system and provide 
improved pedestrian mobility within the Area.  
The Plan is in conformance with the Transportation Goal of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
  

109



B. City of Dayton Land Use and Development Code  

The following zoning districts are within the Area. This Development Code is enacted to implement the 
goals and policies of the City of Dayton Comprehensive Plan; provide methods of administering and 
enforcing the provisions of this Code; and promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the 
community. As property is developed within the Area, it will go through the normal approval process of 
the City. This urban renewal plan does not change zoning or add any increased restrictions to any zoning 
category.   

1. Single Family Residential - R1 

7.2.102.01 Purpose 

The purpose of the R-1 zone is to allow development of single family homes on individual lots provided 
with urban services at urban densities. Other uses compatible with residential development are also 
appropriate. These areas are designated as Residential in the Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Limited Density Residential - R2 

7.2.103.01 Purpose 
The R-2 zone is intended to provide for detached and attached dwellings on a lot or multiple dwellings on 
a lot at an intermediate density. Other uses compatible with residential development are also 
appropriate. R-2 zones are located in areas designated Residential in the Comprehensive Plan 

3. Commercial Residential - CR 

7.2.105.01 Purpose 
To provide areas for the development of a mixture of single family, multi-family, and manufactured homes, 
and limited retail and service commercial uses. 

4. Commercial - C 

7.2.106.01 Purpose 
The Commercial (C) Zone is the primary commercial zone within the City. The zone is specifically designed 
to provide area for commercial activities to serve the residents of the City and the surrounding area. The 
Commercial Zone is suitable for the Commercial Plan designation. 

5. Industrial - I 

7.2.107.01 Purpose 

The purpose of the I Zone is to provide areas suitable for warehousing, primary and secondary 
processing, packaging, fabricating of finished goods and equipment with related outdoor storage and 
incidental sales. The Industrial zone is appropriate in those areas designated Industrial in the 
Comprehensive Plan where the location has access to an arterial street or highway and where the noises, 
lights, odors, and traffic will not conflict with residential areas. 

6. Public - P 

7.2.108.01 Purpose 

110

https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.102.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.103.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.105.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.106.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.107.01_Purpose
https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.108.01_Purpose


The purpose of the P (PUBLIC) zone is to provide areas appropriate for specific public and semi-public uses 
and to ensure their compatibility with adjacent uses. The Public zone is applicable to those properties 
designated Public in the Comprehensive Plan. 

Finding: The Plan is in conformance with the land use designations in the Dayton City Code. As property is 
developed within the Area, it will go through the normal approval process of the City. This urban renewal 
plan does not change zoning or add any increased restrictions to any zoning category.   

C. Dayton Forward – A Vision for the Future   

This plan was prepared for the City of Dayton in 2012.  

Goal 1. Build an authentic, peaceful, safe and inclusive community - diverse in its culture, ages, beliefs 
and income levels - where citizens care for each other and all groups feel welcome and comfortable. 

Goal 2. Maintain Dayton’s compact, pedestrian friendly, small-town character. Revitalize its central 
business core with appropriately scaled development. Focus on infill development and placemaking 
within the existing fabric. Avoid auto oriented commercial strip development. 

Goal 3. Use Dayton’s historic, cultural, and natural resources to transform it into an authentic and 
charming community which appeals to individuals with high disposable incomes. 

 Goal 4. Create a vibrant employment base through the development of small commercial 
businesses that serve residents and tourists, with industries that highlight the quality of surrounding 
agricultural products and sustainable practices. 

Goal 5. Use Dayton’s heritage and historic resources to forward its image as an authentic and charming 
town. 

Goal 6. Transform Dayton’s character through the use of landscape elements such as street trees, public 
parks and trail systems.  

Goal 7. Preserve, enhance and develop the scenic qualities of the Yamhill River by improving public 
access, creating recreation opportunities, and maintaining its natural beauty. 

Goal 8. Capitalize on Dayton’s natural resources to provide recreational opportunities for residents, 
tourists, and retirees. 

Goal 11. Provide a range of quality housing opportunities that will be attractive to young families, 
retirees, students, tourists and those employed within greater Dayton. 

Goal 12. Make Dayton a more self-sufficient community by improving residents’ access to basic daily 
retail services. 

Goal 13. Encourage a transportation system and modes of transportation that enhance and support the 
character of the town. 

Goal 15. Upgrade Dayton’s infrastructure so that commercial, industrial and housing growth can be 
accommodated. 

111



Finding: The Plan’s projects are intended to provide the type of community envisioned by the Dayton 
Forward Plan. There are projects to greatly enhance the recreational experience for residents and to 
bring visitors to Dayton. There are projects to support increased commercial activities, either through 
storefront loans, rehabilitation or new development.  There is funding to bring new residential 
opportunities to the Area, including workforce housing. There is funding to improve the streetscape and 
pedestrian atmosphere in the Area. The Plan is in conformance with the Dayton Forward – A Vision for 
the Future Plan.  

112



EXHIBIT A 
City of Dayton 

Urban Renewal Area Description 
 
A tract of land and road rights-of-way, located in the Northwest and Southwest One-Quarters of 
Section 16, the Northeast, Southwest, and Southeast One-Quarters of Section 17, and the Northwest 
One-Quarter of Section 20, Township 4 South, Range 3 West, Willamette Meridian, City of Dayton, 
Yamhill County, Oregon, and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the westerly corner of Lot 261 of the plat “Town of Dayton”, also being the intersection 
of the southeasterly right-of-way line of Main Street and the northeasterly right-of-way line of 5th 
Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 
 

1. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 300 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 4th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

2. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 721 feet, more or less, to 
the centerline of Oak Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

3. Thence along said centerline, Northeasterly 370 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly 
right-of-way line of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17AD); 

4. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 640 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly corner of Deed Instrument Number 200702379, Yamhill County Deed 
Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

5. Thence leaving said southwesterly right-of-way line, North 16°43’40” East 105.94 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

6. Thence North 44°55’45” East 90.79 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way 
line of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17AD); 

7. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,498 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Main Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

8. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 300 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 2nd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

9. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 140 feet, more or less, to 
the northerly corner of Lot 147 of said “Town of Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

10. Thence along the northeasterly extension of the northwesterly line of said Lot 147, 
Northeasterly 740 feet, more or less, to the northerly corner of Lot 31 of said “Town of 
Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

11. Thence leaving said northeasterly extension, Northeasterly 120 feet, more or less, to the 
westerly corner of Deed Film 245, Page 0007, Yamhill County Deed Records (Assessor's 
Map 4.3.16); 

12. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Deed, Northeasterly 310 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of SE Kreder Road (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

113



13. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 517 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly extension of the northwesterly line of Film 126, Page 259, Yamhill 
County Deed Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

14. Thence along said southwesterly extension and the northwesterly line of said Deed, 
Northeasterly 886 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly line of Instrument Number 
199704522, Yamhill County Deed Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

15. Thence along said southwesterly line, Northwesterly 962 feet, more or less, to the 
southeasterly right-of-way line of Oregon State Highway 18/233 (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

16. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 1,215 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly line of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

17. Thence along said northeasterly line and the southeasterly extension thereof, Southeasterly 
1,014 feet, more or less, to the southeasterly right-of-way line of SE Kreder Road 
(Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

18. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,591 feet, more or less, 
to the northeasterly line of Volume 48, Page 283 (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

19. Thence along said northeasterly line, Southeasterly 647 feet, more or less, to the easterly 
corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

20. Thence along the southeasterly line of said Deed, Southwesterly 968 feet, more or less, to 
the southerly corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

21. Thence leaving said southeasterly line, Southwesterly 145 feet, more or less, to the easterly 
corner of Volume 181, Page 111 (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

22. Thence along the southeasterly line of said Deed, Southwesterly 116 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

23. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 372 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly right-of-way line of 1st Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

24. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 150 feet, more or less, to 
the westerly corner of Lot 6 of said “Town of Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

25. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Lot 6 and the northeasterly extension thereof, 
Northeasterly 360 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of SE Water 
Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

26. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 190 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Alder Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

27. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 360 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly right-of-way line of 1st Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

28. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 260 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

29. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 440 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 2nd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

30. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 260 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Alder Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

31. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 240 feet, more or less, to 
the easterly corner of Lot 141 of said “Town of Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

32. Thence along the southeasterly extension of the northeasterly line of said Lot 141, 
Southeasterly 220 feet, more or less, to the westerly corner of Lot 130 of said “Town of 
Dayton” (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

33. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Lot 130, Northeasterly 60 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly line of said Lot 130 (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

114



34. Thence along said northeasterly line, Southeasterly 120 feet, more or less, to the easterly 
corner of Partition Plat No. 2006-35, also being on the northwesterly right-of-way line of 
Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

35. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to 
the easterly corner of Parcel 1 of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

36. Thence leaving said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southerly 71 feet, more or less, to the 
intersection of the southeasterly right-of-way line of Mill Street and the northeasterly right-
of-way line of 3rd Street (Assessor’s Map 4.3.16CB); 

37. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,309 feet, more or less, to 
the centerline of SE Palmer Road (Assessor's Map 4.3.16CB); 

38. Thence along said centerline, Southerly 155 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly right-
of-way line of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.16); 

39. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 977 feet, more or less, to 
easterly line of Instrument Number 201816829, Yamhill County Deed Records (Assessor's 
Map 4.3.17DD); 

40. Thence along said easterly line, Southerly 206 feet, more or less, to the southerly corner of 
said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

41. Thence along the southerly line of said Deed, Westerly 363 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

42. Thence along the southwesterly line of said Deed, Northwesterly 66 feet, more or less, to 
the westerly corner of said Deed, also being on the southeasterly line of Partition Plat No. 
92-40 (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

43. Thence along the northwesterly line of said Deed, Northeasterly 452 feet, more or less, to 
the northerly corner of said Deed (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

44. Thence leaving said northwesterly line, Northwesterly 330 feet, more or less, to a point on 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Mill Street, said point bears Northeasterly 48.5 feet, 
more or less, from the northerly corner of Instrument Number 202207411, Yamhill County 
Deed Records (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

45. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 788 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 5th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

46. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 681 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

47. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,291 feet, more or less, 
to the southwesterly right-of-way line of 7th Street (Assessor’s Map 4.3.20AB); 

48. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 209 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly line of Lot 2 of the plat “Palmer Creek Addition” (Assessor’s Map 
4.3.20AB); 

49. Thence along said southeasterly line, Southwesterly 352 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly line of said Lot 2 (Assessor’s Map 4.3.20AB); 

50. Thence along said southwesterly line, Northwesterly 194 feet, more or less, to the 
southeasterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17); 

51. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 2,465 feet, more or less, 
to the southeasterly extension of the southwesterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane 
(Assessor's Map 4.3.20); 

52. Thence along said southeasterly extension, Northwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to the 
easterly corner of Partition Plat No. 2006-49, also being on the northwesterly right-of-way 
line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

115



53. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 418 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly line of Partition Plat No. 2003-17 (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

54. Thence along said southwesterly line, Northwesterly 274 feet, more or less, to the 
northwesterly line of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

55. Thence along said northwesterly line, Northeasterly 267 feet, more or less, to the northerly 
corner of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

56. Thence along the northeasterly line of said plat, Southeasterly 81 feet, more or less, to the 
northwesterly line of said Partition Plat No. 2006-49 (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

57. Thence along said northwesterly line, Northeasterly 152 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

58. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 828 feet, more or less, to 
the southerly right-of-way line of SE Ash Road (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

59. Thence leaving said southerly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 62 feet, more or less, to the 
intersection of the northerly right-of-way line of SE Ash Road and the northwesterly right-
of-way line of Ash Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

60. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 4,268 feet, more or less, 
to the northeasterly right-of-way line of 5th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

61. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,075 feet, more or less, to 
the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA). 

Excepting therefrom; 
 
Excepting Parcel 1; 
Beginning at the southerly corner of Lot 232 of said “Town of Dayton”, also being on the 
northwesterly right-of-way line of Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 
 

100. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 70 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 4th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

101. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 340 feet, more or less, to 
the northwesterly right-of-way line of Alder Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

102. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 405 feet, more or less, to 
the centerline of 3rd Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DA); 

103. Thence along said centerline, Southeasterly 340 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly 
right-of-way line of Mill Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DD); 

104. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 335 feet, more or less, to 
the Point of Beginning. 

 
Excepting Parcel 2; 
Beginning at the southerly corner of Partition Plat No. 2010-16, also being on the northeasterly right-
of-way line of 9th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 
 

200. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 521 feet, more or less 
(Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

201. Thence leaving said northeasterly right-of-way line along a line perpendicular to said right-
of-way line, North 53°33’50” East 112.61 feet, more or less 

202. Thence along a line parallel to said right-of-way line, South 36°26’10” East 78.74 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

203. Thence along a line perpendicular to said right-of-way line, North 53°33’50” East 212.11 
feet, more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

116



204. Thence along a line parallel to said right-of-way line, North 36°26’10” West 395.77 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

205. Thence along a line perpendicular to said right-of-way line, South 53°33’50” West 212.11 
feet, more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

206. Thence along a line parallel to said right-of-way line, South 36°26’10” East 112.27 feet, 
more or less (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

207. Thence along a line perpendicular to said right-of-way line, South 53°33’50” West 112.61 
feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of 9th Street (Assessor's Map 
4.3.17CD); 

208. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 582 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ash Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

209. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 2,416 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly right-of-way line of 5th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

210. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,281 feet, more or less, 
to the northwesterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17DB); 

211. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 2,414 feet, more or less, 
to the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD). 

 
Excepting Parcel 3; 
Beginning at the northerly corner of Partition Plat No. 95-04, also being on the southwesterly right-
of-way line of 9th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 
 

300. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 1,319 feet, more or less, 
to the northwesterly right-of-way line of Ferry Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD); 

301. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,513 feet, more or less, 
to the northeasterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane (Assessor's Map 4.3.20BB); 

302. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 752 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Church Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

303. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 152 feet, more or less, to 
the southwesterly line of Lot 3, Block 3 of the plat “Palmer Addition” (Assessor's Map 
4.3.17CC); 

304. Thence along said southwesterly line, Southeasterly 93 feet, more or less, to the 
southeasterly line of said plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

305. Thence along said southeasterly line, Northeasterly 226 feet, more or less, to the 
southwesterly right-of-way line of 11th Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

306. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 103 feet, more or less, to 
the northerly corner of Lot 5 of said plat, also being on the southeasterly right-of-way line 
of Church Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

307. Thence leaving said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to 
a point on the northwesterly right-of-way line of Church Street, said point bears 
Northeasterly 46 feet, more or less, from the southerly corner of Lot 21, Block 2 of said 
plat (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

308. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 389 feet, more or less, to 
the northeasterly right-of-way line of Flower Lane (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

309. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 261 feet, more or less, to 
the southeasterly right-of-way line of Ash Street (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CC); 

310. Thence along said southeasterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 1,600 feet, more or less, to 
the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 4.3.17CD). 

117



 
The above-described tract of land contains 133.2 acres, more or less. 

 
9/4/2024 

 
 
 

 

118



Report Accompanying the 
Dayton Urban Renewal Plan 

Adopted by the City of Dayton 

November 4, 2024 

Ordinance No. 664 

Exhibit B

119



  

 

List of Participants
 

City Council  
Mayor Trini Marquez 
Council President Jim Maguire  
Annette Frank 
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Kitty Mackin 
Luke Wildhaber  

Dayton Urban Renewal Agency  
Jim Maguire, Chair  
Annette Frank, Vice-Chair 
Andrew Hildebrandt 
Scott Hover 
Kitty Mackin 
Luke Wildhaber  
Chirs Teichroew 

Planning Commission  
Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson 
Dave Mackin, Vice Chairperson 
Rob Hallyburton 
Tim Parsons 
Katelyn Weber Van Genderen 
 
  

 

  

City of Dayton Staff 
City Manager, Rochelle Roaden 
Director of Tourism and Economic 
Development, Dave Rucklos  
 
Consulting Team  
Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC 
Elaine Howard 
Scott Vanden Bos 

Tiberius Solutions LLC 
Nick Popenuk 
Ali Danko 
Margaret Raimann 

120



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I. DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................ 1 

II. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................... 3 

III. THE PROJECTS IN THE AREA AND THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN URBAN 
RENEWAL PROJECTS AND THE EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA ...................................................................................................... 5 

IV. THE ESTIMATED TOTAL COST OF EACH PROJECT AND THE SOURCES OF 
MONEYS TO PAY SUCH COSTS ............................................................................. 8 

V. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PLAN ..................................................................... 9 

VI. THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES REQUIRED AND 
THE ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEBTEDNESS WILL BE RETIRED ......... 11 

VII. THE ANTICIPATED COMPLETION DATE FOR EACH PROJECT ......................... 16 

VIII. REVENUE SHARING .............................................................................................. 20 

IX. IMPACT OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING................................................... 21 

X. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY LIMITS ON ASSESSED VALUE AND SIZE OF 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA ....................................................................................... 25 

XI. EXISTING PHYSICAL, SOCIAL, AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND IMPACTS 
ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES .................................................................................... 26 

XII. REASONS FOR SELECTION OF EACH URBAN RENEWAL AREA IN THE PLAN 31 

XIII. RELOCATION REPORT ......................................................................................... 31 

 

 

121



I. DEFINITIONS 
“Agency ” means the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency. This Dayton Urban Renewal Agency 
is responsible for administration of the urban renewal plan. 

“Area” means the properties and rights-of-way located within the Dayton Urban Renewal 
Boundary. 

“Blight” is defined in ORS 457.010(1)(A-E) and identified in the ordinance adopting the 
urban renewal plan.  

“Board of Commissioners” means the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners.  

“City” means the City of Dayton, Oregon.  

“City Council” or “Council” means the Dayton City Council. 

“Comprehensive Plan” means the City of Dayton comprehensive land use plan and its 
implementing ordinances, policies, and standards.  

“County” means Yamhill County, Oregon.  

“Fiscal year ending” means the year commencing on July 1 of one year and closing on June 
30 of the next year. 

“Frozen base” means the total assessed value including all real, personal, manufactured, 
and utility values within an urban renewal area at the time of adoption. The County Assessor 
certifies the assessed value after the adoption of an urban renewal plan.  

“Increment” means that part of the assessed value of a taxing district attributable to any 
increase in the assessed value of the property located in an urban renewal area, or portion 
thereof, over the assessed value specified in the certified statement. 

“Maximum indebtedness” means the amount of the principal of indebtedness included in a 
plan pursuant to ORS 457.190 and does not include indebtedness incurred to refund or 
refinance existing indebtedness. 

“ORS” means Oregon Revised Statutes. Chapter 457 specifically relates to urban renewal. 

“Planning Commission” means the Dayton Planning Commission.  

“Revenue sharing” means under-levying tax increment proceeds to effectively share a 
portion of the revenue with the other taxing districts that levy permanent rate taxes in the 
urban renewal area as defined in ORS 457.470. 

“Tax increment financing (TIF)” is a method of funding urban renewal projects and programs 
through incurring debt that is repaid by the division of taxes accomplished through the 
adoption of an urban renewal plan.  

“Tax increment finance revenues” means the funds allocated by the assessor to an urban 
renewal area due to increases in assessed value over the frozen base within the area.  

“Urban renewal area” or “URA” means a blighted area included in an urban renewal plan or 
an area included in an urban renewal plan under ORS 457.160. 

“Urban renewal plan” or “Plan” means a plan, as it exists or is changed or modified from time 
to time, for one or more urban renewal areas, as provided in ORS 457.085, 457.095, 
457.105, 457.115, 457.120, 457.125, 457.135 and 457.220. 

122



“Urban renewal project” or “Project” means any work or undertaking carried out under ORS 
457 in an urban renewal area. 

“Urban renewal report” or “Report” means the official report that accompanies the urban 
renewal plan pursuant to ORS 457.087.   

123



II. INTRODUCTION 
The Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (Report) contains background 
information and project details that pertain to the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (Plan). The 
Report is not a legal part of the Plan but is intended to provide public information and 
support the findings made by the Dayton City Council (City Council) as part of the approval 
of the Plan. 

The Report provides the analysis and contains the information required to meet the 
standards of ORS 457.087, including financial feasibility. The Report requirements include:   

1. A description of the physical, social, and economic conditions in the Area and 
expected impact of the plan, including fiscal impact in light of increased 
services; (ORS 457.087(1)) 

2. Reasons for selection of the plan Area; (ORS 457.087(2)) 
3. The relationship between each project to be undertaken and the existing 

conditions; (ORS 457.087(3)) 
4. The estimated total cost of each project and the source of funds to pay such 

costs; (ORS 457.087(4)) 
5. The estimated completion date of each project; (ORS 457.087(5))The 

estimated amount of funds required in the Area and the anticipated year in 
which the debt will be retired; (ORS 457.087(6)) 

6. A financial analysis of the plan; (ORS 457.087(7)) 
7. A fiscal impact statement that estimates the impact of tax increment financing 

(TIF) upon all entities levying taxes upon property in the urban renewal area; 
(ORS 457.0857(8)) and 

8. A relocation report.(ORS 457.087(9)) 
The relationship between the sections of the Report and the ORS 457.087 requirements is 
shown in Table 1. The specific reference shown is the section of this Report that most 
addresses the statutory reference. There may be other sections of the Report that also 
address the statute.  

The Report provides guidance on how the Plan might be implemented. As the Dayton Urban 
Renewal Agency (Agency) reviews revenues and potential projects each year, it has the 
authority to make adjustments to the implementation assumptions in this Report. The 
Agency may allocate budgets differently, adjust the timing of the projects, decide to incur 
debt at different times than assumed in this Report, and make other adjustments to the 
financials as determined by the Agency. The Agency may also make changes as allowed in 
the Amendments section of the Plan.

124



 

Table 1. Statutory References  

Statutory Requirement  Report Section  
ORS 457.087 (1) XI 
ORS 457.087 (2) XII 
ORS 457.087 (3) III 
ORS 457.087 (4) IV 
ORS 457.087 (5) VII 
ORS 457.087 (6) V,VI 
ORS 457.087 (7) V,VI 
ORS 457.087 (8) IX 
ORS 457.087 (9) XIII 

Figure 1. Dayton Urban Renewal Districy Boundary 

 

  

125



III. THE PROJECTS IN THE AREA AND THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN 
URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS AND THE EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

The projects identified for the Dayton Urban Renewal Area (Area) are described below, 
including how they relate to the existing conditions in the Area.  

A. Recreation and Park  Improvements  

Install recreation and park improvements including but not limited to:  

1. Dayton Landing   

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Dayton Landing is a 1.4-acre county park consisting of a gravel parking lot and small 
boat ramp. The boat ramp is located at the confluence of the Yamhill River and Palmer 
Creek, about five miles upstream from the Willamette River. The Yamhill River is 
currently navigable upstream from here to Lafayette Locks Historical Park and is popular 
with canoeists and kayakers. 

Nearby, a footbridge connects Dayton Landing Park to the City of Dayton's Alderman 
Park across the Yamhill River. 

2. Courthouse Square Park Enhancement  

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Court House Square Park covers one full city block in the middle of downtown Dayton  
between Ferry and Main Streets and between 3rd and 4th Streets. The park has a 
covered picnic area and historic bandstand and fountain, a new children's playground 
area, basketball court and restrooms. The park is owned by the City of Dayton.  

3.   Legion Field  

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Legion Field is a full city block in size and is located in the middle of Dayton between 
Church and Oak Streets and between 3rd and 4th Streets. Zoned for public use, this 
park is maintained by the City of Dayton. 

This City Park is owned by the City of Dayton.  It was the original site of the Dayton 
Grade School that was built around 1875 and was destroyed in a fire in the 1950's. 

Legion Field is currently used as a baseball field by local Junior and Midget Baseball 
Teams, with the baseball diamond maintained by volunteers during the baseball season. 

4.  Andrew Smith Park   

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Andrew Smith Park  is located west of 11th Street and between Church Street and Park 
Place. It is owned by the City of Dayton. The park is equipped with a children's play area 
that includes swings, a climbing rock, and a basketball court. The park also has new 
public restrooms.  

 

126



B. Downtown Streetscape Improvements  

 Install streetscape improvements including but not limited to:  

• Ornate lighting installation 
• Bicycle racks  
• Benches 
• Signage  
• Street trees 

 
EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Downtown Dayton has minimal streetscape features. There is no common streetscape 
theme throughout the downtown to provide a sense of place. 

C. Building Façade Grant Program   

Create a building façade grant program to improve the buildings in the Area.  
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

There are existing buildings in the Area that are in need of façade improvements. One 
major building is undergoing substantial rehabilitation, but there are other buildings which 
need improvements to their façades and for overall building improvements.  

D. Taxing District Partnerships  

Work with taxing districts to identify projects that will assist them in providing services to the 
Area. 

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

The Fire District will need a new ladder truck to be able to service the projected new 
development in the Area. The School District may need assistance to their facilities within 
the Area.  

E. Public Infrastructure  

Provide funds for leveraging or grant applications for the following infrastructure upgrades: 

1. Sewer and Water Line Extension and Upgrades 
2. Street Paving, Overlay and Repair as allowed  
3. Water Pressure Upgrades 
4. Sewer Pond Addition 

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

Section XI of this Report details the existing conditions of the utility infrastructure and 
transportation network needs in the Area.  

F. Redevelopment and Development   

Provide development support including but not limited to: 

• Upgrading existing buildings  

127



• Providing incentives for development  in the Area, including the development of 
workforce housing. 
 

EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

There are existing buildings in the Area that are in need of redevelopment. One major 
building is undergoing substantial rehabilitation, but there are other buildings which need 
improvements to be redeveloped. There are many parcels that are not developed and may 
need assistance to develop in the Area.  

G. Administration  

Authorizes expenditures for the administrative costs associated with managing the Area 
including budgeting and annual reporting, planning and the implementation of projects in 
the Area.  
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

This area in Dayton is not presently in an urban renewal area, so requires no 
administrative responsibilities from the urban renewal agency. Once an urban renewal 
plan with its associated requirements for administration exists for the Area, there will be a 
need for administrative funds to be allocated for that administration.  

  

128



IV. THE ESTIMATED TOTAL COST OF EACH PROJECT AND THE SOURCES 
OF MONEYS TO PAY SUCH COSTS   

Table 2 shows the costs of the projects in Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) 2024 constant dollars.  

Table 2. Estimated Cost of Each Project in Constant FYE 2024$ 
 

Estimated Cost 
2024$ 

Recreation/Public Space  Improvements  $8,518,000 
Downtown Streetscape Improvements  $460,000 
Building Façade Grant Program $100,000 
Taxing District Partnerships  $2,000,000 
Public Infrastructure  $4,848,249 
Redevelopment/Development   $3,172,000 
Financing Fees  $197,904 
Administration  $1,000,000 
Total Cost $20,296,153 

Source: City of Dayton  

These estimates will be refined in the annual budgeting process, understanding the limiting total 
cost factor of the maximum indebtedness. Different allocations may be made to different line 
items within the Plan.  

The scenario presented in this Report is only one scenario for how the Agency may decide to 
implement this Plan, and this scenario is financially feasible.  

  

129



V. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PLAN 
The estimated tax increment revenues through Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2050 are calculated 
based on projections of the assessed value within the Area and the consolidated tax rate that 
will apply in the Area.  

The long-term projections for FYE 2026 and beyond assume an annual growth rate of 3% for 
existing assessed value in the Area plus specific exception value assumptions for future 
development within the Area. These assumptions were provided by Dayton staff and relied on 
existing permit data and discussions with potential developers. The frozen base value, the 
assessed value of the Area at the time it is adopted by the City Council is very low. The success 
of this Area will depend upon new development and rehabilitation within the Area.  

If actual assessed value growth is less than forecast, then it would reduce the financial capacity 
of the Area to fund projects listed in the Plan over the anticipated duration of the Plan. 

Table 3 shows the incremental assessed value, tax rates, and tax increment revenues each 
year, adjusted for discounts, delinquencies, and truncation loss. The first year of tax increment 
collections is anticipated to be FYE 2026. The narrative analysis for Table 3 is shown below:  

• Total AV is the estimated total assessed value of the Area on an annual basis.  
• Frozen base is the estimate of the assessed value of the Area at its formation. 
• Increment applied is the total assessed value minus the frozen base. 
• Increment shared is the amount that will be distributed to all taxing Areas according 

to their permanent rate due to revenue sharing. In this Plan, there is no assumption 
for revenue sharing as the financial projections do not meet the statutory 
thresholds.  See Section VIII for a definition of revenue sharing.  

• Tax rate is the total permanent rate levy for the Area. 
• Gross tax increment financing revenue (TIF) is calculated by multiplying the tax rate 

times the assessed value used. The tax rate is per thousand dollars of assessed 
value, so the calculation is “tax rate times assessed value used divided by one 
thousand.”  

• Adjustments are calculated at 5% of the Gross TIF and are for discounts, 
delinquencies, and rate truncation. 

• Current Year Net reflects subtracting the 5% adjustment factor from Gross TIF.  
• Prior Year Net is the tax increment revenue that was delinquent the prior year and 

is paid by the assessor’s office once it is received. It is estimated that this amount 
is 1.5% of total TIF. 

• Total TIF is the amount of tax increment revenues estimated to be received by the 
Agency. 

 

130



Table 3. Projected Incremental Assessed Value, Tax Rates, and Tax Increment Revenues 
FYE Total AV Frozen Base AV Increment Applied Tax Rate Gross TIF Adjustments Current Year Net Prior Year Net Total TIF 

2026 24,235,093 10,915,900 13,319,193 11.6873 155,665 (7,783) 147,882 - 147,882 
2027 24,962,146 10,915,900 14,046,246 11.6873 164,163 (8,208) 155,955 2,218 158,173 
2028 84,525,598 10,915,900 73,609,698 11.6873 860,299 (43,015) 817,284 2,339 819,623 
2029 91,983,354 10,915,900 81,067,454 11.6873 947,460 (47,373) 900,087 12,259 912,346 
2030 101,232,003 10,915,900 90,316,103 11.6873 1,055,551 (52,778) 1,002,774 13,501 1,016,275 
2031 110,033,760 10,915,900 99,117,860 11.6873 1,158,420 (57,921) 1,100,499 15,042 1,115,541 
2032 121,595,978 10,915,900 110,680,078 11.6873 1,293,551 (64,678) 1,228,874 16,507 1,245,381 
2033 125,243,858 10,915,900 114,327,958 11.6873 1,336,185 (66,809) 1,269,376 18,433 1,287,809 
2034 129,001,175 10,915,900 118,085,275 11.6873 1,380,098 (69,005) 1,311,093 19,041 1,330,134 
2035 132,871,211 10,915,900 121,955,311 11.6873 1,425,328 (71,266) 1,354,062 19,666 1,373,728 
2036 136,857,348 10,915,900 125,941,448 11.6873 1,471,915 (73,596) 1,398,320 20,311 1,418,631 
2037 140,963,070 10,915,900 130,047,170 11.6873 1,519,900 (75,995) 1,443,905 20,975 1,464,880 
2038 145,191,962 10,915,900 134,276,062 11.6873 1,569,325 (78,466) 1,490,858 21,659 1,512,517 
2039 149,547,721 10,915,900 138,631,821 11.6873 1,620,232 (81,012) 1,539,220 22,363 1,561,583 
2040 154,034,153 10,915,900 143,118,253 11.6873 1,672,666 (83,633) 1,589,033 23,088 1,612,121 
2041 158,655,177 10,915,900 147,739,277 11.6873 1,726,673 (86,334) 1,640,340 23,835 1,664,175 
2042 163,414,833 10,915,900 152,498,933 11.6873 1,782,301 (89,115) 1,693,186 24,605 1,717,791 
2043 168,317,278 10,915,900 157,401,378 11.6873 1,839,597 (91,980) 1,747,617 25,398 1,773,015 
2044 173,366,796 10,915,900 162,450,896 11.6873 1,898,612 (94,931) 1,803,682 26,214 1,829,896 
2045 178,567,800 10,915,900 167,651,900 11.6873 1,959,398 (97,970) 1,861,428 27,055 1,888,483 
2046 183,924,833 10,915,900 173,008,933 11.6873 2,022,007 (101,100) 1,920,907 27,921 1,948,828 
2047 189,442,578 10,915,900 178,526,678 11.6873 2,086,495 (104,325) 1,982,170 28,814 2,010,984 
2048 195,125,855 10,915,900 184,209,955 11.6873 2,152,917 (107,646) 2,045,271 29,733 2,075,004 
2049 200,979,630 10,915,900 190,063,730 11.6873 2,221,332 (111,067) 2,110,265 30,679 2,140,944 
2050 207,009,020 10,915,900 196,093,120 11.6873 2,291,799 (114,590) 2,177,209 31,654 2,208,863 
  TOTAL:     $37,611,889 $(1,880,596) $35,731,297 $503,310 $36,234,607 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

131



VI. THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES REQUIRED 
AND THE ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEBTEDNESS WILL BE 
RETIRED 

Table 4 shows a summary of the financial capacity of the Area, including how total TIF revenue 
translates to the ability to fund urban renewal projects in constant 2024 dollars in five-year 
increments. Table 6, Table 7 and Table 8 show more detailed tables on the allocation of tax 
revenues to debt service.  Table 9, Table 10 and Table 10  show potential allocations to projects 
and administration over time.  

The Area is anticipated to complete all projects and have sufficient tax increment finance 
revenue to terminate the Area in FYE 2050, a 25-year time frame for taking division of tax 
revenues. If growth in assessed value is slower than projected, the Agency may not be able to 
complete all projects in the Plan in this timeframe and would therefore continue taking division 
of tax proceeds until the Agency reaches the maximum indebtedness. If growth in assessed 
value is more robust than the projections, it may take a shorter period. These assumptions show 
one scenario for financing and that this scenario is financially feasible.  

The maximum indebtedness is $29,400,000 (Twenty-Nine Million Four Hundred Thousand 
dollars). The estimated total amount of tax increment revenues required to service the maximum 
indebtedness of $29,400,000 is $36,234,607 and is from permanent rate tax levies. The 
difference between the total amount of tax increment revenues (Net TIF)  and maximum 
indebtedness is due the cost of borrowing to complete projects. If the Agency decides to 
accelerate projects in the future by using loans, then the interest on those loans is not 
calculated as part of the maximum indebtedness and may be repaid through tax increment 
proceeds. If the Agency does not borrow money, then this number will be lower. 

Table 4. TIF Capacity of the Area in FYE 2024 Constant Rounded Numbers  
Net TIF $36,200,000  
Maximum Indebtedness $29,400,000  
Capacity (2024$) $20,500,000  
Years 1-5 $3,400,000  
Years 6-10 $8,500,000  
Years 11-15 $3,400,000  
Years 16-20 $2,700,000  
Years 21-25 $2,600,000  

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

132



This financial analysis shows borrowings as identified in Table 5. This is only one scenario for 
how the Agency may decide to implement this Plan, and this scenario is financially feasible. The 
Agency may decide to do borrowings at different times or for different amounts, depending on 
their analysis at the time. The timeframes on these borrowings are designed to have all 
borrowings repaid at the termination of the Area in FYE 2050. The amounts shown are the 
principal amounts of the borrowings. The total amounts, including interest, are shown in the 
second column of The total amounts, including interest, are shown in the second column of 
Table 6. 

Table 5.  Projected Loan Amounts and Loan Terms  

  Loan A Loan B Loan C Loan D 
Principal Amount $1,200,000  $8,000,000  $2,100,000  $1,300,000  
Interest Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 
Loan Term 20 20 15 10 
Loan Year 2026 2031 2036 2041 
Interest Payment Start 2026 2031 2036 2041 
Principal Payment Start 2026 2031 2036 2041 
Annual Payment ($96,291) ($641,941) ($202,319) ($168,356) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions

133



Table 6. Tax Increment Revenues and Allocations to Debt Service, Through FYE 2033 
 Total FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030 FYE 2031 FYE 2032 FYE 2033 

Resources          
TIF: Current Year 35,731,296 147,882 155,955 817,284 900,087 1,002,774 1,100,499 1,228,874 1,269,376 
TIF: Prior Years 503,311 - 2,218 2,339 12,259 13,501 15,042 16,507 18,433 
Total Resources 36,234,607 147,882 158,173 819,623 912,346 1,016,275 1,115,541 1,245,381 1,287,809 
Expenditures          
Debt Service          
Scheduled Payments          
Loan A (1,925,822) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) 
Loan B (12,838,814) - - - - - (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) 
Loan C (3,034,782) - - - - - - - - 
Loan D (1,683,559) - - - - - - - - 
Total Debt Service (19,482,977) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (738,232) (738,232) (738,232) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio  1.54 1.64 8.51 9.47 10.55 1.51 1.69 1.74 
Transfer to URA Projects Fund (16,751,630) (51,591) (61,882) (723,332) (816,055) (919,984) (377,309) (507,149) (549,577) 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES (36,234,607) (147,882) (158,173) (819,623) (912,346) (1,016,275) (1,115,541) (1,245,381) (1,287,809) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

134



Table 7. Tax Increment Revenues and Allocations to Debt Service, Through FYE 2041  
 FYE 2034 FYE 2035 FYE 2036 FYE 2037 FYE 2038 FYE 2039 FYE 2040 FYE 2041 

Resources         
TIF: Current Year 1,311,093 1,354,062 1,398,320 1,443,905 1,490,858 1,539,220 1,589,033 1,640,340 
TIF: Prior Years 19,041 19,666 20,311 20,975 21,659 22,363 23,088 23,835 
Total Resources 1,330,134 1,373,728 1,418,631 1,464,880 1,512,517 1,561,583 1,612,121 1,664,175 
Expenditures         
Debt Service         
Scheduled Payments         
Loan A (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) 
Loan B (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) 
Loan C - - (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) 
Loan D - - - - - - - (168,356) 
Total Debt Service (738,232) (738,232) (940,551) (940,551) (940,551) (940,551) (940,551) (1,108,907) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.80 1.86 1.51 1.56 1.61 1.66 1.71 1.50 
Transfer to URA Projects Fund (591,902) (635,496) (478,080) (524,329) (571,966) (621,032) (671,570) (555,269) 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES (1,330,134) (1,373,728) (1,418,631) (1,464,880) (1,512,517) (1,561,583) (1,612,121) (1,664,175) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions  

  

135



Table 8. Tax Increment Revenues and Allocations to Debt Service, Through FYE 2050 
 FYE 2042 FYE 2043 FYE 2044 FYE 2045 FYE 2046 FYE 2047 FYE 2048 FYE 2049 FYE 2050 

Resources          
TIF: Current Year 1,693,186 1,747,617 1,803,682 1,861,428 1,920,907 1,982,170 2,045,271 2,110,265 2,177,209 
TIF: Prior Years 24,605 25,398 26,214 27,055 27,921 28,814 29,733 30,679 31,654 
Total Resources 1,717,791 1,773,015 1,829,896 1,888,483 1,948,828 2,010,984 2,075,004 2,140,944 2,208,863 
Expenditures          
Debt Service          
Scheduled Payments          
Loan A (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) (96,291) - - - - - 
Loan B (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) (641,941) 
Loan C (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) (202,319) 
Loan D (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) (168,356) 
Total Debt Service (1,108,907) (1,108,907) (1,108,907) (1,108,907) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) (1,012,615) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.55 1.60 1.65 1.70 1.92 1.99 2.05 2.11 2.18 
Transfer to URA Projects Fund (608,884) (664,109) (720,989) (779,577) (936,213) (998,368) (1,062,388) (1,128,329) (1,196,248) 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES (1,717,791) (1,773,015) (1,829,896) (1,888,483) (1,948,828) (2,010,984) (2,075,004) (2,140,944) (2,208,863) 

   Source: Tiberius Solutions 

136



VII. THE ANTICIPATED COMPLETION DATE FOR EACH PROJECT 
The schedule for construction of projects will be based on the availability of funding. The 
projects will be ongoing and will be completed as directed by the Agency.  

The Area is anticipated to complete all projects and have sufficient tax increment finance 
revenue to terminate the Area in FYE 2050, a 25-year program of tax increment collections.  

The amount of money available for projects in 2024 constant dollars for the Area is 
approximately $20,300,000. See Table 2 for the individual project analysis.  

Table 9, Table 10 and Table 10  show the approximate $20,300,000 of 2024 constant 
dollars for projects inflated over the life of the Area, totaling the maximum indebtedness of 
$29,400,000. All costs shown in Table 9, Table 10 and Table 10  are in year-of-expenditure 
dollars, which are adjusted by 3.0% annually to account for inflation.   

The 3% inflation rate is the rate to use in the future if any amendment to increase maximum 
indebtedness is pursued in accordance with ORS 457.470. 

The Agency may change the completion dates in their annual budgeting process or as 
project decisions are made in administering the Plan. The following tables are prepared to 
show that the Area is financially feasible as required by ORS 457.   

137



Table 9. Programs and Costs in Year of Expenditure Dollars, Through FYE 2032 
 Total FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030 FYE 2031 FYE 2032 FYE 2033 

Resources          
Beginning Balance  - 7,556 25,768 619,796 378,189 117,905 107,773 66,938  
Interest Earnings 80,855 - 38 129 3,099 1,891 590 539 335  
Transfer from TIF Fund 16,751,630 51,591 61,882 723,332 816,055 919,984 377,309 507,149 549,577  
Bond/Loan Proceeds 12,600,000 1,200,000 - - - - 8,000,000 -  
Total Resources 29,432,485 1,251,591 69,476 749,229 1,438,949 1,300,064 8,495,804 615,462 616,850  
Expenditures (YOE $)          
Recreation and Open Space  (10,428,656) (583,495) - (84,413) (1,014,388) (1,134,395) (5,534,550) (497,852) (521,920)) 
Downtown Streetscape  (488,014) (488,014) - - - - - -  
Building Façade Grant Program (106,090) (106,090) - - - - - - - 
Taxing District Partnerships  (2,704,550) - - - - - (922,425) - - 
Redevelopment and Development  (4,565,388) - - - - - (1,721,860) - ) 
Infrastructure (9,340,603) - - - - - - -  
Financing Fees (252,000) (24,000) - - - - (160,000) - ) 
Administration (1,547,184) (42,436) (43,708) (45,020) (46,372) (47,764) (49,196) (50,672) (52,192) 
Total Expenditures (29,432,485) (1,244,035) (43,708) (129,433) (1,060,760) (1,182,159) (8,388,031) (548,524) (574,112) 
Ending Balance  7,556 25,768 619,796 378,189 117,905 107,773 66,938 42,738  

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

138



Table 10. Programs and Costs in Year of Expenditure Dollars, Through FYE 2042  
 FYE 2034 FYE 2035 FYE 2036 FYE 2037 FYE 2038 FYE 2039 FYE 2040 FYE 2041 FYE 2042 

Resources          
Beginning Balance 42,738 77,135 103,970 801,417 1,271,013 1,788,830 2,356,487 132,123 77,861 
Interest Earnings 214 386 520 4,007 6,355 8,944 11,782 661 389 
Transfer from TIF Fund 591,902 635,496 478,080 524,329 571,966 621,032 671,570 555,269 608,884 
Bond/Loan Proceeds - - 2,100,000 - - - - 1,300,000 - 
Total Resources 634,854 713,018 2,682,570 1,329,753 1,849,334 2,418,807 3,039,839 1,988,053 687,134 
Expenditures (YOE $)          
Recreation and Open Space  (503,963) (553,680) - - - - - - - 
Downtown Streetscape  - - - - - - - - - 
Building Façade Grant Program - - - - - - - - - 
Taxing District Partnerships  - - (1,782,125) - - - - - - 
Redevelopment and Development  - - - - - - (2,843,528) - - 
Infrastructure - - - - - - - (1,818,080) - 
Financing Fees - - (42,000) - - - - (26,000) - 
Administration (53,756) (55,368) (57,028) (58,740) (60,504) (62,320) (64,188) (66,112) (68,096) 
Total Expenditures (557,719) (609,048) (1,881,153) (58,740) (60,504) (62,320) (2,907,716) (1,910,192) (68,096) 
Ending Balance 77,135 103,970 801,417 1,271,013 1,788,830 2,356,487 132,123 77,861 619,038 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

  

139



Table 11. Programs and Costs in Year of Expenditure Dollars, Through FYE 2050  
 FYE 2043 FYE 2044 FYE 2045 FYE 2046 FYE 2047 FYE 2048 FYE 2049 FYE 2050 

Resources         
Beginning Balance 619,038 1,216,101 64,828 770,317 1,633,738 291,691 1,274,225 2,325,173 
Interest Earnings 3,095 6,081 324 3,852 8,169 1,458 6,371 11,626 
Transfer from TIF Fund 664,109 720,989 779,577 936,213 998,368 1,062,388 1,128,329 1,196,248 
Bond/Loan Proceeds - - - - - - - - 
Total Resources 1,286,241 1,943,172 844,729 1,710,382 2,640,275 1,355,537 2,408,925 3,533,047 
Expenditures (YOE $)         
Recreation and Open Space  - - - - - - - - 
Downtown Streetscape  - - - - - - - - 
Building Façade Grant Program - - - - - - - - 
Taxing District Partnerships  - - - - - - - - 
Redevelopment and Development  - - - - - - - - 
Infrastructure - (1,806,100) - - (2,269,640) - - (3,446,783) 
Financing Fees - - - - - - - - 
Administration (70,140) (72,244) (74,412) (76,644) (78,944) (81,312) (83,752) (86,264) 
Total Expenditures (70,140) (1,878,344) (74,412) (76,644) (2,348,584) (81,312) (83,752) (3,533,047) 
Ending Balance 1,216,101 64,828 770,317 1,633,738 291,691 1,274,225 2,325,173 - 

Source: Tiberius Solutio

140



VIII. REVENUE SHARING 
Revenue sharing targets defined in ORS 457,470 are not projected to be reached as the 
threshold set (annual tax increment revenues in excess of 10 percent of the maximum 
indebtedness) is not projected to be met during the expected life of the Area.  

Revenue sharing means that, at thresholds defined in ORS 457.470, the impacted taxing 
jurisdictions will receive a share of the incremental growth in the Area. The first threshold is 
when annual tax increment finance revenues exceed 10% of the original maximum 
indebtedness of the Plan (10% = $2,940,000). At the 10% threshold, the Agency will receive the 
full 10% of the initial maximum indebtedness plus 25% of the increment above the 10% 
threshold, and the taxing jurisdictions will receive 75% of the increment above the 10% 
threshold.  

The second threshold is set at 12.5% of the maximum indebtedness (12.5% = $3,675,000). If 
this threshold is met, revenue for the Area would be capped at 12.5% of the maximum 
indebtedness, with all additional tax revenue being shared with affected taxing districts.  

If assessed value in the Area grows more quickly than projected, the revenue sharing triggers 
could be reached during the life of the Area.   
  

141



IX. IMPACT OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 
This section describes the impact of tax increment financing of the maximum indebtedness, 
both until and after the indebtedness is repaid, upon all entities levying taxes upon property in 
the Area. 

The impact of tax increment financing on overlapping taxing Areas consists of the property tax 
revenues foregone on permanent rate levies as applied to the growth in assessed value in the 
Area. These projections are for impacts estimated through FYE 2050 and are shown in Table 12 
and Table 13. School District 8 and the Willamette Regional Education Service District are not 
directly affected by the tax increment financing, but the amounts of their taxes divided for the 
urban renewal plan are shown in the following tables. Under current school funding law, 
property tax revenues are combined with State School Fund revenues to achieve per-student 
funding targets. Under this system, property taxes foregone, due to the use of tax increment 
financing, are substantially replaced with State School Fund revenues, as determined by a 
funding formula at the state level.  

Table 12 and Table 13 show the projected impacts to permanent rate levies of taxing Areas as a 
result of this Plan. Table 12 shows the general government levies, and Table 13 shows the 
education levies

142



Table 12. Projected Impact on Taxing Area Permanent Rate Levies - General Government 

FYE Yamhill 
County 

Yamhill 
County 

Extension 
Service 

Yamhill 
County 
Soil & 
Water 

City of 
Dayton 

Dayton Fire 
Department 

Chemeketa 
Library 

Subtotal Gen. 
Govt. 

2026 (32,614) (568) (448) (21,583) (15,566) (1,035) (71,813) 
2027 (34,883) (608) (479) (23,084) (16,649) (1,107) (76,811) 
2028 (180,758) (3,149) (2,483) (119,620) (86,273) (5,737) (398,019) 
2029 (201,207) (3,505) (2,763) (133,152) (96,033) (6,386) (443,047) 
2030 (224,128) (3,904) (3,078) (148,320) (106,973) (7,113) (493,516) 
2031 (246,020) (4,286) (3,379) (162,807) (117,421) (7,808) (541,721) 
2032 (274,655) (4,784) (3,772) (181,757) (131,088) (8,716) (604,773) 
2033 (284,012) (4,947) (3,901) (187,949) (135,554) (9,013) (625,376) 
2034 (293,346) (5,110) (4,029) (194,126) (140,009) (9,310) (645,930) 
2035 (302,960) (5,278) (4,161) (200,488) (144,598) (9,615) (667,100) 
2036 (312,863) (5,450) (4,297) (207,042) (149,324) (9,929) (688,905) 
2037 (323,063) (5,628) (4,437) (213,792) (154,193) (10,253) (711,364) 
2038 (333,568) (5,811) (4,581) (220,744) (159,207) (10,586) (734,497) 
2039 (344,389) (5,999) (4,730) (227,905) (164,372) (10,930) (758,324) 
2040 (355,535) (6,193) (4,883) (235,281) (169,691) (11,283) (782,866) 
2041 (367,015) (6,393) (5,041) (242,878) (175,170) (11,648) (808,144) 
2042 (378,839) (6,599) (5,203) (250,703) (180,814) (12,023) (834,181) 
2043 (391,018) (6,812) (5,370) (258,762) (186,627) (12,409) (860,998) 
2044 (403,563) (7,030) (5,543) (267,064) (192,614) (12,808) (888,621) 
2045 (416,483) (7,255) (5,720) (275,614) (198,781) (13,218) (917,071) 
2046 (429,792) (7,487) (5,903) (284,421) (205,133) (13,640) (946,376) 
2047 (443,499) (7,726) (6,091) (293,493) (211,675) (14,075) (976,559) 
2048 (457,618) (7,972) (6,285) (302,836) (218,414) (14,523) (1,007,648) 
2049 (472,161) (8,225) (6,485) (312,460) (225,355) (14,985) (1,039,670) 
2050 (487,139) (8,486) (6,690) (322,372) (232,504) (15,460) (1,072,652) 
TOTAL: $(7,991,128) $(139,205) $(109,752) $(5,288,253) $(3,814,038) $(253,610) $(17,595,982) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions 

143



 

Table 13. Projected Impact on Taxing Area Permanent Rate Levies – Education 

FYE School 
District 8 

Willamette 
Regional 

ESD 

Chemeketa 
Community 

College 

Subtotal 
Education 

Total All 

2026 (64,395) (3,754) (7,920) (76,069) (147,882) 
2027 (68,876) (4,015) (8,471) (81,362) (158,173) 
2028 (356,902) (20,807) (43,894) (421,604) (819,623) 
2029 (397,278) (23,161) (48,860) (469,299) (912,346) 
2030 (442,534) (25,800) (54,425) (522,759) (1,016,275) 
2031 (485,759) (28,320) (59,742) (573,820) (1,115,541) 
2032 (542,298) (31,616) (66,695) (640,608) (1,245,381) 
2033 (560,773) (32,693) (68,967) (662,433) (1,287,809) 
2034 (579,203) (33,767) (71,234) (684,204) (1,330,134) 
2035 (598,186) (34,874) (73,568) (706,629) (1,373,728) 
2036 (617,738) (36,014) (75,973) (729,726) (1,418,631) 
2037 (637,878) (37,188) (78,450) (753,516) (1,464,880) 
2038 (658,621) (38,398) (81,001) (778,020) (1,512,517) 
2039 (679,987) (39,643) (83,629) (803,259) (1,561,583) 
2040 (701,993) (40,926) (86,335) (829,255) (1,612,121) 
2041 (724,660) (42,248) (89,123) (856,031) (1,664,175) 
2042 (748,007) (43,609) (91,994) (883,610) (1,717,791) 
2043 (772,054) (45,011) (94,952) (912,017) (1,773,015) 
2044 (796,823) (46,455) (97,998) (941,275) (1,829,896) 
2045 (822,334) (47,942) (101,136) (971,412) (1,888,483) 
2046 (848,612) (49,474) (104,367) (1,002,453) (1,948,828) 
2047 (875,677) (51,052) (107,696) (1,034,425) (2,010,984) 
2048 (903,554) (52,677) (111,124) (1,067,356) (2,075,004) 
2049 (932,268) (54,351) (114,656) (1,101,275) (2,140,944) 
2050 (961,843) (56,075) (118,293) (1,136,211) (2,208,863) 
TOTAL: $(15,778,245) $(919,870) $(1,940,503) $(18,638,628) $(36,234,607) 

Source: Tiberius Solutions  Please refer to the explanation of the schools funding in the preceding section 

.  

144



Table 14 shows the projected increased revenue to the taxing jurisdictions after tax 
increment proceeds are projected to be terminated in FYE 2050.  

The Frozen Base is the assessed value of the Area established by the County Assessor at 
the time the Area is established. Excess Value is the increased assessed value in the Area 
above the Frozen Base.  

Table 14. Additional Revenues Obtained after Termination of TIF - FYE 2051 
Taxing District Type Tax 

Rate 
From Frozen 

Base 
From Excess 

Value 
Total 

General Government      
Yamhill County Permanent 2.5775 28,136 521,437 549,573 
Yamhill County Extension 
Service 

Permanent 0.0449 490 9,083 9,573 

Yamhill County Soil & Water Permanent 0.0354 386 7,162 7,548 
City of Dayton Permanent 1.7057 18,619 345,069 363,688 
Dayton Fire Department Permanent 1.2302 13,429 248,874 262,303 
Chemeketa Library Permanent 0.0818 893 16,548 17,441 
Subtotal  5.6755 61,953 1,148,173 1,210,126 
Education  .0000    
School District 8 Permanent 5.0892 55,553 1,029,562 1,085,115 
Willamette Regional ESD Permanent 0.2967 3,239 60,023 63,262 
Chemeketa Community 
College 

Permanent 0.6259 6,832 126,622 133,454 

Subtotal  6.0118 65,624 1,216,208 1,281,832 
TOTAL:  11.6873 $127,577 $2,364,381 $2,491,958 

Source: Tiberius Solutions  

 

 

  

145



X. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY LIMITS ON ASSESSED VALUE AND 
SIZE OF URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

State law limits the percentage of both a municipality’s total assessed value and the total 
land area that can be contained in an urban renewal Area at the time of its establishment to 
25% for municipalities under 50,000 in population. As noted below, the frozen base 
(assumed to be FYE 2024 values), including all real, personal, manufactured, and utility 
properties in the Area, is projected to be $10,915,900. The frozen base is the assessed 
value of the Area at the time it is adopted. The Yamhill County Assessor will establish the 
frozen base once the urban renewal plan is adopted.  

The percentage of total City assessed value in urban renewal area is 6.83%, below the 25% 
threshold.  

The Area contains approximately 131 acres, including public rights-of-way. This puts 
24.25% of the city’s acreage in an urban renewal area, which is below the 25% threshold. 

Table 15. Urban Renewal Area Conformance with Assessed Value and Acreage Limits 

  Acreage Assessed Value 
Dayton Urban Renewal Area 131 $10,915,900  

City of Dayton 538 $159,743,377  

% of City Acreage  23.6%   

% of City Assessed Value  24.25%  6.83% 
Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC  

  

146



 

XI. EXISTING PHYSICAL, SOCIAL, AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND 
IMPACTS ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES 

This section of the Report describes existing conditions within the Area and documents the 
occurrence of “blighted areas,” as defined by ORS 457.010(1). 

A. Physical Conditions 

1. Land Use 

The Area measures 131 total acres in size, which is composed of 106 individual parcels 
encompassing 89.14 acres, and an additional 41.86 acres in public rights-of-way. An 
analysis of FYE 2024 property classification data from the Yamhill County Department of 
Assessment and Taxation database was used to determine the land use designation of 
parcels in the Area. By acreage, Exempt (49.20%) accounts for the most prevalent land use 
within the Area. Exempt uses are those uses that are government, non-profit or other tax-
exempt status. Some of the exempt uses are classified as residential in the comprehensive 
plan and zoning table. This was followed by Industrial (35.19%) and Residential (11.21%). 
Detailed land use designations in the Area can be seen in Table 16.   

Table 16. Land Use in the Area   
Land Use Tax Lots Acres Percent of Acres 

Exempt 29 43.86 49.20% 
Industrial 1 31.37 35.19% 
Residential 46 9.99 11.21% 
Commercial 26 3.36 3.77% 
Miscellaneous 4 0.56 0.63% 
  TOTAL: 106 89.14 100.00% 

Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting with data from Tiberius Solutions received from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation (FYE 2024) 

 

  

147



 

2. Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Designations 

The Comprehensive Plan and Zoning designations in Dayton are the same. The most 
prevalent comprehensive plan and zoning designation by acreage in the Area is Public 
(44.09%). The second most prevalent comprehensive  plan designation in the Area is 
Industrial (35.19%).The Industrial parcel has split zoning, with commercial on the top edge 
of the parcel. However, the parcel is identified in the following table as Industrial. Detailed 
comprehensive plan designations in the Area can be seen in  Table 17.  

Table 17. Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Designations in the Area 

Designations Tax Lots Acres Percent of Acres 
Public 21 39.3 44.09% 
Industrial 1 31.37 35.19% 
Residential-2 25 6.3 7.07% 
Commercial 37 5.55 6.23% 
Commercial/Residential 17 3.36 3.77% 
Residential 1 5 3.26 3.66% 
  TOTAL: 106 89.14 100.00% 

Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting with data from Tiberius Solutions received from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation (FYE 2024).  

Figure 2. Comprehensive Plan Designations  

 
FIGURE TO BE INSERTED LATER

148



B. Infrastructure 

This section identifies the existing conditions in the Area to assist in establishing blight in 
the ordinance adopting the urban renewal plan. These are projects identified by the City 
of Dayton staff in identifying infrastructure needs in the Area for establishing blighting 
conditions in the Area. This does not mean that all of these projects are included in the 
urban renewal plan. The specific projects that are included in the Plan are listed in 
Sections III and IV of this Report.  

1. Transportation  

Deficiencies in the Area are shown below.  

• Ash Street from west connection to Flower Lane to 5th Street 
• 5th Street to Mill Street  
• 4th Street from Oak Street to Main Street  
• Mill Street 4th Street to 3rd  Street (Highway 221) 
• Main Street from 5th Street to 4th Street and 3rd Street to 2nd Street  
• Church Street from 4th Street to 3rd Street (Highway 221) 
• Oak Street from 4th Street to 3rd Street (Highway 221) 
• 2nd Street from Main Street to Alder Street  
• Kreeder Road from Highway 223 to the east edge of the Area  

2. Water, Sanitary Sewer and Storm Water 

Deficiencies in the water, sanitary sewer, and storm water systems are shown below.   

Water:  There are water pipe upsizing projects needed within the Area.  

• Ash Street west from 9th Street and continuing as Ash Street turns south.  
• 5th Street between Oak Street and Church Street  
• 4th Street between Ferry Street and Alder Street  
• Kreeder Road east of the Yamhill River  
• Highway 221 from south side of the Area to Mill Street 
• Mill Street between 4th Street and 3rd Street (Highway 221) 

 

Sanitary Sewer:  There are sewer pipe upsizing projects and other sanitary sewer 
deficiencies within the Area.  

• Ash Street west from 9th Street and continuing as Ash Street turns south.  
• Ferry Street from Ash Street west to 8th Street  
• Kreeder Road along west portion of the loop  
• North of Ferry Street and west of 1st Street  
• Main Pump Station Fore Main(to Wastewater Treatment Plant) and Bore under 

Yamhill River) 
• Reroute RV Park Force Main 
• Ferry Street (9th Street pump station (P.S.) to Manhole (MH) 34 
• 9th Street Pump Station Force Main (P.S. to MH 11)  
• New Ash Street Pump Station Force Main.  

  

  

149



  

Storm: There are storm pipe upsizing projects deficiencies within the Area.  

• Ferry Street east of Flower Lane to 7th Street.  
• Oak Street from 3rd street to 5th Street 
• 3rd  Street from Ash street to Main Street  
• Main Street east of 3rd Street  
•  and Church Street.  
• Ferry Street between 1st Street and 2nd Street  
• Mill Street west of 4th Street.  

C. Social Conditions  

According to information from the Yamhill County Assessor’s office, the Area contains forty-
six parcels containing ten acres that have residential uses. Since there are such limited 
residents in the Area, the following demographics are presented for the City of Dayton as a 
whole. These facts are from the US Census 2022 American Community Survey 5 Year 
Estimates.  

• There are households 722 with 2.69 persons per household. Dayton has a 
population of 2,678.  

• Thirty percent of the residents are Hispanic or Latin. 
• Thirty percent speak a language other than English at home.  
• In 2021, the median household income of Dayton households was $76,014.  
• Twenty one percent of residents in Dayton meet the poverty level in the census 

tracking.  
• Seventy-nine percent of residents own their own homes.  

  

150



D. Economic Conditions 

1. Taxable Value of Property within the Area 

The estimated total assessed value of the Area calculated with data from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation for FYE 2024 including all real, personal, 
manufactured, and utility properties, is estimated to be $10,915,900. 

2. Building to Land Value Ratio 

Table 18 shows the improvement to land ratios (I:L) for properties within the Area. In the 
Area, 29 tax lots or 49.21% of the Area is exempt, meaning they have no assessed value.  
Fifteen tax lots representing 37.42% of the acreage have no improvement value. Another 
6.52% of the acreage has  I:L ratios less than 1.0. In other words, the improvements on 
these properties are worth less than the land they sit on. A reasonable I:L ratio for properties 
in the Area is 2.0. Only 19 of the 105 tax lots in the Area, totaling 3.25% of the acreage have 
I:L ratios of 2.0 or more. In summary, the area is underdeveloped and not contributing 
significantly to the tax base in Dayton.  

Table 18. Improvement to Land Ratios in the Area 
Improvement to Land Ratio Tax Lots Acres Percent of Acres 
Exempt 29 43.86 49.21% 
No Improvement Value 15 33.35 37.42% 
0.01-0.50 7 0.89 1.00% 
0.51-1.00 20 4.92 5.52% 
1.01-1.50 11 2.44 2.74% 
1.51-2.00 5 0.77 0.86% 
2.01-2.50 12 1.48 1.66% 
2.51-3.00 3 0.82 0.92% 
3.01-4.00 1 0.16 0.18% 
> 4.00 3 0.44 0.49% 
  TOTAL: 106 89.13 100.00% 

Source: Compiled by Elaine Howard Consulting with data from Tiberius Solutions received from the Yamhill County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation (FYE 2023) 

 

  

151



E. Impact on Municipal Services 

The fiscal impact of tax increment financing on taxing Areas that levy taxes within the Area 
(affected taxing Areas) is described in Section IX of this Report. This subsection discusses 
the fiscal impacts resulting from potential increases in demand for municipal services.  

The projects being considered for future use of urban renewal funding are for improving the 
overall conditions of the Area including improvements to the recreation facilities, façade 
improvements, redevelopment of buildings, and improving the pedestrian and streetscape 
environment. It is anticipated that these improvements will catalyze development on the 
undeveloped parcels in the Area.  

The financial impacts from tax increment collections will be countered by future economic 
development, and, in the future, adding increases in assessed value to the tax base for all 
taxing jurisdictions, including the city.  

XII. REASONS FOR SELECTION OF EACH URBAN RENEWAL AREA IN THE 
PLAN 

The reason for selecting the Area is to provide the ability to fund projects and programs 
necessary to cure blight within the Area. The outcome of implementing these projects is 
anticipated to be an increase to the economic growth in Dayton by providing infrastructure 
improvements to improve the overall environment of the Area including providing improved 
facilities for recreation opportunities for residents and tourists, improving the safety and 
functioning of the transportation network in the Area, providing upgraded utility systems and 
the ability to provide incentives for economic development in the Area. 

XIII. RELOCATION REPORT 
When the Agency acquires occupied property under the Plan, residential or commercial 
occupants of such property shall be offered relocation assistance, as required under 
applicable state law. Prior to such acquisition, the Agency shall adopt rules and regulations, 
as necessary, for the administration of relocation assistance. The Agency will comply with all 
applicable state law in providing these potential benefits. At the writing of this Report, the 
Agency anticipates acquiring right of way in the Area. 

 

152



 

 

MEMO 

TO: Dayton Planning Commission through Curt Fisher 

FROM: Elaine Howard and Scott Vanden Bos, Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC 
RE:  Proposed Dayton Urban Renewal Plan  

DATE: June 13,2024 

 

Summary and Background 
 
The Dayton Planning Commission (Planning Commission) is being asked to make a 
recommendation to the Dayton City Council (City Council) regarding the City Council’s 
consideration and potential adoption of the proposed Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (Plan).  
 
The focus of the Planning Commission’s review is the conformance of the Plan with the Dayton 
Comprehensive Plan (Comprehensive Plan). This action does not require a public hearing. 
However, if there is anyone present at the Planning Commission meeting who desires to 
provide input, it is recommended the Planning Commission allow that input. The Planning 
Commission is not being asked to approve the Plan, but rather make a recommendation to the 
City Council on the conformance of the Plan to the Comprehensive Plan.  
There are no explicit review criteria for a Planning Commission for the review of an urban 
renewal plan. The Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) ORS 457.089 (2)(a) states that “An urban 
renewal plan and accompanying report shall be forwarded to the planning commission of the 
municipality for recommendations, prior to presenting the plan to the governing body of the 
municipality for approval under ORS 457.095”. The generally accepted practice is for the 
Planning Commission to provide input on the relationship of the Plan to the Local Objectives 
(Section XIII of the Plan), and particularly to its conformance to the Dayton Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
The Dayton Urban Renewal Plan Area (Area) consists of approximately 131 total acres. The 
primary purposes of the Plan are to provide recreational improvements, improve the 
transportation system including pedestrian access and streetscape improvements, address 
infrastructure deficiencies, provide economic development programs to incentivize 
development in the Area and to work with taxing districts to identify projects that will assist 
them in providing services to the Area. 

It is anticipated that the Plan will take twenty-five years of tax increment collections to 
implement. The maximum amount of indebtedness that may be issued for the Plan is not to 
exceed $29,400,000 (Twenty-Nine Million Four Hundred Thousand dollars). Detailed financial 
analysis is in the Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (Report).  

153



Urban renewal allows for the use of tax increment financing, a funding source that is unique to 
urban renewal, to fund its projects. Tax increment revenues - the amount of property taxes 
generated by the increase in total assessed values in the urban renewal area from the time the 
urban renewal area is first established - are used to repay borrowed funds. The borrowed 
funds are used to pay for urban renewal projects and cannot exceed the maximum 
indebtedness amount set by the urban renewal plan. Urban renewal does not increase 
property taxes but divides the taxes that are already assessed. The impact of urban renewal 
financing is on the regular taxing districts. The Report Accompanying the Plan fully describes 
the financing and impacts.  

Section XIII of the Plan contains the findings of the conformance to the Comprehensive Plan 
and this section is included in the text of this memorandum. The numbering of the goals and 
policies reflects the numbering that occurs in the original document. Italicized text is text that 
has been taken directly from an original document and therefore cannot be changed.  

The projects identified in the Plan were examined against the Comprehensive Plan goals to 
ensure that the projects conformed to the Comprehensive Plan. The projects are in the 
following categories and described more fully in Section V of the Plan.  

A. Recreation/Public Space Improvements  
B. Downtown Streetscape Improvements  
C. Building Façade Grant Program  
D. Taxing District Partnerships  
E. Public Infrastructure  
F. Redevelopment and Development  
G. Administration & staffing  

Dayton Comprehensive Plan   
The Dayton Comprehensive Plan establishes goals and objectives for the City and creates 
implementing policies to achieve those goals, taking into account the objectives of the 
Statewide Land Use Goals and the requirements of the various implementing statutes and 
administrative rules. The goals contained in this plan are the general directions or 
accomplishments toward which the City wishes to go in the future. The polices are more 
specific actions the City feels are necessary to accomplish the goals. 
As the Comprehensive Plan is updated in the future, this document will automatically 
incorporate those updates without the Plan having to be formally amended. This section of the 
Plan should be updated if there is a substantial amendment completed in the future. 
 
Chapter 3. Natural, Scenic and Historic Resources Goals and Policies  
Goals 
To conserve open spaces, and preserve natural, scenic and cultural resources. 
To preserve significant historic land marks, sites and structures. 
 
Finding: The Plan a Building Façade program which will be able to assist in the preservation of 
historic buildings in the Area. The funding for recreation improvements will help preserve the 
valuable downtown recreation resources. The Plan is in conformance with the Natural, Scenic 
and Historic Resources Goals of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chapter 6. Land Use and Urbanization 
Goals 

154



To ensure a compact urban growth pattern. 
To recognize the importance of the adjacent farmland and the rural farm community to the 
local economy and larger Dayton and Yamhill County Community. 
 
Finding: The projects in the Plan will create an environment conducive to new development 
and redevelopment, ensuring a compact urban growth pattern. The Plan’s recreation projects 
will support the development of housing in the Area. The Plan also has infrastructure projects 
that will promote housing development to occur in the Area.  The Building Façade program that 
will assist in improving the appearance and function of the businesses in the Area which will 
provide services to future residents of the Area. The Plan is in conformance with the Land Use 
and Urbanization Goals of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Chapter 7. Housing and Public Needs  
Goals 
To encourage housing that will meet the needs of the community in a manner that will best 
afford adequate choices in all income ranges and housing types. 
3.  To ensure that the citizens are provided with safe and sanitary housing while promoting 
residential energy conservation design and construction techniques. 
To establish a residential zoning pattern and use which reduces the dependency on the 
automobile and encourages pedestrian connections to commercial and public areas. 
 
Finding: The Plan has recreation projects that will support the development of housing  
in the Area which will help provide housing choice, ensure safe and sanitary housing using 
current energy design and construction techniques. Providing housing in a mixed-use 
environment will help reduce the dependency on automobile traffic and encourage pedestrian 
connections to commercial and public areas. The Plan also has infrastructure projects that will 
promote housing development to occur in the Area.  The Building Façade program that will 
assist in improving the appearance and function of the businesses in the Area which will 
provide services to future residents of the Area. The Plan also has funding for redevelopment 
and development which could be used for the development of workforce housing. The Plan is 
in conformance with the Housing and Public Needs Goals of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
  
Chapter 8. Economy of the City  
Goals 
To diversify and improve the City’s economy. 
To provide sufficient, orderly and convenient commercial and industrial development that will 
enhance the livability of the community and meet the needs of the citizens. 
Create an environment that will enhance the downtown and provide a focal point for both 
residents and visitors. 
 
Finding: The Plan has recreation projects that will provide increased activity in the Area a and 
enhance the downtown and provide a focal point for residents and visitors. The Plan has 
infrastructure projects that will promote development to occur in the Area and a Building 
Façade program that will assist in improving the appearance and function of the businesses in 
the Area. Much of the development is anticipated to be mixed use developments, so will add to 
the environment that will enhance the downtown. The Plan is in conformance with the 
Economy Goal of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan.  
  

155



 
 
Chapter 9. Public Facilities and Services  
Goals 
To develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public and private facilities and 
services as a framework for future development. 
 
Finding: The Plan has transportation and utility projects within the Area. These projects will 
help facilitate new development within the Area. The Plan also has a project category of 
Taxing District Partnerships to work with the taxing districts to complete projects within the 
Area. The Plan is in conformance with the Public Facilities and Services Goals of the Dayton 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chapter 10. Transportation  
Goals 
To provide a safe, convenient, aesthetic and economic transportation system through a variety 
of transportation means. 
 
Finding: The Plan has transportation projects that will improve the transportation system and 
provide improved pedestrian mobility within the Area.  
The Plan is in conformance with the Transportation Goal of the Dayton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
Recommended Action/Motion 
 
I move the Dayton Planning Commission adopt the facts findings in this memo and Section XIII 
of the draft Urban Renewal Plan as finding that the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan conforms with 
the Dayton Comprehensive Planand recommend that the Dayton City Council adopt the 
proposed plan. 
 
 

156

Elaine Howard
Some planning commissions like to add the second part about city council adoption, some do not. That is totally up to you. 



MINUTES 
DAYTON PLANNING COMMISSION 

June 13, 2024 

Dayton Commissioners Present: Ann-Marie Anderson, Chairperson 
Dave Mackin, Vice-Chairperson 
Rob Hallyburton 
Katelyn Van Genderen 

Dayton Commissioners Absent: Tim Parsons 

Dayton Staff Present: Curt Fisher, City Planner 
Rocio Vargas, City Recorder/Planning Coordinator 
Director 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Ann-Marie Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:30pm all those present gave the pledge 
of allegiance.  

B. APPROVAL OF ORDER OF AGENDA

No Changes. 

C. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS

None. 

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Mackin moved to approve the minutes for March 13, 2024, and May 9, 2024. 
Seconded by Commissioner Hallyburton. Motion carried with Anderson, Hallyburton, Mackin and 
Van Genderen voting aye.  

E. PUBLIC HEARING

Chair Anderson opened the public meeting at 6:33pm to consider Text Amendments to Chapter 
7.4.1 of the Dayton Land Use Development Code to update the standards for the place men of 
temporary signs.  

Curt Fisher, City Planner, presented the staff report.  

No public comment.  

Chair closed the Public Hearing at 6:38pm. 

Commissioner Hallyburton inquired about a typo on page 15. 

Exhibit C

157



Commissioner Van Genderen inquired about section 7.4.101.04. 

Chair Anderson inquired about A-board signs being allowed under temporary signs description. 

Commissioner Hallyburton inquired about excluding A board signs as a temporary sign in the 
Central Business Overlay Zone. 

Commissioner Van Genderen asked about the 30-day calendar year language and how it would be 
determined. 

There was a discussion on how the 30-day per calendar year is subject to complaint driven 
enforcement.  

Further language use and editing was discussed. 

Commissioner Hallyburton moved to adopt a revised staff report with the following 
revisions section 7.4.101.03 definitions add a definition of flag read by the Chair; 
Section7.4.101.04 Prohibited Signs, second sentence would be moved to a 
subsection; Section 7.4.101.06 Non-Conforming Signs subsection (A)  will remain as 
formally worded; Section 7.4.102.05 Design, Construction and Maintenance, 
subsection (E) will remain as formally worded; and recommend the City Council to 
approve the revised amendments. Seconded by Commissioner Van Genderen. 
Motion carried with Anderson, Hallyburton, Mackin and Van Genderen voting aye.  

 

F. OTHER BUSINESS 
a. Urban Renewal Agency Plan Presentation 

Dave Rucklos, Tourism and Economic Development Director prefaced the Urban Renewal 
presentation for Elaine Howard.  

Elaine Howard presented information on Urban Renewal. 

There was a discussion on how the Urban Renewal Plan would benefit the City, and how the 
priorities would be set. 

There was a discussion on the broadness of the projects and the purpose of it being, is to conform 
to the comprehensive plan.  

Commissioner Van Genderen moved the Dayton Planning Commission adopt the 
facts findings in this memo and Section XII of the draft Urban Renewal Plan as finding 
that the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan conforms with the Dayton Comprehensive Plan 
and recommend that the Dayton City Council adopt the proposed plan. Seconded by 
Commissioner Hallyburton. Motion carried with Anderson, Hallyburton, Mackin and 
Van Genderen voting aye.  

 

G. ADJOURNMENT  

158



There being no further business to discuss, the Chair adjourned the meeting at 7:47pm.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

    APPROVED BY COMMISSION November 14, 2024. 
     As Written  As Amended 

By: 
Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 

     ______________________________________________________ 
     Ann-Marie Anderson, Planning Commission Chair 

159



RESOLUTION NO. 2024/25-06 
CITY OF DAYTON 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF DAYTON CONCURRING WITH THE 
INCLUSION OF A PUBLIC BUILDING PROJECT IN THE DAYTON URBAN 

RENEWAL PLAN  

WHEREAS, the Dayton Municipal Code contains Chapter 1.19 creating an Urban Renewal 
Agency (“Agency”); 

WHEREAS, the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency pursuant to the requirements of ORS 
Chapter 457 prepared the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan (“Plan”) reviewed by the Agency 
on May 6, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, Section V of the Plan authorizes certain project activities within the Dayton 
Urban Renewal Area; and  

WHEREAS, these projects include funding for improvements to the Dayton Fire station or 
Dayton Fire District capital equipment and for recreation facilities for the Dayton School 
District; and 

WHEREAS, the Fire District project is considered a public building project under ORS 
457.010(12)(a)(A) and the interpretation of ORS 457.010 (12(b)F) is that the School District 
project is not defined as a public building project; and 

WHEREAS, the inclusion of a public building project requires concurrence of taxing 
districts in accordance with ORS 457.089; and 

WHEREAS, these public projects are described in Section V of Exhibit A, Dayton Urban 
Renewal Plan and Exhibit B, Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the governing body of taxing districts representing three of the four taxing 
districts who are estimated to forego the most property tax revenue must concur with this 
expenditure of funds for a public building project as required by ORS 457.089(3); and  

WHEREAS, the Agency has requested concurrence from the City of Dayton, the Dayton 
School District, Yamhill County and the Dayton Fire District; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Dayton concurs with the inclusion of the public building projects 
for improvements to the Dayton Fire District station or Dayton Fire District capital 
equipment and for recreation facilities for the Dayton School District in the Dayton Urban 
Renewal Plan; 

THEREFORE, The City Of Dayton resolves as follows: 

1) THAT the recitals of this resolution are adopted as additional findings and are
incorporated herein as if fully set forth.

Exhibit D

160



 
2)  THAT the Dayton Urban Renewal Agency will enter into intergovernmental 
agreements with the Dayton Fire District describing the terms of the funding for the 
Dayton Fire District and with the Dayton School District describing the terms of the 
funding for the Dayton School District. 

 
3)  THAT this resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 4th day of November 2024. 

In Favor: 

Opposed: 

Absent: 

Abstained: 

 

___________________________________________  _____________________ 
Annette Frank, Mayor     Date Signed 

 

Attest: 

 

___________________________________________  _______________________ 
Rocio Varas, City Recorder      Date of Enactment 

 

Attachments:  

Exhibit A. Dayton Urban Renewal Plan  
Exhibit B. Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan 

161



Exhibit E

162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



INTERGO\-ER:\:\JE:\T.\L AGRE£1\IENT 

THIS INTl;RGO\'FRi'-!l'v1FNTAL -\(,RLL\lF:\/T (··Agn:crnc11t'·) is mack and l'lllcn:d inlu by 
and bl't v11:•en the D,1y1011 Urb<1n Ren�'\\ ;1) ;\gcncy. <ln mb;111 rt'llc\\ :1I agency Drgani/cd under ORS 
-1-57 I" \gency" ). and the Da::,ton Fire District. a fire district organiud under ORS-+ 7� 
("District"), each individually a "Party'' ancl collc..:tin�ly the --rartics." 

\VHERF.AS, authority is conferred upon local govcrnrnc111s untkr ORS 190.0 I (l to enter 
into ngreements tor the perrorrnance ot" any and ,ill runctions and acLi\ ities that a party Lo the 
agreement, it::i officers or agencies ha\ I:? authurit:,, to perform: and 

\\'HERE.AS. the District pro\ ides critical response and tire protection scn·iccs tu the 
City ot· Dayton·s Urban Rcnc\:1.·al Arca ('"Arca"). Such services arc necessary for the pllblic·s 
health. sately. and ,, el t�1re and i lltcgrnl Lo the success (_ii' lhe l!rba11 Rene\\ a! Area and Oct) ton ·s 
Urban Rene1v,al Plan ,··Plan''J: and 

WHEREAS. Sccti()ll \' l1f the Plan �rnthnrizcs certain prn_icct acti\ ittcs within the Arca 
inc!udin::,,: l"irc prntcctiun '>l'n,icc-.; \\liich cncornpassc;; iirqmJ,-:rncnlS tu the District· . ., lire slcltion
{ Fire Station Project) and purchase ol' District capital equipment: anJ 

WHEREAS, th..: Fire Staliu11 Projc..:t is co11sidcrcd a public building pro_jcct ulllkr ORS
457.0 I 0( I :2 Ha)( A) and the interpretation of ORS 457.0 IO ( 11 )( h )( FL and 

\\TIF:RE,\S. the inclusion o[·a pub1ic building p1·ojccl requires concu1-rcncc 01'tc1xi11g 
Ji�tricts in accunlancc with ORS ..+57.0):;9: anJ 

WHEREAS. the District concurs with the inclusion nfthc !·ire Station Project as a public 
building prt1_jccl and :1s :, prnjcct in the Pi,rn: and 

WHEREAS. the . \g�·ncy agr,.::es to pru\ ide funding tor the Fire Starion Project and for rhc 
pun . .-h�1sc uf District capiral equipm�nr in recognition that the District ,.viii sufkr a luss uf 
re\ enuc dLLe to the establishment of the Arc::i and adoption of the P[;rn: and 

WHEREAS. both parties Jesire lo enter into this Agreement under Lhc tcrrns and 
conditions :,er fonh herein in recognition that the public wi!l benefit and to ensure the go,tb of 
the Pian arc 111cL 

AGRFF\<1F�T 

I. District and .\�ency Concurrence. Both pa1·tics concur with the inciusiun of the
!-ire Station Project in the Plan as :i public building as 1h:1t term is dci"incd under ORS 
457.0lD(l2"i(::il(Al. 

District Obligations. rhe district h,1s tht' folkrning uhligations: 

Page 1 of 4 

Exhibit F

173



a. l;sc .\gcncy funds for rhc Fire St:1tion Project which incluJcs r;._'novating and
irnprO\ i11g. tile clistrid fire station located :1t 500 7 Street. LJaytnn. OR CJ71 I-I which is located 

\\ithin the t_:rhan Re11c\Y�1l Are;1 I /\real. The Fire Station Project will benefit the Arca through 
enhanced lire prolecliun sen ices. 

b. Ensure that the Fire Station Prnjcct is consistent ,\ith the Plan's ecmwrnic
de, elopinent and design goals. 

c. Use Agency funds to purchase District rnpital equipment (C1pital Equipment)
\\'hich cquirment \\'ill benefit the Arca through enhanced fire protection sen ices. 

d. Ensure all Agency r·uncl� arc used consistent with ORS 457. spcciJic1ll :-,, 457.170 
and the Plan. 

e. Pc1y all costs J::i::it.h.:iated with the fire Station Project anJ Capital Equipment 
including maintcna1l\.'e and upkeep. 

r·. Provide .\gcncy with an annual statement for the rrcccding calendar listing nut 
what Agency funcls v,crc u-;ccl t·or 

.\gency Obligations: The :\genL·y ha::, rhe folkrn·ing obligations: 

a. Pru,·ilk: District with pc1} 171\.'nb uf 7.9-1-6', 11 uf ..:'.\.gl'llcy·s tax i11crl..'rnc11t receipt;; 
during the duration nf the plan. A gene;, will pro, idc funds �mnuall) \\'hicb \\ ill be paid through a 
Lnrnslcr oi' /'uncls. 

b. Once the muxirnum li!'c uf'the �1grec111cnt ha:-; been n:c1ched. th;;: Agency\\ ill ha\ t' 
nu further ubligarion to the Di;-;lrict. 

c. . -\g;._•11cy is nut r,:sponsibk- for rn1:,., l·ost:; ;1ss(.ll'iatcd with the Fir"-' Stttion Pruil'ct
:rnci Capita: b-.quiprnent. 

-1-. Term. This 1\greemr:nl ::,hall wkc dYect on th,: Jatl:' buth partie:-; ha,·e signeJ 
bcl\i\V (--Efkcri1.c Dmc-•l J11d-.;hal! r--·111c1i11 in ..:tfct.:t until plan·-; cxpir�1tiun ill \\"11ich time this 
agreement\\ ill tcn11i11atc. 

5. \VaiYer. The foilure oi' eiL11e1 Pc1n:, LO enl"orce clil) pr�)\ i�iun under thi:- ,...\g:i-ce!llclH 
::ih�dl nd! cL1nstirutc u wai\'cT by it uL111y c,chcr prm isi,Jn. 

6. Compliance with Lrn s. The Parties will cnmpl; with all applicable bws in rhc: 
pcrforrn�rncc of their oblig,HillllS under this _ -\grccmcnt. 

Hold Harmless and .lndcmnificarion. This .'\grec'rnc·nt is for rht' beneJJr of tht' 
Panic::. onl::,. Tile District at:-',1-...:cs tu imL.:rnnit'y. sa\·l·. and hulJ h:.mnlcss tlll· _\gency and its 
lltficcrs. cmp!L1yccs. and :1gc11ts, from ::ind against ::ill claims, demands and causes nf �1ctin11s and 
suits of any kind or nature !i_71· pcr:;lll1cil i11jurv. death ,,r (Litn,l,�L' l,l prnpcrl:, ,rn account llf or 
arising out o!' -;en ic,:::, pcrlormcd. the omissions or-.:cn ices or in an:, ,, a:, rcsu1ting i'rorn the :1cts 
or urni::,sions u!' the Disrrict mid it::, olfo . .:ers. e111pluye1:·�- und <1genl� undt'r this \grecnit·nt. [ <.l the: 

C\tcnr :.1pplicabk. the ,1bui·,: indcrnnific1tiun js; ',ubil'Ct to and sh:dl no1 c,c.�1..·d the li:nih cit' 

liability nt'rhc Oregon lort Claims .--\ct \OKS ?li 260 thr0u�h >0.300\. In ::ictc\ition. District shall 
be s,.,lcl) rc:--pl)t1sihk for cl!l_v u111tr,1ct chit11:--_ dcl:\) cbrn;i�c:, ur similar items :irising from or 
cm1scd h) the adirn1 or inaction oi' th;:.• I )i'-.lrict unde1· lhis A�1·ec:>111c11l The obiig,1iin11s set lc)nh in 

this Sc.·ctiun 7 sh<1l1 �u1Yin: the t-:rn1in,trit.in ()f this .\grccm-:nt. 

Page 2 of 4 

174



8. Insurance. Both parties shall maintain i11sura11cc level:::. or selC---insurance in 
accordanc..: "' ith URS 30 21'l2, /<.Jr the duraLion of' Lhis Agreement al k\cls lll'CCSS,ll) lo protect 
against public hldy· liability as specilit·d in ORS 30.269 through 30.2 7--1-. 

9. l\1odification. Thi:s Agreement may be modified only by mutual agrccmcnt of the 
Parties. Any modification to this agreement shall be in writing and signed by an authorized 
rcprcsentati, c o I' each Party hereto. 

10. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement contains the entire agreement 
of the Parties on the subject cmtrncratcd herein. An addition or modification of the prn, is ions of 
this . ..\grccmcnt shall not be cffr:ctivc unless it is in writing ,rncl acknowledgccl by the c1uthori7ccl 
signature or each Pany. 

11. La,"s of Oregon. This Agrecmcnt sl1all be construed :rnd l'lltlJLTl'.d in accordance 
with the lav,s of the State of Oregon. 

12. Default. Either Party shall be deernec.J to be in default il'il rails lo Climply with
any pro\ ision:,; of this Agreement. The non-defaulting Party shall proYide tl1e other Par1y \\·ith 
written notice uf default and allow thirty (30) calendar days within which to cure the d-:i··�t. If 
the defect is not cured within thi11) (30) calendar days, the non-defaulting Party may tcrrnin:.itc 
this . ..\grccmcnt e!Tectivc upon \\ rittcn notice thcn.:of Lo the uthct· Party. or upon such other date a, 
111,,y be set lonh in s,1id nOlice 

13. Notices. All notic.:-s required or ,tllO\vnJ of um: Party to thL· other shall be deemed 
gi\-cn when sent to the Parties at tile fnllnv\ ing addresses: 

For Agency: 

For District· 

I�. Authority to Enter into Agnement. The signatories, by affixing their signatures 
hereto. personally certily that !hey are aulhori/ed lo do so by the Charter, Ordinances, and/or 
go\'erning body of the respecti,·e go, ernmentul entity fur which they are executing this 
Agreerncnt, and that their signatures shall c<1use this .\greern...::nt to be binding upon such Parry. 

For Agency· For District: 

Page 3 of 4 

175



176



Exhibit G

177



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

178



To: Honorable Mayor and City Councilors 

From: Rocio Vargas, City Recorder 

Through: Cyndi Park, Interim City Manager 

Issue:  Discussion for Participation of City Council with School District 

Date: November 4, 2024 

 

Background and Information: 

Ana Lundgren, Junior/High School Student Outreach, reached out to City Recorder 
Rocio Vargas to ask for support from the City in student attendance. Her main idea is 
to have a City Council member attend a monthly assembly and present the students 
who have good attendance with a certificate. There is also a request $5 gift cards for 
coffee if possible. Student of the month assemblies are the last school Friday of the 
month from 11:30am -12:00pm, as follows: 

November 22nd 
December 20th 
January 24th 
February 28th 
March 21st  
April 25th 
May 30th  

Some other ideas include to publish good attendance lists in the Ferry Street News or 
possibly volunteer at the City Hall office on a Friday during school.  

City Manager Recommendation: n/a 

 

Potential Motion: n/a 

 

Council Options: 

1 – Approve as recommended. 

2 – Approve with amendments. 

3 – Take no action and direct staff to do further research or provide additional options. 

 

 

179



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

180



TO:   Mayor Frank and City Council Members 

THROUGH:  Cyndi Park, City Manager 

FROM:  Don Cutler, Public Works Supervisor  

SUBJECT:  Public Works Activity Report for September 2024 

DATE:               October 29, 2024 

Water: 
Regulatory Samples - Bi-Weekly 
Treatment Plant Maintenance 
Daily Rounds 
Work Orders 
Locates 
Meter Reading 
Turn-Ons/Turn-Offs 
Water Production Reports - Dayton and 
 Lafayette 
Water Reports to State - Annual and Monthly 
Emergency Shut-Offs - Various 
Chlorine Feeds - Daily Check 
Chlorine Generator Maintenance 
Springs Grounds Maintenance 
Numerous I Ready’s for leak checks  
Oversaw new water taps and hook ups 
Performed water leak repair Rodeo, 4th & Oak St. 
Worked on Fire Meter issues HD Fowler 

Wastewater: 
Regulatory Samples - Bi-Weekly  
Daily Rounds 
Operation of Lift Stations - Daily Check 
Locates 
DMR to DEQ 
Receive Chemicals at Treatment Plant 
Lift Station Maintenance 
Maintenance at (Sewer) Lagoons  
Hwy 221 lift station project and 
inspections 
Repaired Jib crane at main liftstation 
Prepared for Discharge (chemicals, 
pumps, lines)  

Parks: 
Garbage Removal - All Parks 
Park Restrooms - Daily Cleaning and 
Maintenance 
Regular Mowing of Parks  
Prep Park for reserved events  
Repair damage to bandstand 
Removed barricades & Opened Footbridge 

Storm Water: 
Locates 
Catch Basin - Cleaning 
Storm Drain Grates - Clear Debris and 
Leaves 
Street Sweeping – Grate Maintenance 
Cleared line at 1st & Ferry 
 
 

Facilities: 
Fire Extinguisher Checks 
Community Center Trash Removal 
Clean Community Center Parking Lot 
Grounds Maintenance at Community Center 
Performed quarterly safety inspections  
Got Cameras working at 11th street park 
 

Streets: 
Street Sweeping 
Ferry Street Trash Removal 
Move/Charge Mobile Speed Sign  
Patch potholes 
Repaired ditch 1st & Ferry 

 

181



182



183



Code Enforcement Topic Counts
For Date Period From 09/01/2024 Through 09/30/2024

Topic  Count 
 Noise 2 
 Animals 2 
 Property Management 2 
 Tall Grass and Weeds 1 
 Barking Dogs 1 
Total 8 

184



Code Enforcement Topic Counts
For Date Period From 10/01/2024 Through 10/31/2024

Topic  Count 
 Tall Grass and Weeds 11 
 Barking Dogs 2 
 Property Management 1 
 Parking in Public Right-of-Ways 1 
 Storing RVs, Trailers, Boats, Trucks, and Vehicles 1 
Total 16 

185



186



187



188



BREAKFAST

With Santa
Save the Date!

Saturday, December 14, 2024
Breakfast 8:00 am - 12:00pm and Bazaar 8:00 am - 2:00 pm

Palmer Creek Lodge
606 4th Street, Dayton OR 97114

189


	11-04-2024 Agenda
	11-04-2024 Packet
	10-21-24 Work Special Session Minutes
	1 - RESOLUTION NO 24-25-07 Approving a Contract for City Manager
	2 - Dayton City Manager Contract_FINAL (00917887xB8084)
	1 - Staff Report-URD Public Bulding Resolution
	From:  Dave Rucklos – TED Director

	Resolution 24-25-06 Concurring with the Inclusion of a Public Building in URA Plan
	Exhibit A - Dayton UR Plan 10.31.24 RV Edits
	I. DEFINITIONS
	II. INTRODUCTION
	 A description of the physical, social, and economic conditions in the Area and expected impact of the plan, including fiscal impact in light of increased services; (ORS 457.087(1))
	 Reasons for selection of the plan Area; (ORS 457.087(2))
	 The relationship between each project to be undertaken and the existing conditions; (ORS 457.087(3))
	 The estimated total cost of each project and the source of funds to pay such costs; (ORS 457.087(4))
	 The estimated completion date of each project; (ORS 457.087(5))The estimated amount of funds required in the Area and the anticipated year in which the debt will be retired; (ORS 457.087(6))
	 A financial analysis of the plan; (ORS 457.087(7))
	 A fiscal impact statement that estimates the impact of tax increment financing (TIF) upon all entities levying taxes upon property in the urban renewal area; (ORS 457.0857(8)) and
	 A relocation report.(ORS 457.087(9))

	III. Maximum Indebtedness
	IV. Plan GOALs
	V. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS
	 Dayton Landing
	 Courthouse Square Park Enhancement
	 Legion Field
	 11th Street Park
	 Alderman Park
	 Brookside Cemetery
	 Ornate lighting installation
	 Bicycle racks
	 Benches
	 Signage
	 Street trees
	 Sewer and Water Line Extension and Upgrades
	 Street Paving, Overlay and Repair as allowed
	 Water Pressure Upgrades
	 Sewer Pond Addition
	 Upgrading existing buildings
	 Providing incentives for development  in the Area, including the development of workforce housing

	VI. Amendments to Plan
	VII. Property Acquisition and Disposition
	VIII. Relocation Methods
	IX.
	IX. Tax Increment Financing of Plan
	X. Validity
	XI. annual Report
	XII. Relationship to Local Objectives

	Exhibit B - Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan
	Report Accompanying the
	Dayton Urban Renewal Plan
	I. definitions
	II. Introduction
	III. The Projects in the ArEa AND THE Relationship Between Urban Renewal Projects and the Existing Conditions in the Urban Renewal Area
	IV. The Estimated Total Cost of Each Project and the Sources of Moneys to Pay Such Costs
	V. Financial analysis of the plan
	VI. The EStimated Amount of Tax Increment Revenues Required and the Anticipated Year in Which Indebtedness Will Be Retired
	VII. The Anticipated Completion Date for Each Project
	VIII. Revenue Sharing
	IX. Impact of the Tax Increment Financing
	X. Compliance With Statutory Limits on Assessed Value and Size of Urban Renewal Area
	XI. Existing Physical, Social, and Economic Conditions and Impacts on Municipal Services
	A. Physical Conditions

	XII. Reasons for Selection of Each Urban Renewal Area in the Plan
	XIII. Relocation report

	1 - Staff Report-URD Plan Ordinance 664
	From:  Dave Rucklos – TED Director

	2 - ORD 664 Adopting URA Plan
	Exhibit A - Dayton UR Plan 10.31.24 RV Edits
	I. DEFINITIONS
	II. INTRODUCTION
	 A description of the physical, social, and economic conditions in the Area and expected impact of the plan, including fiscal impact in light of increased services; (ORS 457.087(1))
	 Reasons for selection of the plan Area; (ORS 457.087(2))
	 The relationship between each project to be undertaken and the existing conditions; (ORS 457.087(3))
	 The estimated total cost of each project and the source of funds to pay such costs; (ORS 457.087(4))
	 The estimated completion date of each project; (ORS 457.087(5))The estimated amount of funds required in the Area and the anticipated year in which the debt will be retired; (ORS 457.087(6))
	 A financial analysis of the plan; (ORS 457.087(7))
	 A fiscal impact statement that estimates the impact of tax increment financing (TIF) upon all entities levying taxes upon property in the urban renewal area; (ORS 457.0857(8)) and
	 A relocation report.(ORS 457.087(9))

	III. Maximum Indebtedness
	IV. Plan GOALs
	V. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS
	 Dayton Landing
	 Courthouse Square Park Enhancement
	 Legion Field
	 11th Street Park
	 Alderman Park
	 Brookside Cemetery
	 Ornate lighting installation
	 Bicycle racks
	 Benches
	 Signage
	 Street trees
	 Sewer and Water Line Extension and Upgrades
	 Street Paving, Overlay and Repair as allowed
	 Water Pressure Upgrades
	 Sewer Pond Addition
	 Upgrading existing buildings
	 Providing incentives for development  in the Area, including the development of workforce housing

	VI. Amendments to Plan
	VII. Property Acquisition and Disposition
	VIII. Relocation Methods
	IX.
	IX. Tax Increment Financing of Plan
	X. Validity
	XI. annual Report
	XII. Relationship to Local Objectives

	Exhibit B - Report Accompanying the Dayton Urban Renewal Plan
	Report Accompanying the
	Dayton Urban Renewal Plan
	I. definitions
	II. Introduction
	III. The Projects in the ArEa AND THE Relationship Between Urban Renewal Projects and the Existing Conditions in the Urban Renewal Area
	IV. The Estimated Total Cost of Each Project and the Sources of Moneys to Pay Such Costs
	V. Financial analysis of the plan
	VI. The EStimated Amount of Tax Increment Revenues Required and the Anticipated Year in Which Indebtedness Will Be Retired
	VII. The Anticipated Completion Date for Each Project
	VIII. Revenue Sharing
	IX. Impact of the Tax Increment Financing
	X. Compliance With Statutory Limits on Assessed Value and Size of Urban Renewal Area
	XI. Existing Physical, Social, and Economic Conditions and Impacts on Municipal Services
	A. Physical Conditions

	XII. Reasons for Selection of Each Urban Renewal Area in the Plan
	XIII. Relocation report

	Exhibit C - Dayton Planning Commission Recomendation
	1 - 4_PC Memo 05 14 2023_v2
	06-13-2024 Minutes

	Exhibit E - DSD IGA for URA Public Buildings Concurrance
	Exhibit E - DSD IGA for URA Public Buildings Concurrance
	Exhibit E.2 - Approved Regular Board Minutes 9.10.2024

	Exhibit F - DFD IGA for URA Public Building Concurrance
	Exhibit G - Soil Conservation District Letter




